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DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION’S RACE-SPECIFIC
SCHOLARSHIP POLICY

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 20, 1991

Housg OF REPRESENTATIVES,
HuMAN RESOURCES AND
INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE
oF THE COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10 am., in room
2203, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Ted Weiss (chairman of
the subcommittee) presiding.

Present: Representatives Ted Weiss, Donald M. Payne, Patsy T.
Mink, Craig Thomas, David L. Hobson, and Bernard Sanders.

Also present: James Gottlieb, staff director; Marc Smolonsky,
%)rofessional staff member; Mitchell Zeller, associate counsel; Ann
Marie Atkins, staff assistant; and Stephen D. McMillan, minority
professional staff, Committee on Government Operations.

OPENING STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN WEISS

Mr. Weiss. The Subcommittee on Human Resources and Inter-
governmental Relations is now in session. I'm pleased to note that
our distinguished minority ranking member, Mr. Thomas, is with
us, and after 1 make my opening remarks, he will then make what-
ever remarks he chooses to make.

Before I make my opening remarks, let me take note of the ap-
pointment of Lamar A exander as the new Secretary of Education,
and to indicate how pleased I am by that appointment. 1 had the
pleasure and privilege of serving with Mr. Alexander on the Advi-
sory Commission of ntergovernmental Relations and consider him
to be an outstanding public servant.

And I think that the President really needs to be commended for
making that appointment.

I also want to state that, as I told the Secretary in a conversation
that we hnd gesterday, that, obviously, this hearing has nothing to
do with anything that he may be thinkin%jof doing about this issue.
What we're into is the process as to the decision that was an-
nounced on December 4, 1990. Clearly, he was not in the Depart-
ment of Education, in any capacity, at that time. And so 1 just
want that to be publicly clear as well as privately clear.

1 expect that the Secretary will be readinf a transcript of these
hearings, and perha;‘);. on fhe basis of his following what comes out
in today's hearing, because he said that he's going to put every-
thing on hold for 6 months—I think, at a press conference that he

th
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held this morning—so that the policy before December 4 will be in
effect for 6 months. Perhaps he will conclude, after these hearin}%s,
that the old adage really holds, which is that “if it ain’t broke,
don’t fix it.”

In any event, on December 4, 1990, the U.S. Department of Edu-
cation abruptly declared that minority scholarships were illegal,
There was no attempt to assess the harm this switch in law en-
forcement would cause, nor to determine how many students would
be affected.

The Department chose to establish its new policy in a case in-
volving promoters of a college football game in Arizona, the only
State that had voted not to celebrate Martin Luther King's birth-
day as a holiday. The promoters of the Fiesta Bowl had hoped to
use race-specific financial aid to correct the tarnished image Arizo-
na’s vote against the civil rights holiday had left on the State. The
Department'’s timing could not have been more inappropriate.

On December 18, after a firestorm of protest, the Department
seemed to back off its position, but not really. Even after their
“modification,” colleges and universities still cannot use their own
funds to pay for race-exclusive scholarships.

Today we will review the process that was used to change Feder-
al policy. The actions of the Department of Education are extreme-
ly important, because cultural and economic conditions that re-
stricted minority students from entering colleges remain. Minority
students continue to lag far behind their white counterparts in per-
centages of high school graduates entering college.

Two years ago, this subcommittee prepared a report that found
many State affirmative action plans to be poorly funded and en-
forced half heartedly. The plans were not working because there
was simply not enough commitment to do more. Despite over-
whelming evidence that the plans had failed, the Department of
Education did away with many of those affirmative action plans,
and now it wants to worsen the damage by eliminating yet another
method to correct illegal discrimination.

Today, we will learn how this policy change came about, who
was behind it, and how it will affect the way our colleges and uni-
versities conduct business. I want to emphasize, again, that we are
reviewing past actions of the Department that in no way reflect on
the new Secretary of Education, who has already expressed his ob-
Jections to the ban on minorit scholarships.

The first witnesses are sc eduled to be Michael L. Williams,
Assist Secretary for Civil Rights at the Department of Education,
and his Deputy Assistant Secretary for Policy, Mr. Richard Komer.
We will also hear from University of Michigan law professor Ted
Shaw, the College Board, and the National Association of Inde-
pendent Colleges and Universities.

But before we go to our witness, let mne call on Mr. Thomas for
his opening comments.

Mr. THoMAs. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. First, let me
tell you how pleased I am to be able to serve with you on this com-
mittee, and I'm looking forward to exploring many areas of mutual
concern during the year. I want to thank ou, also, for holding this
meeting, and Mr. Williams, you for being here.
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There are few issues in this country as important as guarantee-
ing quality educational opportunities to all Americans. The hearing
this morning, combined with the announcement of the Department
of Education, will give us a good opportunity to look into this
matter.

Civil rights is a complicated issue, as complicated as any as we
will face during this Congress, placed at the top of many agendas,
albeit for different reason. But an important point needs to be
made. Both President Bush and the Congress are committed to
equal opportunities in employment, education, and housing. Differ-
ences in how we achieve those goals cannot and should not be con-
strued as disagreement over the goals themselves.

The decision by Mr. Williams and the Office for Civil Rights, and
subsequent statements during the 2 weeks following, did create
some confusion, and 1 am pleased that he’s here to discuss that
with us today. I'm also pleased with the Secretary’s decision to
become more active in this issue, to ensure that the needs of all
Americans, regardless of color, sex, or national origin, are met and
their rights protected.

His statement, this morning, in detailing the process of the Edu-
cation Department intends to follow in reviewing this issue, ap-
pears to provide a solid foundation. He will provide a much needed
overview of current programs, encourage the participation of out-
side groups and Congress in deciding how to improve our efforts
and provide protection to both institutions and recipients who are
already beneﬁtmi from current programs.

Secretary has a well-deserved reputation for being a leader
in the field of education, both from his days as Governor of Tennes-
see, and, more recently, as president of that State's largest univer-
sxty )rstem He brings with him a fresh perspective to a difficult

I'm confident that his forthright manner will produce results
thatallofuscanagreeu n.

Once again, Mr. Chairman, thank you for holding this hearing.
I'll look forward to the testimony of the panel.

Mr. Weiss. The policy of the Government Operations Committee
and its subcommittees is to swear in all of its witnesses, so before
we proceed any further, Mr. Williams, will you stand and raise
your right hand?

[Witness sworn.}

Mr. Weiss. Before I go to questions, Mr. Williams, the letter that
was sent to you on February 28, from the subcommittee, over my
signature, requested that the Deputy Assistant Secretary for Policy
join you this morning. Is that person here?

STATEMENT OF MICHAFL L. WILLIAMS, ASSISTANT SECRETARY
FOR CIVIL RIGHTS, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Mr. WiLLiams. Mr. Chairman, he is not here.

Mr. WErss. And that person is——

Mr. WiLLiaMs. His name is Richard D. Komer.

Mr. Weiss. OK. You understand that an invitation for a8 witness
who is employed by the Federal Govemment to come before an ap-
propriate committee of Congress is not really an invitation which
can be lightly disregarded. I would hope that Mr. Komer would
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appear within a matter of brief occasion, because we have some
questions prepared for him, in this process, and, so he is an essen-
tial part of this morning’s hearings. So perhaps one of your staff
people can get on the phone and urge Mr. Komer to come here on
the base of the invitation, rather than by the legal process.

Mr. WiLLiams. As the Assistant Secretary, Mr. Chairman, I am
here, willing to answer your questions, and I will attempt to
answer those that would be propounded to Mr. Komer.

Mr. Wess. I don't know if you understood what I said. If Mr.
Komer does not show up on the base of the invitation, we will sub-
poena him to come. Now, we've rarely had to subpoena Federal em-
ployees; it shouldn’t be necessary. Congress has the right to have
Federal employees appear before it. So I would urge you, before we
get to the questions for Mr. Komer, to have one of your staff people
call and have him come here.

Mr. Williams, give us your title, would you?

Mr. WiLLiaMms. I'm the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights, U.S.
Department of Education.

Mr. Wriss. And when did you assume that position?

Mr. WiLLiams. July 6, 1990.

Mr. WEiss. Does the Office for Civil Rights operate under the
principle that this country has had a history of discrimination
against minority students?

Mr. WiLLiams. The Office for Civil Rights recognizes that there
has been many forms of discrimination against minority students
and other students, as well, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Wriss. Over the years, the Department of Justice has sued
State systems of higher education to force them to desegregate.
Your own Office for Civil Rights has ordered higher education sys-
tems to desegregate. Federal courts have ordered school systems to
desegregate. Were these actions ordered, under title VI of the Civil
Rights Act, to eliminate the vestiges of the legal segregation?

Mr. WiLLiams. In those instances, yes, Mr. Chairman, they were.

Mr. Wess. Do you agree that many States’ systems of higher
education, at one time, had legally segregated schools that discrimi-
nated against black students, in particular; that the Supreme Court
and the Congress said that those systems were illegal, and that any
vestiges of those systems that stilﬁ)revent minority students from
having equal access to education must be eliminated?

Mr. WiLLiaMms. 1 am aware of that.

Mr. Weiss. Does the Department’s title VI regulation require
that in the case of institutions and States that “previously discrimi-
nated against persons on the ground of race, color, or national
origin, the recipient must take affirmative action to overcome the
effects of prior discrimination.”

Mr. WirLiams. In the regulation 100B362 does, in fact, say that a
recipient of Federal funds that has discriminated in the past, must
indeed take affirmative action to redress that discrimination.

Mr. Weiss. Does the title VI regulation require that, “Even in
the absence of such prior discrimination, a recipient, in administer-
ing a program, may take affirmative action to overcome the effects
of conditions which result in limiting participation by persons of a
particular race, color, or national origin?”

5




5

Mr. WiLriams. The possibility, the permissibility of taking af-
firmative action for that recipient that is not a past discriminator,
is, indeed, in the Federal regulations.

Mr. Wass. Isn’t it also true that in cases where no discrimina-
tion has been found, that not only is affirmative action allowable,
but that title VI specifically permits race to be used as a criteria in
providing such assistance as financial aid?

Mr. WiLLiams. | think that when there is no discrimination in
the past, that race can be a factor, and be deemed to be a factor
that is an appropriate factor, and be looked upon by a Federal re-
cipient of Federal funds.

Mr. WErss. Yes, that's part of the regulations, also, isn't it?

Mr. WiLLiams. Yes, it is.

Mr. Weiss. Last year, the promoters of the Fiesta Bowl football
game created a8 Martin Luther King scholarship fund for minority
students. On December 4, 1990, you informed the promoters of the
game that awarding race-spec:fic financial aid was now considered
illegal by the Department of Education. You said that minority
scholarships were a violation of title VI; is that correct?

Mr. WiLLiams. No Mr. Chairman that is not correci. Let me, if 1
could, say what I did say on December 4. On December 4, I issued a
letter to the president of the Fiesta Bowl and that letter addressed
probably the two big questions in this issue. The why: Why do we
need financial assistance? Obviously, because we need to provide
opportunities for minority students to attend college. But it also ad-
dressed the how. And in going through the how——

Mr. Wkiss. Mr. Williams, did you not say, in your letter to Mr.
Junker, “OCR interprets these provisions as generally prohibiting
race-exclusive scholarships, referring to Title VI?”

Mr. WiLLiaMms. Yes, sir.

Mr. Weiss. You did say that.

er. WiLrLiams. And then it goes on further to outline the variety
of ways——

Mr. WEiss. Right. OK. That's all I want at this point. Had the
Department of Education ever before issued a formal finding that
minorit&(scholarsh’ig were illegal?

Mr. WiLuiaMs. The Department had, indeed, issued findings
before that race-specific activity had been illegal.

Mr. Weiss, That minority scholarships were illegal? That's the
question. Had the Department ever issued a formal finding?

Mr. WinLiaMs. We provided technical assistance to Dartmouth
College, in 1988, that provided them information that said that a
scholarship designed exclusively for minorities would, indeed, be in
violation of title VI.

Mr. Weiss. Now, again, I'm asking you if a formal finding had
ever been issued by the Department, that minority scholarships
were illegal? The answer to that is no; isn’t it?

Mr, WiLLiams. The answer is no, but the principle, the legal prin-
ciple, the part in which we have addressed that, we have used in
other matters.

Mr. Weiss. So that the Fiesta Bowl—well, tell me about those
other cases. Which other cases?

Mr. WiLLiams. Well, if we go back and look at, let’s say, in 1986,
we looked at a scholarship with regards to Southwest Missouri

J
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State University, and looking at that scholarship, did, indeed, say
that the principle that a university could only use race-specific ac-
tivity when addressing or redressing past discrimination, was a
principle that we applied in that instance, and it was the same
grinciple that is outlined and reiterated in the letter on December

Mr. WEsss. I don’t know what that says. But anyhow, the Fiesta
Bowl decision represented a significant change in your interpreta-
tion of title VI; isn’t that correct?

Mr. WiLLiams, I would disagree with that, sir.

Mr. Wess. Do you think that the Fiesta Bowl statement and de-
cision, in December 4’s statement, doesn't represent a significant
change in interpretation?

Mr. WiLuiams, If I could: In the Fiesta Bow! letter, we outlined, 1
outlined a number of legal principles, legal interpretations, that
the Department and the Office for Civil Rights had, indeed, used in
the past, the first being that colleges and universities, institutions,
could, indeed, use race to remedy for past discrimination; that's
one principle that was in the letter; that is a principle that, again,
had been used in the past.

We did also say, as we had said before, that private entities were
not covered by title VI, that is a principle that the Office had dealt
with in the past; that is a principle that is in the letter. We had
also said, as you outlined, in terms of the regs, that an institution
where there was a need to redress limited participation, could use
race as a positive factor, the way the Court and Bakke discussed in
1978. That is a principle that had been used by the Department in
the past; that is a principle that is in the letter.

Finally, we did in fact, in the past, in OCR, say that there may
be other ways, a host of race-neutral criteria that institutions can
indeed use in order to advance the educational opportunities of mi-
nority students; that is a principle that has been used in the past
in the Office for Civil Rights; that is a principle that is incorporat-
ed in the letter of December 4.

Mr. WEiss. Did you consult with the Department or general
counsel, in any way, before making your decision to prohibit race-
specific scholarships?

Mr. WiLLiaMs, Yes, sir. The letter went through a number of ren-
ditions, and around the 27th, 28th, or so, the letter, as well as the
press release—the draft of the letter and the draft of the press re-
lease were sent from my office to the Office of the Secretary and
the Office of the Deputy Secretary, and the general counsel's office
had an opportunity to review both.

Mr. WEiss. And when was that?

Mr. WiLLiaMs. Around the 27th or 28th of November.

Mr. Weiss. Of November?

Mr. WiLLiaMs. Yes, sir.

hM‘;' Wesss. Did general counsel give you a written opinion on
this?

Mr. WiLLiams. No, sir.

Mr. WEeiss. What did you get back from general counsel?

Mr. WiLLiams. 1 received back comments on the way one or two
of the first drafts had been written, there were handwritten com-
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ments, and received back a telephone call from the general coun-
sel, with his comments about phraseology in the letter.

Mr. Wesss. Do you have copies of those comments?

Mr. WiLtiaMs. What we had at the time of your document re-
quest has been turned over to you. I do not have any other docu-
ments other than those.

Mr. Wgiss. Did you receive any comment from the Office of the
Deputy Secretary?

Mr. WiLLiams. Yes. Somewhere prior to December 4, between the
27th and the 4th, I received a call from the Chief of Staff of the
Secretary’'s Office, saying that the letter and the press release were
fine, and to go ahead. I received a call from the Deputy Secretary's
OfYice, around the 4th, to go ahead, as well.

Mr. WEiss. Nothing in writing?

Mr. WiLniams. I did not receive anything in writing.

Mr. Wgss. Did you consult with anyone at the White House or
the Office of Management and Budget about the minority scholar-
ship decision? Did you discuss the decision with anyone at the De-
partment of Justice?

Mr. WiLLiams. 1 did not. I think there may have been members
of the staff that shared one of the first renditions of the letter with
DOJ, because the University of Alabama is involved in litigation
with the Department of Justice, and we wanted them to be ap-
praised of it. But I did not, personally, share it with my counter-
part at the Department of Justice, nor did I receive back anything
in written form with their comments, if they had any.

Mr. WEiss. Let me see if I can get it clear for the record. Was a
copy of the letter and the policy embodied therein forwarded to the
Department of Justice for their comments?

Mr. WiLLiams. It is my recollection that a copy of one of the ear-
lier renditions of the letter was, indeed, sent to some staff person
at the Department of Justice; that person, I do not know.

Mr. Weiss. Who, on your staff, sent it, do you know?

Mr. WiLLiaMs. That. I would not know.

Mr. WEiss. And what the comments of the Department of Justice
were, you also do not know.

Mr. WiLuiaMs. That is correct.

Mr. Weiss. You provided the subcommittee with a draft memo-
randum entitled “Recipient Provisions of Race-specific Aid.” In this
memorandum, you outlined why you believe race-specific scholar-
ships are illegal. In the draft, you state, “This memorandum super-
sr:gteqs all prior OCR policy documents on this subject;” is that cor-

Mr. WiLriams. That's correct.

Mr. Weiss. So that, in fact, when I asked vou earlier whether, in
fact, the Fiesta Bowl policy decision was a significant change in
policy, when you said, “'no,” that's inaccurate, isn't it?

Mr. WiLLiams. That draft that you're looking at, sir, has never
gone out. We have not issued a draft policy to the staff of the
Office for Civil Rights, as it relates to minority scholarships. That
is a document that was in the process of being developed.

Mr. Wess. But this is the policy that supports the Fiesta Bowl
decision; isn't it?

11
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Mr. WiLuiams. That is a policy that was being developed at the
same time as the Fiesta Bowl letter was developed, and it has in it
the same legal interpretation that is in the letter.

M;-. WEiss. That's a draft memorandum to your staff; is that cor-
rect’

Mr. WiLLiams. That would be, yes.

Mr. WEiss. They're aware that that, in fact, was your policy.

Mr. WiLLiams. They would be aware that that is a policy ihat
has been anrunciated by the Office for Civil Rights, yes.

Mr. Wesss. According to the May 1, 1978, Federal Register. "The
Office for Civil Rights will hereafter publish all major policy deter-
minations in the Federal Register, and systematically provide
copies to organizations representing beneficiaries and recipients of
Federal financizl assistance.”” Was that policy rescinded, and was
notice of its recision published in the Federsal Register?

Mr. WiLLiams. There was no attempt to announce national policy
of generai applicability, so the answer to that is no. The Fiesta
Bowl letter was not an attempt to announce national policy, or to
change policy, as it relates to this issue.

Mr. Woiss. Mr. Williams, how can you say that in the face of
that draft memorandum.

Mr. WiLLiams. The draft memorandum was never issued.

Mr. Weiss. Never mind that it wasn't issued, but how can you
say that, in fact, there was no intent?

Mr. WirLiams. If we look at the letter, if we could, the first para-
graph of the letter says to Mr. Junker, 1 commend your efforts at
advancing minority oppertunities in education,” and it goes on and
lists the kinds of legal interpretation. But the last part of the letter
says and talks about the provision of a senior attorney to the
Fiesta Bowl, to provide technical assistance to them, to assist them,
in developing scholarships with the University of Louisville and
the University of Alabama that would advance the educational op-
portunities of minority students.

This was an effort to provide the Fiesta Bowl with technical as-
sistance, so that they could then go about the business of providing
educational scholarships to advance the educational opportunity
for minority students; that's what this is. This was not an at-
tempt——

Mr. WEiss. This is an effort to help the Fiesta Bowl people?

Mr. WiLiams. That's what the letter says, and that's what it
says, clearly, on its face.

Mr. Weiss. Following the Bakke decision, the Department pub-
lished, in the Federal Register, policy interpretations of the title VI
regulation. Did you, at least. publish your December 4 policy inter-
pretation in the Federal Register, as the Department did after
Bakke?

Mr. WiLLiams. No, because it was not an attempt to announce
policy of general applicability.

Mr. Weiss. Well, I have to draw the conclusion that you believe
that major changes in enforcement policy should no longer be pub-
licly reviewed.

Mr. WiLLiams. That would not be the case, Congressman.
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Mr. Wgiss. Why do you think that the whole Nation, as least the
academic sector and tf\:'e civil rights sector, get so upset at the deci-
sion, in your view?

Mr. WiLLiams. There are probably a lot of variables that go into
it. %uit:e frankly, I'm probably not the best person to do that; some
of the people who got upset may be in a better position. But, if 1
could, let me see if I can muse a bit. I think to some extent, on the
“why" side, there is, indeed a great need for us, as a Nation, to pro-
vide opportunities for a wide variety of students, particularly disad-
vantaged students, and even more particularly, for minority stu-
dents, to go on and obtain an education.

A letter that came out, which is fairly innocuous, 1 think, to
most people, was followed sometime later with discussions in the
public that it was a ban on minority scholarships, and that minori-
ties could not go to school. But, clearly, in the letter, there are
enunciated ways in which scholarships could be provided to minori-
ties.

1 think people got scared. I think people became afraid that mi-
nority students would not be able to go to school. I think that hap-
pens when someone puts a microphone and a camera in front of
the face of a young, black student and says, “"What do you think
about the Department of Education trying to take away your schol-
arship?”’ when, indeed, that's not what the letter said. And I think
there was fear.

I also think that there were a number of things that went on. ]
think that, as you mentioned, there are a number of States, that,
in their higher education systems, had been declared to have been
discriminating, and those States can, and, indeed, do and have
race-specific, minority-specific scholarships.

And other schools, not for the same legal basis, but seeing,
maybe, the school across the street, what the Universit{’ of Texas
was doing, and, because they had been a discriminator, State—
maybe a private school, in the same State, saw what the University
of Texas was doing and started doing it as well, not looking at the
legal basis for why the University of Texas was doing it.

And so ] think, what happened, there was a confluence of a lot of
things, but I do not think it is necessarily because what 1 did was
to announce a change in policy. That is not what we did, and that
was not what we intended to do.

Mr. Weiss. I must say, it sort of confuses me, as to what the Sec-
retary is going to be reviewing. 1 understood that he was reviewing
the whole policy change to see what should be done with it.

Mr. WiLuiams. If I could, I think what the Secretary wants to
do—we were, or more specifically, I was, roundly criticized for
having appeared to have made a decision without consulting the
higher education community and the civil rights community, with-
out having done impact analysis to determine what the impact
would be, without having done what Dr. Rosser, I understand, has
done, finding out how many scholarships there are and what the
numbers are.

And there is an opportunity here, which I think the Secretary is
seizing upon, to do that. We have not attempted to announce policy
of general applicability, but to so, at some future date, after having
gone througg an orderly process.
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Mr. WEiss. As a matter of fact, I understand that the Secretary
has said that for 6 months, everything will be on hold, and the
policy decision, or change, announced on December 4 will be abey-
ance until he gets through with his review; isn’t that correct?

Mr. WiLLiams. That is correct.

Mr. Wriss. So that, in fact, he is putting that policy change,
which you announced on December 4, on hold. To say that means
that you have to assume thut there was a policy change which has
to be held in abeyance.

Mr. WiLLiams. | do not think that's what the Secretary is saying.

Mr. WEiss. Well, OK. Tell me, if you know: What are the civil
Xg}‘x’t.s requirements, in regard to the Administrative Procedure

ct?

Mr. WiLLiams. I am not aware of them.

Mr. Wriss. Well, let me tell you, “Regulatiops issued under this
section shall be in conformity with the standards and limitations of
the Administrative Procedure Act.” And the question that I have
then is: Does the title VI regulation meet the Administrative Pro-
cedure Act’s definition of a rule?

The answer to that is yes. Under section 2C, a rule is defined as
“the whole or part of an agency statement of general or particular
applicability and future effect designed to implement, interpret, or
prescribe law or policy, or describing the organization, procedure,
or practice requirements of an agency.” Now, did your December 4
policy statement on minority scholarships change the way the De-
partment interpreted and enforced this title VI rule?

Mr. WiLLiams. It did not, and it was not intended to be a policy
statement.

Mr. Wgiss. Section 553 of the Administrative Procedure Act re-
quires major policy changes—and I have to assume from the Secre-
tary’s news release and press conference that, in fact, he considers
it to be a major policy change that he’s reviewing. The Administra-
tive Act requires major policy changes to be subjected to notice and
comment rulemaking, prior to their becoming final agency policy.
Did you promulgate your new rule, prohibiting minority scholar-
ships, according to section 553 of the Administrative ure
Act, as required by the law?

ll\_!r. WiLLiaMs. No, it was not an attempt to announce national
policy.

Mr. Wriss. Were you aware at the time that you adopted the
policy—whatever it was that you consider it to be—that it would
alter the way just about every college, university, and State system
of higher education conducts business?

Mr. WiLLiams. No.

Mr. Weiss. At this point, I'm going to yield. I have further ques-
tions, but let me yieﬁioto Mr. Thomas, and let me recognize the
presence of one of our distinguished members on the majority side,
Mr. Donald Payne of New Jersey.

Mr. Thomas.

Mr. THoMmAs. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'm a little bit confused,
perhaps you can help me. What is the difference between the cur-
rent policy of the Department, with regard to this issue, and the
policy 3 months ago?
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Mr. WiLLiAMS. At the present time, we are v.. ouraging colleges
and universities to do that which they were doing 3 months, 4
months, whatever time ago, and to participate with the Depart-
ment in the review that's being conducted now, and to await any
decision that the Department may make 6 months, or so, from now.
And so, at this point, it is full steam ahead, go ahead and do those
things that you had been doing.

Mr. TioMas. I guess that's what 1 assumed. I'm not quite sure
v;-jhat we're after, because the policy, in fact, hasn't changed; isn’t
that——

Mr. Witniams. To talk about what the policy may be in the
future would be, to some extent, prejudged——

Mr. THoMAs. I'm talking about today; I'm not talking about the
result of what the Secretary has now suggested be done.

Mr. WiLLiams. No change at all.

Mr. THomas. No change. I read the Secretary's statement here,
and I don't think he commented on the change. Indeed, he com-
mented on 10 years of different kinds of regulations, to evaluate
them and to come forth, then, with the position of the Department;
is that correct?

Mr. WiLLiams. 1 think it is probably fairer, in terms, to discuss
what I think the Secretary’s intending, but, obviously, he would be
in & much, much better position to address what he's thinking than
1 would be. But he's saying that they're—what we want to do is to
get to the place where there is a policy. I do not see that as having
been a critique, one way or another, on December 4 or even Decem-
ber 18. It is a process to get to what would be a policy that would
be a policy that would be consistent with title V1 of the Constitu-
tion.

Mr. THoMas. In the past, the Office for Civil Rights and the De-
partment has upheld cases that permitted race-based programs
that benefited blacks and other minorities. Could you explain how
gxoe ?rograms differed from the situation involved with the Fiesta

w)?

Mr. WiLLiams. Well, the principles may have been the same, I
mean, we did, in fact, on one or more occasions, look at scholarship
gerograms and approve those when those programs were for the

nefit of minority students. One that would come to mind immedi-
ately would be in 1989, where the Department approved a scholar-
ship that you would be well aware of, a scholarship created and es-
tablished by this Congress, the official Roberts Harris Scholarship.
And the underlying theme, while it is a theme that was not recog-
nized in that finding, the underlying theme is that Congress has
certain powers to engage in affirmative action that maybe States
or colleges, universities, don't have.

And, so there have been a wide variety of basis, and that's what
the framework of the review is: to identify what are the appropri-
ate bases, to determine when it is proper to have race conscious ac-
tivity.

Mr. Tuomas. In your letter—and I'm not sure if you had a
chance to fully explain it—as I recall, you set forth some proce-
dures in which they could accomplish the goal that they had initi-
ated. Would you explain how you provided to do that?
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Mr. WiLLiams. There are two principles, and one that I just men-
tioned. I mean, Congress, obviously, when it creates a scholarship
has certain powers to do that. A second one is that private entities,
if they are not recipients of Federal education aid, then, obviously,
they can go ahead and create race-specific scholarships. IBM could
do it, Pepsi-Cola could do 1t, without a violation title VI.

But when we look at the colleges and universities themselves,
one of the ways is that the law recognizes that discriminators
ought to redress and remedy past discrimination. And that is one
of the things that is mentioned in the letter. We know, as I men-
tioned earlier, my State of Texas is one of those States that is a

t discriminator. While some of us may not like that idea, that

aRpens to be the fact.

nd so the State of Texas, having been a past discriminator, is in
a position to remedy and use race-specific conduct to do that. The
interpretation of the thinking that went into the letter is that, ap-
plying the principles of the Bakke case, that say that you can use
race as a factor among other factors to redress when we've identi-
fied that maybe a race—there’s under-representation and things of
that nature.

But it says that each individual still must be able to compete for
each financial aid opportunity for each scholarship, but race can,
indeed, be a factor. And then the last element that was in the
letter is that, obviously, we can use race-neutral criteria. We can
have scholarships for the low income, or scholarships for students
from single parent homes, or scholarships for students from school
districts that have not performed well: Race-neutral criteria.

And even if, in using that criteria, an overwhelming number of
those individuals end up being minorities, then that, in the inter-
pretation of December 4, would be consistent with title V1.

Mr. THoMas. In your judgment, would that be the case: If those
kinds of criteria were used, the overwhelming number of recipients
would be minorities?

Mr. WiLuiams. I'm not sure, I would imagine a demographer
would tell us that probably, if we looked at the economically disad-
vantaged, if we looked at people from poor school districts or poor
schools, if we looked at people who came from families that were
having some kind of suffering or some kind or disarray, that a good
portion of those would, indeed, be minorities. And some minority
students would, indeed, benefit from scholarship programs designed
in that fashion. But the law doesn’t say that scholarship programs
have to be race neutral.

And that’'s one of the reasons, Congressman, why it is somewhat
disconcerting to hear the notion that what 1 said on December 4
was that minority students couldn't go to college, because there are
any number of ways that even the December 4 letter identifies,
th}t:t cl:ould be used to provide opportunities for minority to go to
school.

Mr. THomas. Your responsibility, within the Department, is
what, specifically? Civil rights enforcement?

Mr. WirLLiams. In civil rights enforcement—there are four major
Federal civil rights laws in the area of education protecting indi-
viduals from discrimination based on race, national origin, color,
sex, handicap, and age. That's what we do.

-
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Mr. TroMAsS. So, as opposed to policy and determining the num-
bers and all that, your specific concern is adherence to the civil
rights law.

Mr. WiLLiams. We're a law enforcement office.

Mr. Tomas. I have no further questions.

Mr. WEiss. Thank you very much, Mr. Thomas. Just one point on
the questions that you raised: Mr. Williams, when the December 4
letter, announcement from your office, created an uproar, on De-
cember 18 there was a modification. And in that modification, the
news release that was issued from your office says, “Under Title
VI, however, private universities receiving Federal funds may not
fund race-exclusive scholarships with their own funds.” Now, that's
a new interpretation of title V1, isn't is?

Mr. WiLLiams. No, sir.

Mr. Wrss. OK. Mr. Payne, 1 think we'll call on you, at this
point.

Mr. Payne. Thank you very much. Your position with the De-

ment is, as you said, a civil rights enforcer. I'm just curious

ow the December 4 press release came about. You started reading

title VI and feit there had to be some enforcement of civil rights?
Is that your main job? Who's civil rights were you enforcing?

I'm glad that my colleague asked the question about your posi-
tion. But when you clarified it, that you are the enforcer of civil
rights, that even confused me somewhat more. So, maybe if you
can lay that out, slowly, I'll understand.

Mr. WiLLiams. Title VI starts off and it says, “No person shall be
discriminated against,” and in looking at what we learned was pos-
sible, f~om the Fiesta Bowl, that the Fiesta Bowl may, indeed, be
creating or allowing or assisting University of Louisville and Uni-
versity of Alabama to establish race-specific scholarships. The con-
cern was raised as follows: We have already discussed that States
that have discriminated in the past can, indeed, use race-specific
conduct; they can have race-specific scholarships.

Kentucky, Louisville, was one of those States, and they had, at
the time of December 4, race-specific scholarships. But the law also
says that the reason we allow people, institutions, to engage in
race-specific affirmative action is because they've discriminated in
the past. But once they are no longer deemed to be a discriminator,
then they can no longer engage in that kind of conduct.

At the same time in late November, when we were looking at, or
1 was looking at the Fiesta Bowl, we were also making the determi-
nation, or at least reviewing and looking at making the determina-
tion as to whether the State of Kentucky should now be deemed to
have complied with their higher education desegregation plan with
the Office for Civil Rights.

So, the consideration became: If the decision is made that Ken-
tucky has complied with the law and is no longer deemed to be a
discriminator, they would no longer be in the position of being able
to offer race-specific scholarships. So the question for me was: Do
you get in front of the curve and say, “There may be other ways to
do this,” or do you allow Louisville to go ahead and create the race-
specific scholarship, as the news accounts suggested that might,
and then have the charge that, “Well, why didn't you tell us,

17




14

before we did this, that we may not be in a position to do it?” So I
took the position to get . front of it.

If I could mention one other thing, and so you ask, “Well, who's
civil rights would be violated?” If they are no longer a discrimina-
tor, then there are any host number of students on that cam%us
that then, indeed, would be subject to the frotections of title VI.
They could be Hispanic students; they could be Asian American
students; they could be Arab American students: they could be
white students. All of those students, if the State of Kentucky had
been deemed to no longer be a discriminator, all of those students
would now be in a position to say that they deserve those—one
other thing is that during the con irmation, my confirmation, I re-
ceived a number of comments from your colleagues in the other
body, that suggested that OCR needed to be more proactive. And so
this was an attempt, as I've said before, to provide some kind of
technical assistance. And the press release was an attempt to give
notice to folks that that’s what we were doing.

The last thinking that went into it was that we have not had a
number of batters in this area in the past. But we do indeed have,
at the time of December 4, six complaints in the office alleging that
individuals in financial aid programs had been discriminated

-against, those individuals being nonblack individuals. And so, there
are sort of a myriad number of factors that went into it.

Mr. Wgsss. \aould the gentleman yield just for one question?

Mr. PaYNE. Yes.

Mr. Weiss. Mr. Williams, you'd already agreed, in questions that
I asked you earlier, that the title VI regulations say, for example,
“Even in the absence of such prior discrimination, a recipient in an
administering a program, may take affirmative action to overcome
the effects of conditions which resulted in limiting participation by
persons of icular race, color, or national origin.” So how can
you take the position that because Kentucky had corrected its
problems that it cannot utilize this provision of title VI?

Mr. WiLLiams. Because when we go, Congressman, to the Bakke
case. The Bakke case tells us a couple of things——

Mr. Weiss. The Bakke case has to do with admission.

Mr. WiLLiams. And the principles apply, as well, to financial aid.

Mr. Weiss. Not according to the language of the Bakke case, if
you read it. I'm sorry, Mr. Payne.

Mr. PavNE. That’s all right. As you said before, I probably should
pose some of these questions, quoting you, to “people who got upset
or got alarmed.” They would be better suited to answer these ques-
tions, concerning the impact on minority students. So, it's very
clear that, in your opinion, no damage was done or that the wrong
siﬂajs, which, in my opinion, were sent, went out from your office.

r. WiLLiams. [ would agree with a part of it. There is no doubt
in my mind that bad messages got to students and parents. I think
we may have some disagreement as to who caused the bad signals.

But without any doubt—and I think that’s the reason and that is
a justifiable reason for Secretary Alexander saying that now he
wants to conduct a review so that we can get to a licy of general
applicability in some due course. But there's no diggrence between
us that there were, indeed, some bad messages that were sent to
students and their parents.

)
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Mr. PayNE. Remembering what the Senators said, that they
really want to see a proactive OCR, the first thing you thought
abo.ut?was this? This was the way to get the civil rights division
active!

Mr. WiLLiams. No. As a matter of fact, what we did was, for the
first time in the history of the Office for Civil Rights, develop what
we call the national enforcement strategy, which outlines seven
high priority issues that we wish to address this year. Those issves
being: Limited English proficient students: Those thousands of stu-
dents that come into this country each year, or are already here
each year, that cannot speak English, and the need for schools to
provide them with educational services.

The second issue bein%‘ the question of ability grouping and
trackixtxg'. The allegation that elementary schools and high schools
are either inappropriately assigning minority students to either
lc:wl track classes or to classes that do not challenge them appropri-
ately.

A third issue being the questions of racial harassment and vio-
lence on our college campuses. Fourth being the question of the in-
creasing number that we will probably see, in our schools, of stu-
dents who are born with the addiction of their parents. Another
issue being the question of providing educational services for preg-
nant teens.

One that was indeed suggested, strongly, by Members of the
Senate, was trying to get a handle on providing and protecting the
civil rights of homeless students, homeless students with handi-
caps.

And so that was what was the initial effort of the Office for Civil
Rights, but again, we have a confluence of events. I think many of
the people to my left—on December 11, I announced the national
enforcement strategy to my staff. On December 12, we intended to
announce it to the world at a press conference that many of the
people to my left were at.

It _iust so happened that December 12 was also the day that an
article appeared on the front page of the New York Times regard-
ing this issue. And so most of, if not the great, great, great majori-
ty of the questions were directed not about the national enforce-
ment strategy, but about the question of minority scholarships. It
also happened to have been the day of the resignation of former
Secretary Cavazos.

Mr. Payne. OK. I'l] just ask one quick question to get back to the
point. You're looking at the future and, after all of these minority
students and everi university has complied and are ahead, you're
concerned about the future when other students might say, “Well
that applies to me.” The terminology you used is “deemed to have
complied with the law.” Now, you used the case of Kentucky, and
you said Kentucky had complied with the law.

Mr. WiLLiams. Not had, we were making the determination of
whether they had.

Mr. PaynE. OK.

Mr. WiLLiaMs. At the same time,

Mr. PayneE. What was your determination, since you made the
statement?

Mr. WiLLiams. We have not completed that, as a result of——
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Mr. PaYNE. But that was one of your worries in the case. This
might be out of step, but why didn’t you wait until you had at least
ﬁmg’hed studying Kentucky before you announced this new iaitic-
tive?

Mr. WiLLiams. Again, the reason being is because University of
Louisville is a State school in the State of Kentucky.

Mr. PAYNE. Right.

Mr. WiLLiaMs. And the concern was if Louisville goes ahead and
establishes a new set, or new group, of minority-limited scholar-
ships and then, in a short time after that, we determine that the
State of Kentucky has now complied with the law, then I think I
am open the question, “Why did you let us go ahead and do that, if
you were goinito stop us from doing it anyway? Why didn't you
Jjust tell us in the beginning?”’

Mr. PaynE. A lot of money could have been used for that other
purpose. In other words, it seemed like you were more anxious to
get this policy out. But the other part of my question is how a
person complies with what you think is compliance—is there no
consideration for 300 years, or 200 years, or 100 years, or 50 vears
of discrimination? When do you catch ug‘?

f you're in a race, and it's a 100-yard dash, and you start at the
starting line, and somebody’s at the 50-yard line, you're never
going to win. So are you concerned that the University of Louis-
ville has an overpreponderance of minorities getting sc olarships?

I mean, if you went there, would you see four or five minorities
to every two or three of all the other ple that are on scholar-
ships? In other words, you seem to be taking a needle in a haystack
and coming up with a major determination on your fear that the
dafr is going to come when we have overcompensated.

n 1976, 6.4 percent of minority students graduated with a bache-
lor's, in 1989, it fell to 5.7, and I'm not even getting into doctorate
or master's degrees, but you are coming up ahead of the wave. 1
just don’t know what you've been reading, or how you could come
up with such a drastic decision just almost shooting from the hip.

Your decision has got colleges in New dJersey, private institu-
tions, who have stopped. They say they don’t know what to do, and
therefore, they're not going to violate a law. More damage has been
done by your statement. ’l'ien 2 weeks later, you've made it strong-
er. You've made it positively no funds. I don’t even understand
that. After all the uproar, you came back in to make sure, that the
final nail was in the coffin.

How can you explain the December 1% statement that it says,

ere such scholarships are funded entirely by private persons,
or entities, that have restricted the funds to this purpose, an insti-
tution may administer such scholarships.” You went on, really, to
say that superseding title VI implementing regulations, absolutely
prohibits private colleges and universities from administering mi-
nority targeted scholarships from their own funds, no exceptions
provided. That even goes a few steps further, after the uproar. Did
t?e g?proar steam you up, fuel you up, to make sure it's really
clear?

Mr. WiLLiams. Let me see if I can go back with the first state-
ment about the recognition of many years of discrimination. Not
only do I recognize that there is a responsibility for past discrimi-

(2]
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nation remedied, the law does as well. And that is in the Fiesta
Bow! letter. It says that, “A recipient may adopt to participate in
race-exclusive financial aid programs when mandated to doso by a
court, or administrative order, court action plan, or settlement
agreement.” When it is a proven discriminator, they can, indeed,
e in race-specific conduct.

e second part, with regards to institutions in your State or in
States around the country that are asking the question, '"What do
we do now?” 1 think, the Secretary said today, fairly clearly, that
what you do now is to go about the business of trying your best to
get students into your school, and go about the business until the
Department says anything to the contrary.

And so if there needs to be another message sent then the mes-
sage is——

Mr. Pavy~E. Don’t say anything more, though, let somebody else
say it.

Mr. WiLLiams. No, if there is a message, the message should be
to go about the business of trying to encourage and bring students
onto that campus.

Mr. PaynEe. Alright, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Weiss. Thank you, Mr. Payne. Mr. Hobson? I'm pleased to,
in fact, recognize Mr. Hobson, who is a distinguished new member
from the State of Ohio.

Mr. Hosson. 1 have three things, and then I'd like to make a
statement at the end. Do you want to explain the Bakke case?

M- '"ViLLiaMs. Bakke sets out a number of principles. The first
one veing that, in order to engage in race-specific conduct, there
must be proven instances of discrimination against that race by
that particular institution. The second principle that 1 read in
Bakke, is that the question of societal discrimination, not discrimi-
nating against somebody at a specific institution, but the societal
discriminating against one or more race Or ethnic groups in the
past, is not a basis for engaging in race-specific remedial conduct.

A third issue is the one which we, at OCR, have in the past rec-
ognized in the second affirmative action provision in the regula-
tion. And is the guestion that even if you haven'’t been discriminat-
ing in the past, even absence of discrimination—and we r ize
that what you want on a college campus is something called diver-

sity.

%ut diversity on a college campus is, as I read Bakke, is some-
thing a little bit more than racial diversity. It means you want
income diversity, you want a rich kid, you want a poor kid, you
want one from the Midwest, you want one from the South, you
want a black kid, you want a white kid, you want a guy who
worked all summers, you want a guy who's never had to work a
day in his life, because you want a lot of different kinds of people.

And because you want, as the Court said, as Justice Powell said,
in Bakke, what you want is a robust exchange of ideas; and you get
that by having a lot of different kinds of people, but not just race
diversity. And so what is in the December 4 letter, as part of the
analysis of Bakke, is that you can use race as a factor, among other
factors, to make a determination about who to provide financial as-
sistance to.
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Mr. HoBsON. Let me tell you what I think is a Pmblem. I happen
to sit on the board of an hxstoricalolgoblack school. Most of our stu-
dents come from families of $15, or less, econnmically. There
are first-time students in that institution, the first family member
to go to a school. And, I think, probably, you look through the Jaw
and maybe, technically, correctly, on the law, you were right. I
don’t know. I don't practice law anymore; never did really. Maybe 1
just know enough law to be dangerous.

But the message that came out, and what comes out to a lot of
people, is that there's an insensitivity to the problems that a lot of
people face in society in gaining access to education and to opportu-
nity. And that many of us have tried, for a long time, in our own
wa{s, to gain that access and to assist people in the—while techni-
cally, legally, I don’t want to %et into that argument, because I'm
not qualified to get into that.
tion, I don’t know.

But to the body politic, in many instances, or certainly, to those

ple who were looking for ways to assist people, it appeared to
ave a negative—and it does, I think—or a chilling effect on a lot
of things that they might try to do, or want to do, even though it
may be technically—and I don’t know how, maybe this is that
other thing I want to know—but do you understand, in retrospect
what resulted in a lot of people’s thinking about the policy of your
Department, of the administration, as to the result of what hap-
pened? Or was there any contemplation of that, before it came out?
Or maybe you didn’t have a chance to get it out before that hap-
pened, but was there any understanding of that?

Mr. WiLLiams, Obviously, I share the concern about the message
that was sent, and also share the concern about the impression
that, in some kind of way, either we, or I, or the administration,
lack the appropriate level of compassion about folks who may be
disadvantaged. If the question is, quite frankly, how much of that
went into play in the ember 4 letter, I have to tell you that I
look at, quite frankly—and many people will disagree—but 1 look
at OCR as an enforcement office. And 1 feel uncomfortable with
looking at those wide range of other kinds of issues that's for, quite
frankly, for the balance of the Department, for many other people
in the Department to look at those issues along with us.

L-have to tell you that there would be a whole lot more thinkin
about that, in the future. But it's an enforcement office, and
think we have to be careful when you have enforcement official
licking their fingers and sticking them up in the wind and trying
to figure out which way the wind’s blowing.

Mr. HossoN. It's not a question of necessarily wind, I think it’s a
question of sensitivity and compassion for some other people, and
somebody along the fi,ne has got to say, “Hey, this may be techni-
cal?r correct here, but is it the right thing to do for all people?”
And I think somebody along the line had to say, “Hey, wait a
minute, are we sending the right signals when we do this?”’ And,
apparently, that didn't happen, or if it did, it wasn't listened to
someplace, along the line.

But I can also tell you that there are a lot of people out there
that don't care how they get that scholarship, whether it's race
specific, or not, if that's the way they're going to get into the

ou may have taken the right posi-
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system and the way they’re going to be able to advance. Because
when you come from a family that’s $15,000, or less, of income and
you're the first person to ever go to school, you're looking at what-
ever you can do to get into that environment and to try to stay in
that environment.

And one of the problems, if you look &t the number of medical
students today, it has dramatically dropped in the minority popula-
tion. And we tried, when I was on the board of another school, Cen-
tral State, to get kids so they could get into medical school, and we
did, and that program has since been dropped, unfortunately.

1 want to go back to another technical question, then I'll stop my
philosophizing, but I think philosophy plays a role that maybe
wasn't sensitive enough in this situation. From a technical stand-
point, how does a State become a nondiscriminator, or how does it
cure itself from those past activities that have contributed to this. 1
find that interesting, because 1 don’t where my State complies, and
I'm not sure we do enough in my State; I'm sure we don’t, from
what I've seen. But how do you form a criteria for that?

Mr. WiLLiams, We start with 17 States that had dual systems.
They had, at one time, a school that only white students would go
to, and they had another school that only black students would go
to. And since I've used my State of Texas quite often, in the past,
we had Texas Southern and Prayerview A & M, and so we had a
dual system in Texas.

And what has happened is that those States entered, either by
court order, were told that there were certain things that you must
do, a checklist. You either build facilities at the black school, or
you engage in certain kinds upgrade of departments, at one school
or the other, to attract students of different races. But eitl:er by
court order, or by an agreement with the Office for Civil Rights,
depending upon how you were determined to have been a past dis-
criminator, there are things that you had to do.

After having done them, if it's a court ordered plan, a Federal
judge makes the determination that you've com lied with his court
order. It is a plan with the Office for Civil Rights, then the Office
for Civil Rights determines whether you have complied with the
agreement that you have with the Office for Civil Rights, and
that's how one, in a nutshell fashion, becomes releasels and be-
comes deemed to be a nondiscriminator.

Mr. Hosson. How often has this occurred? Texas is out, or——

Mr WiLiiams, Texas is under review, at the current time, 1
think. As the chairman mentioned, there were 17 States, and I
think 10 were released prior to 19§9.

Mr. Hosson. I guess there are a lot of us out there that are in-
volved in schools, that will take the money any way we can find
the money for those kids, and then you can sue us later, if you
want, but we’ll get some kids through. And 1 just hope that, as a
result of this, there is more sensitivity to this issue. I think one of
the things that is needed is not only compassion, but sensitivity to
words and to actions and how they appear, beyond the legal side, to

le in society as they function and try to achieve good status.

If I look at your background, you've got a wonderful background.
1 just want to see more people be able to do the same things that
you've done.
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Mr. WiLLiaMs. The objective of Secretary Alexander, the review,
is to, indeed, do those kinds of things. I mean, to do a deliberate
review and to do it in a way that no matter where we go, we keep
our eye on the ball. And the ball is that, within the constraints of
the law, to try to find the ways to provide as much opportunity for
folks as possible.

If I could go back to your comment about the HBCU's, it is very
unlikely that what was in the December 4 letter would have affect-
ed your students, in light of the fact that I doubt that an HBCU
has race-designated scholarships; it would not have to. Just because
the majority of the students may be black, would not mean that
those are race-specific scholarships, scholarships could be any kind.

Mr. HossoN. It's just the chilling fact that——

Mr. WiLuiams. I recognize that.

Mr. Weiss. Thank you very much, Mr. Hobson. Mr. Williams, I'd
asked you earlier if Mr. Richard Komer was here, and I asked you
to attempt to get him here before we had to use other process. Is
Mr. Komer here?

Mr. WiLLiams. He is not in the room, sir.

Mr. Wxiss. Well, then, at this point we will undertake some ad-
ministrative business. On February 28, I requested that the Assist-
ant Secretary for Civil Rights and his Deputy Assistant Secretary
for Policy appear before the subcommittee, to testify about the mi-
nority scholarship policy.

Richard Komer, the Deputy Assistant Secretary, apparently re-
fuses to testify. We still have not heard the testimony of the key
individuals who formulated the minority scholarship policy. The
Department has forced my hand, I have no choice but to seek a
subpoena for the testimony of Richard Komer, Deputy Assistant
S_ecr;atary for Civil Rights, before proceeding. Is there any discus-
sion?

Mr. Tuomas. Mr. Chairman, I'm reserving the right to object.
This is sort of a new experience to me, but it's my understanding
that the normal process is that subpoenas are issued in the case of
some kind of illegal process, and not in the matter of policy. This is
a question of policy, and I would ask you what the precedence is
and what the position is, with regard to subpoenas on policy.

Mr. Weiss. The precedent is that Federal employees are invited
by committees of Congress to appear before 'hem. If they do not
respond to the invitation then, regardless of what the matter is,
whether it is policy, whether it is illegalities, whatever, then the
committees, or Congress itself, have the power to issue subpoenas.
And that's the way that the subcommittee, and the committee
itself, has operated, over the years. Any further discussion?

Mr. PaynE. No, Mr. Chairman, other than that we've been
through this before, and it's not a new policy. I think, last year, we
met on subpoenas before, as was the policy of the committee.

Mr. Weiss. I move that the subcommittee, then, if there is no fur-
ther discussion, authorize the issuance of a subpoena to require the
appea;gnce of the Deputy Assistant Secretary for Policy. Is there a
second’

Mr. PAvyNE. | second the motion.

Mr. Wesss. OK.
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Mr. TuoMmas. Mr. Chairman, may [ inquire again about the proc-
ess? Do we have the proper number here for a qQuorum?

Mr. WEiss. A quorum is present.

Mr. THoMas. Well, Mr. Horton does not support this idea, and 1
don’t intend to support it either.

Mr. Weiss. Right. 1 have the highest regard for you and for Mr.
Horton. The vote now occurs on the subpoena, the clerk will call
the roll.

Ms. Atkins. Mr. Weiss.

Mr. WEiss. Yes.

Ms. ATKINS. Mr. Waxman.

Mr. WEiss. Aye by proxy.

Ms. ATkINs. Mr. Payne.

Mr. PAYNE. Aye.

Ms. ATKINS. Mrs. Mink.

Mrs. Mink. Aye.

Ms. ATkins, Ms. DelLauro.

Mr. Weiss. Aye by proxy.

Ms. Atxins. Mr. Thomas.

Mr. TuomMas. No.

Ms. ATkins. Mr. Zeliff.

Staff CounsgL. No by proxy.

Ms. Arkins. Mr. Hobson.

Ms. ATkiInNs. Mr. Sanders.

Mr. SANDERS. Aye.

Ms. ATxins. Six aye, two nay.

Mr. WEiss. And the subpoena has been voted by the subcommit-
tee. We will now return to questions. Let me just touch on a couple
of items that——

Mrs. Mink. Mr. Chair, may I just make a brief statement?

Mr. WEiss. Of course, Mrs. Mink.

Mrs. Mink. I cannot apologize more grievously on not being able
to participate in this very, very important hearing you've sched-
uled, an issue which I care very deeply about. And I would be here
except that we are on a mark-up state in Education and Labor on
the family and medical leave bill, so I must excuse myself, again, to
go back to deal with the amendments.

Mr. Wriss. I fully understand and if you'd like to make some
opening comment while you're——

Mrs. Mink. If I might have permission to have leave to insert my
remarks, at this point, in the——

Mr. WEeiss, Absolutely so. Without objection, that will be——

Mrs. Mink. Thank you very much.

Mr;7 Wesss, Mr. Sanders, would you like to make an opening com-
ment’

Mr. SANDERS. Not at this time.

Mr. Wkiss. Thank you. First, as to the Bakke decision, and with-
out going into it, at great length, what we're talking about here,
what your statements and letters and initiatives and policies of De-
cember 1990 involved were scholarships to students who had al-
ready been admitted into colleges and universities. What Bakke
was dealing with was the admission of a student into a institution
of higher education on the basis of race.
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And the Department of Education issued, in the Federal Regﬁ_ter
of October 10, 1979, a policy interpretation, coming from the Office
for Civil Rights and its summary of policy interpretation, it said,
briefly, “The Department has reviewed the Supreme Court’s deci-
sion on Bakke. It has determined that voluntary affirmative action
may include, but is not limited to, the following: Consideration of
race, color, or national origin, among the factors evaluated in se-
lecting students; increased recruitment in minority institutions and
community; use of alternative admissions criteria when traditional
criteria are found to be inadequately predictive of minority stu-
dents’ success; provision of pre-admission compensatory and tutori-
al programs; and the establishment and pursuit of numerical goals
to achieve the racial and ethnic composition of the student body
the institution seeks.”

I can hardly see how, at this stage, you can argue that Bakke
forces you to adopt the position that you did.

Mr. WiLuiams. If I could respond, Mr. Chairman. Since that time,

oing back to May 2, 1986, in a letter from then Acting Assistant
retary Alicia Corro, in a document that I think has been provid-
ed to your staff, with regards to a scholarship that was being cre-
ated for Dutch-Americans, it does, indeed say, on the second page
in the next to the last paragraph, that, “Any determination, with
respect to the legality of the scholarship program mentioned in
your letter, would take into consideration the title VI regulation,
the Bakke case, and other relevant case law.”

Following that, in 1986, in a similar advisory to the Southwest
Missouri State University, on page 3, in the first full raragraph. it
has the same language, with regards to the applicability of Bakke
to the area of financial aid. We have indeed, sir, applied Bakke to
financial assistance prior to my December 4 letter.

Mr. WEerss. You're telling us then that the policy interpretation,
printed in the Federal Register of October 10, 1979, has been re-
scinded by advisory letters to universities or colleges or recipients?

Mr. WiLLiams. I'm saying that they have been the regulation, the
second item, section 100(b}6Xii), that states that a recipient may
use affirmative action, has been read and interpreted in a way that
applies Bakke.

r. Weiss. In the face of the Federal Register interpretation.
OK. Let me go to another point. You continued to say that, in fact,
your statements during December were not policy changes. The De-
cember 18 clarification, issued from your office, is headlined *De-
partment Issues Policy Statement on Race-exclusive Scholarships.”

Firg;dparagraph: “The U.S. Department of Education, today, an-
noun a six point administrative policy regarding race-exclusive
scholarships to prevent disruption to the efforts of colleges,” et
cetera. In the face of that, I don't know how you can continue to
say that what you announced was not a policy change or policy de-
termination.

Mr. WirLLiams. I think it is probably fair to say that what I said
was, what I announced, on December 4, was not a change in policy.
There are, indeed, policy announcements on December 18 that I, on
behalf of the Department of Education, announced.

hMr. WEeIss. Oh, so the December 18 statement was a policy
change.
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Mr. WiLuiams. There is a policy interpretation difference on De-
cember 18.

Mr. Weiss. OK. Now, did those policy changes go through all the
mg;xirements of the Administrative Act?

r. WiLuiAms. They did not.

Mr. Wgiss. No, sir. And not printed in the Federal Register?

Mr. WiLLiAMs. They were not.

Mr. WEiss. No public comment?

Mr. WiLLiams. There was none, other than the free-for-all before,
but no, there was not.

Mr. WEiss. Were you the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights on
Mg 1, 1990?

r. WiLLiams. No, I was not.

Mr. Weiss. On May 1, 1990, Richard D. Komer, of the OCR cen-
tral office sent a memorandum to the civil rights director in region
4, suggesting that Florida Atlantic University be investigated as
part of a compliance review. Mr. Komer is not here, yet, to testify
about that, and I don't really want your second-hand testimony
about it. We'll get it from Mr. Komer.

You are aware of the fact that the new policy change, whether of
December 4 or 11th or 18th, was, in fact, under discussion before
ﬁouhar;'ived as the new Assistant Secretary for the Office for Civil

ights?

r. WiLLiams. We will continue to have the discussion about
whether it was a change or not. I am aware——

Mr. Weiss. Well, you said that, as far as the 1¥th is con-
cerned——

Mr. WiLLiams, The 18th, the policy changed with that provision
that dealt with the use of privately designated funds, and that
would be the policy change.

Mr. WEiss. Right. OK.

Mr. WiLLiams. The balance of that, 1 would still contend, would
not have been a policy change. ] am aware that the Office for Civil
Rights was, indeed, developing a policy guidance document, prior to
my arrival.

Mr. WEiss. So that, in essence, you found this initiative under-
way and, in essence, in motion toward action by the time you ar-
rived; that you didn't conceive this——

Mr. WiLLiams. There was activiti, yes

Mr. Weiss. You didn't conceive this initiative by yourself.

Mr. WiLuiams. I did not conceive the development of the policy
guidance document; that’s correct.

Mr. Wess. Did you adopt the policy because of Mr. Komer's rep-
resentations to you?

Mr. WiLLiams. No. 1 have gone through the law and had read it
myself while Dick was .«t the Department, before I was—I have to
say that I share in what's in December 4; it's over my hand. and
that’s me.

Mr. Weiss. Did Mr. Komer draft the December 4 letter?

Mr. WiLriams. No. The December 4 letter was drafted by a
number of people. It was drafted, as most things in OCR, at the
staff level, and then it goes through the process. It had my com-
ments and changes through it. As the folks at OCR know, 1 use a
red pen, and I mark up most things.
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Mr. Weiss. Who first brought the Fiesta Bowl situation to your
attention as a matter which you would want to pursue.

Mr. WiLLiams. A stafl attorney, in the Office of Postsecondary
Education, brought it directly to me, and then, I called Dick.

l\gr. Weiss. What did you say to Dick, Dick being Mr. Komer,
yes?

Mr. WiLuiams. Yes. A staff attorney brought it to me, having just
read an article in one of the sports pages in somebody’'s newspaper,
and said that there may be something that would be of concern. 1
said, “Look into it,” and told Dick that the staff attorney was going
to look into it and keep his eye on it.

Mr. Wkiss. That these folks are going to provide some minority
scholarships; we ought to go after them?

Mr. WiLLiams. That's not the way the conversation went. The
conversation was that, as I have explained before, in light of our
situation with the State of Kentucky. and how it may impact upon
that situation and that review.

Mr. Weiss. Were the schools involved in the Fiesta Bowl from
States that had been found to discriminate in the past?

Mr. WiLLiams. Both. As 1 mentioned to Mr. Payne earlier, yes.

Mr. WEiss. But isn't it true that even in cases where past dis-
crimination has not been found, the Bakke guidelines encourage
colleges and universities to take voluntary affirmative action?

Mr. WiLuiams. They encourage them to do so in a specific kind of
way, and that would be use race as a variable among othcr varia-
bles, but not in a race-specific way. You cannot earmark scholar-
ships off to the side, and say, ‘These scholarships are for one mi-
nority group or the other.” And what you must do is to say that
every student on that campus, irrespective of race or color, com-
petes for that scholarship. and race is one factor that you can give
a plus factor to, among other factors.

Mr. Wesss. Is the Department of Education investigating any mi-
nority scholarship programs, in addition to the Fiesta Bowl?

Mr. WiLuiams. Yes. And at this point, the Department has re-
ceived complaints, I think, as | mentioned earlier, on December 4
we had six complaints. We are investigating those complaints. We
will not be issuing any letters of finding on any of those complaints
until after the review is being conducted currently.

Mr. WEeiss. In a memorandum about your investigation about the
Oregon State Board of Higher Education, Mr. Komer writes that
the Office for Civil Rights will rely on Bakke in determining the
validity of affirmative action programs. But then, Mr. Komer goes
on to criticize the State of Oregon’s goal to “'increase the enroll-
ment of blacks, Hispanics, and Native Americans.” How is that
goal inconsistent with the Office for Civil Rights own public guid-
ance on affirmative action?

Mr. WiLLiAMs. | am not in a position to answer that, Congress-
man.

Mr. Wesss. In a draft report, you claim that the State of Oregon
is in violation of civil rights law because its tuition grant program
to attract minorities excludes certain races and ethnic groups. Can
you tell me what you found the purpose of the Oregon minority re-
cruitment plan to be?
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Mr. WiLuams. Congressman, that is a pending investigation, and
it would be inappropriate for me to discuss many of those matter
at this time, I would think.

Mr. WEiss. Well, the Department’s letter of finding is a matter of
public record, at this point, isn't it? It's a draft?

Mr. WiLLiams. The draft letter has not, and 1 think our agree-
ment—and I may be wrong, and staff may be in a position to pro-
vide that information to me—is that that information would not be
released to the public; it is for the purposes of this committee in
your internal deliberation.

Mr. Weiss. I'm asking you questions, at this point. I won't pursue
that question, but I think that the earlier question that 1 asked
makes a point. How does the percentage of white high school grad-
uates entering college in Oregon compare to the percentage of
black, Hispanic, and Native American high school graduates at-
tending college, in the State?

Mr. WiLtzams. I don’t know, but I would suspect it's higher.

Mr. Weiss, Well, 16 percent of whites go to college, while less
than 9 percent of blacks, Hispanics, and Native Americans go on to
college. Twice as many whites go to college, in Oregon, as minorit
students, and you found the State was trying to correct this imbal-
ance; is that right?

Mr. WiLLiaMs. That's what they were attempting to do.

Mr. WEss. In this case, did you also find that title VI “provides
that in even the absence of prior discrimination, a recipient mag
take affirmative action to overcome the effects of conditions whic
resulted in limiting participation by persons of a particular race,
color, or national origin?”

Mr. WiLLiams. That is in the regulation. They may do that. It's a
question of how you do it, and I will refer, again, to Bakke that
says that you can give race a plus factor.

ts probably also helpful, in this discussion, to look at, as we are
discussing it, that the complainant, in that case, as we talk about
minorities, the complainant. in that case, is an Asian American
female that has alleged that the tuition waiver program of the
State of Oregon deprives her of an opportunity to go to college, be-
cause she is rot entitled to that tuition waiver, because the tuition
waiver is only for blacks, Hispanics, and Native Americans.

Mr. Weiss. Right. She found the Oregon program to be illegal be-
cause it excludes whites and Asian Americans; is that correct?

Mr. WiLLiams. The complainant is Asian American.

Mr. Wgiss. Did your report find that 95 percent of the students
in Oregon colleges are white or Asian Americans?

Mr. WiLLiAMS. That is a draft report, and if that is in the report,
then that would be———

Mr. Weiss. How many white or Asian students who are academi-
cally qualified for Oregon colleges and assorted missions were
denieg entrance to school because of the State’s recruitment pro-

m?

Mr. WiLLiams. 1 have no persona) knowledge of that.

Mr. Wess. Our information is that the answer is zero. But how
can you reach a conclusion about a case without knowing whether,
in fact, students were denied entrance or how many were denied
entrance?
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Mr. WiLLiaMS. Because the question that is presented is; Is the
financial aid constructed in a way that violates title VI? And when
there is an Asian American female that says that she has been
denied an opportunity for the tuition waiver, which means she
can’'t—the tuition waiver allows you to go to school for absolutely
free—because she is not one of the minority groups that is pre-
ferred in this icular program.

. l\glr. Weiss. 1 gather that your finding in the Oregon case is not
inal.

Mr. WiLLiaMms. That's correct; it is not final.

Mr. WEss. In conducting it's investigations and compliance re-
views of colleges and universities, the Office for Civil Rights often
compares the numbers and percentages of white students with mi-
nority students. Why is that done?

Mr. WiLLiams. White students and minority students at the uni-
versity?

Mr. Wgiss. At universities, generally.

Mr. WiLriams. To get some idea, simply, of what's going on at
the university and what the representation is at the university.

Mr. Wgiss. To determine if there is a statistical evidence of dis-
crimination, right?

Mr. WiLuiams. No, to determine whether there may be conditions
that limit participation. That's the reason for looking at it.

Mr. Wriss. Do the Department statistics show that black stu-
dents have overcome the effects of discrimination?

Mr. WiLLiaMms. The Office for Civil Rights doesn’t engage in wide-
spread studies of that nature to determine that.

Mr. Weiss. Well, you certainly did in regard to the 10 States
which had court mandated requirements because of vestiges of dis-
crimination.

Mr. WiLuiams. Mr. Chairman, in looking at and in making that
determination, not having been at OCR, at the time, what OCR, as
my understanding, did was to look at did that State comply with
the agreement that they had with OCR, not did they actually in-
crease the numbers of minorities in their higher education system.
Did they build a chemistry department at a particular college? Did
they enhance the chemistry departments somewhere else? Those
are the things that they were asked to do.

One other thing, as we are on that subject, we will probably be
getting more guidance, quite frankly, on how to make those deter-
minations as there is an application for certiorari on the Supreme
Court now.

Mr. Weiss, In the report published in January 1991, by the De-
partment of Education, called ‘‘Race Ethnicity Trends and Degrees
Conferred by Institutions of Higher Education, 1978-1988,” con-
tained the following: The number of undergraduate degrees award-
ed to blacks fell from 60,125 to 58,016; the percentage of the total,
from 6.6 percent to 5.7 percent. The number of black master’s de-
grees fell from 19,993 to 14,076; the percentage of the total, from
6.6 percent to 4.6 percent. The number of doctoral degrees fell from
1,267 to 1,071; the percentage from 3.9 percent to 3 percent. That
your department does maintain those statistics.

The Department of Education has chosen to allow the lapsing of
desegregation plans for systems of higher education in 10 southern
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and border States that had practiced illegal segregation in the past.
Did the Department find that the desegregation plans eliminated
the vestiges of past discrimination?

Mr. WiLuianms. I have no knowledge of what the past determina-
tions found. I was not at the Department at the time.

Mr. Weiss. Well, an internal memorandum, reviewed by the sub-
committee at its last hearing on OCR, stated that the States “have
not heretofore even approximated what might be considered the
elimination of the vestiges of dual systems.”

The subcommittee’s review also found that the statistics in most
of the States worsened over the course of the desegregation plans,
and that the plans were failures. Also, the statistics indicate that,
in most cases, the records of State schools worsened, over the
course of the plans. Would you argue with that?

Mr. Wirniams. 1 have no personal knowledge, either way, of that,
Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Weiss. Thank you. Mr. Thomas.

Mr. THoMas. I have no further questions for this witness. It
seems to me, we've sort of gone beyond the question, here. This de-
cision has not been changed. We're looking forward, now, to a proc-
ess, and that's the one I think we ought to focus on. I have no fur-
ther questions.

Mr. Wriss. Thank you, Mr. Thomas. Mr. Payne.

Mr. PaynEe. Earlier, you indicated that there were some other
p s, similar to the Fiesta Bowl scholarship program, that
you re investigating.

Mr. WiLLiams. Yes.

Mr. PayNE. What are those?

Mr. WiLLiams. We have, at this current time, seven pending com-
plaints. We have the Oregon matter; we have a matter involving
the State of Ohio that has a loan program that makes distinctions.
I think what the allegation is, is that students have to major in a

icular subject in order to keep the loan. We have a complaint
in the State of Wisconsin, filed by an Asian American student
saying that they—it's a scholarship for minority students, but
Asians are not included.

There is a complaint at a school in Indiana. The allegation is
that in the scholarship for minority students, Asians are, indeed,
one of the kinds of minority students that are a part of it, but the
scholarship doesn’t provide for Indian American students.

There are two complaints in the State of Florida, one at Florida
Atlantic University and one at the University of Florida, where the
race-specific scholarships are designated solely for black students.
The other two, quite frankly, I have forgotten, and 1 would have to
provide those to you at some time.

Mr. PAYNE. So your push is, more or less, to protect other mi-
norities. You mentioned in your discussion that your major concern
now, is that Asian students are being shut out; they're usually dis-
advantased; they're usually those that need extra help to get in.
And therefore, your Department’s major thrust is to protect Asian
students because of the——

Mr. WiLLiams. Congressman, our major thrust is to protect the
federally protected rights of students, irrespective of whatever race
they may be. Title VI says, as I had mentioned before, starts off
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with, “No person shall be discriminated against.” Plus, to directly
respond to your question about the focus on Asian students, in our
appropriation for this year, there is a special earmarking that tells
us that we must spend at least $250,000 to address the reviews of
discrimination against Asians in the admissions process.

Those are complaints; we did not go seeking those six, or so, mat-
ters that I mentioned to you. Those are things that are brought to
us. But is there a greater focus on Asians, as opposed to Arab
Americans, as opposed to Hispanic Americans, as opposed to black
Americans? The answer would be no. Our responsibility is to pro-
tect the federally protected right of all students.

Mr. Payne. All right. But in the discussion earlier, when Chair-
man Weiss was talking, you kept referring to Bakke and admis-
sions, and we're talking about financial scholarships. That's what
I'm primarily concerned about.

And if you take the number, probably, of Asians who need either
financial aid or are not getting scholarships based on ability, you
find very few excluded. If you take the same criteria for other mi-
norities, like blacks, who have continually been behind, you find 2
grave disproportion and a declining number of students getting de-

ees.

So, I'm confused as to why the Department, at a time when we
find that African Americans are joining the armed services because
they lack the ability to go to college, because they lack financial
ability, they go into the military to get benefits. In my city of
Newark, NJ there are very few jobs because of the declining
number of persons in higher education and we find the tremendous
negative health statistics in our community, infant mortality going
up and so forth. And of all the things that the Department of Edu-
cation decides to do is to have a frontal assault against scholar-
ships based to minorities.

Let me just ask you a question. When did you start with the De-
partment?

Mr. WiLuiams. July 6, 1990.

Mr. PaAYnNE. Where were you prior to that?

Mr. WiLiiams. Department of Treasury.

Mr. PaAYNE. You know, they really need good people in the De-
partment of Justice to really go out aggressively. 1 wish you were
over there.

Mr. WiLLiams, | have been.

Mr. PavynE. OK, well it would be good to reapply there because—
I'm baffled as to why the Department of Education would, at this
point, take on this issue with such fervor and zeal.

Mr. WiLuiams. Congressman, it obviously does appear that there
is a great deal of zeal. There was, as 1 will say again, this was a
letter that offered assistance to the Fiesta Bowl on how to go about
the business of designing a scholarship that would, indeed, advance
financial aid opportunity for minority students. It was not an effort
to say, “Let's go and find out who's got a scholarship for minority
students, and let's see if we can stop it.” That wasn’t the design of
it; that wasn’t the intent.

Mr. Payne. Well, what was the result?

Mr. WiLLiams. The result may, indeed, have been that.
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Mr. Payne. They always say that the proof of the pudding is in
eating; the result is the bottom line. You could have a company
that is the greatest companir in the world and is bankrupt at the
end of the year. So the result of that letter, as I indicated, even in
my State where private institutions are currently saying that, “We
wish we could continue, but we are unclear about the law in light
of a declining minority participation in higher education,” is nega-
tive.

How is this Nation ever going to move forward if the Depart-
ment of Education's Civil Rights Division is going to make it tough
for the colleies and higher learning institutions that might at-
tempt to do the right thing, or private institutions, like the Fiesta
Bow! who decided they wanted to help disadvantaged minority.
black students? I'm trying to understand the intent.

I\gaWImAMS. The intent was to provide the assistance, as I sug-
gested.

Mr. Payne. But they were doing all right. What kind of assist-
ance did you offer, other than have them not do it?

Mr. WiLLiams, We have, indeed, been in contact with the people,
and talked to those individuals. But the other thing is the question
about whether there was a frontal assault. There was not a frontal
assault. And whether the proof is in the pudding, we have no con-
trol over how other folks read it.

There were a number of mistakes that were made. Obviously,
there were mistakes in the way we communicated. Mr. Hobson
talked about in the manner of messages, and there were, obviously,
mistakes made in that. But the letter itself offered technical assist-
ance. If we ask where was the problem, or if it ain’t broke don't fix
it, we know that, at least in six instances, somebody thinks that
the system is broke. And we have a responsibility to protect those
federally protected rights of all students that are out there, each
and every one of those.

Mr. PAYNE. We're aware of that, and we want every student to
be protected. 1 want every Asian and Native American, or other
g;‘oup to be protected. I'm net ~aying that I think anyone should be

iscriminated against. It's j.  hat after you put out that letter,
and then you said, *Well, you n..0w, they just read it wrong,” and
say, “Come to see us and we'll give you some technical assistance.”’
That's like going to someone wﬁ]o just robbed you and asking them
to show you the way home. How comfortable would institutions be?

You're releasing this statement that gets worldwide acclaim, and
turning around and saying, “‘But we’re here to help you. We're
going to give you some technical assistance.” I'm so disturbed at
the declining statistics as related to African Americans, in this
country. Then, when you find a group wanting to enhance things
that are on the decline—because we make America better when all
people are performing, the Department of Education blocks that
action.

And so, what kind of signal does this send? That's the thing
that’s more disturbing, the signal that it sends to higher education.
Everyone’s in favor of higher education. Mrs. Bush met Dr. Sulli-
van because she sat on the board of Morehouse, and he’s the Secre-
tary of Health. I don’t know anyone who really feels that we need
to take a frontal attack on higher education.
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And that’s, actually, the interpretation of what your December
activities have done. It has, actually, slowed down and stopped
some activity where people say, ‘I don’t really want to get involved
anymore.” You don't even need to respond to that. I don't have any
more qvt:restions, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Wgiss. Thank you very much, Mr. Payne. Mr. Sanders.

Mr. Sanpers. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Let me pick up some of
the points that Congressman Payne was raising and tell you what
mi' major concern is about the situation.

t is no secret that in this country, today, we have a major crisis
in terms of the affordability of rf‘;igher education, not just for
blacks, or whites, or Asians. The cost of college education is zoom-
ing off of the wall. I'm a U.S. Congressman, and I can tell you my
wife and I have had to borrow money to send our kids to college.

What disturbs me is that what I see happening, in terms of these
actions and this discussion, is that they happen instead of focusing
on the crisis of the affordability of higher education, to ask why it
is that there are fewer black students in college today, why work-
ing class white kids cannot afford to go to college. That's what we
should be investigating.

What does it mean to millions of families, in this country, that
they can't send their kids, black, white, Asian, to college; that's the
issue. And my concern, Mr. Chairman, is that out of the actions of
the administration in this area, what you're going to have—and I
don’t think it's by accident, I have to say, in afl due respect, I don't
think you developed this overall policy—but there is going to be a
type of conflict between white working class families and black
families.

So instead of having the debate as to how we can all send our
kids to college, you're going to have white families say, “Gee, it's
not fair, this black family is getting the money, we're not.” And
you're going to be talking about dividing people who should be
coming together.

So, my major concern is that I do not want to see a process by
which working-class people, white, black, or anybody else, are di-
vided in fighting for a smaller and smaller part of the educational
pie. I want to see the administration come forward and say, “We're
providing more money. Every kid in this country has a right to go
to college. We're deeply concerned about what’s happening in the
black communities. Let’s all work together.”

But I fear that these types of actions divide our people, rather
than bring them together, and not let us focus on the most impor-
tant issue. My question is: Don't you agree? [Laughter.]

Mr. WiLLiams. I would obviously agree that there is a great deal
of effort and work that's available for all of us, in terms of trying
to provide ogportunities. And I hope that through the review proc-
ess, while the review process will not be, necessarily, addressing
new funds, hopefully we can figure out a way that we can identify
how do you provide scholarships and financial assistance to all stu-
dents in a way that is not divisive. That is a concern that we share.

I have to admit that I'm not in the loop as it relates to new
moneys, but I am in the loop as it relates to how we might be able
to address this issue in a way that may not be divisive. And in that
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sense, I, obviously, share that with you. I share some of the other
concerns as well.

Mr. SanpErs. Thank you.

Mr. Wgiss. Thank you, Mr. Sanders. I have a few mor: questions.
In the area where I really would have preferred Mr. Komer to tes-
tify—and I still hope that he will do so, personally. And 1 should
tell you, incidentally, there is a second panel, as you know, and if
he comes to us before the hearing is concluded, he can avert the
issuing of the subpoena; that's up to him.

But, let me ask you if you're aware that cn May 1, 1990, Mr.
Richard D. Komer, of the OCR central office, sent a memorandum
te the civil rights director in region 4, suggesting that Florida At-
lantic University be investigated as part of a compliance review;
are you aware of that?

Mr. WiLLiams. 1 am aware of that.

Mr. Weiss. OK. Do you know why Mr. Komer suggests that Flori-
da Atlantic be investigated?

Mr. WiLLiams. It's my understanding that the office received a
complaint.

Mr. Weiss. Well, in the beginning, apparently he read an article
about the school, describing a minority scholarship plan which he,
evidently, believed was in violation of title V1. Now, Florida Atlan-
tic University had instituted the plan, because the Florida State
Board of Regents had directed it to increase its enrollment to main-
tain compliance with State minority enrollment requirements;
that’s true, isn't it?

Mr. WiLuianms. 1 have no personal knowledge of that. If you are
reading it from my document, then | would stand by the document.

Mr. WEeiss. Was this the first time that a university in this coun-
try offered minority scholarships?

Mr. WiLLianms. I would doubt that, very seriously, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Wziss. Right. Now, are you aware as to whether Mr. Komer
had discussions with anyone at the Washington Legal Foundations
about using title VI to ban race-specific scholarships?

Mr. WiLLiams. | have no personal knowledge as to whether Rich-
ard had any conversations with anyone at Washington Legal Foun-
dation. I am aware that Washington Legal Foundation did file a
complaint with the Department with regards to race-specific schol-
arships in the State of Florida.

Mr. Weiss. But you're not aware as to whether, in fact, they had
geep ig consultation, Mr. Komer and the Washington Legal Foun-

ation?

Mr. WiLLiaMs. | have no personal knowledge of it.

Mr. WEkss. The Department received a formal complaint about
Florida Atlantic University from the Washington Legal Founda-
tion, subsequent to that memorandum. The complaint alleged that
Florida Atlantic University was violating civil rights law by provid-
ing race-specific scholarships. Do you know whether Mr. Komer, or
anyone else at the Department, discussed the complaint with at the
legal foundation, before it was received by the Department?

Mr. WiLLiams. I have no personal knowledge, either way, as to
whether there was a discussion with anyone from OCR or the De-
partment with the Washington Legal Foundation.
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Mr. Wesss. Did OCR have the authority to formally investigate
Florida Atlantic University, including the issuance of the letter of
finding, without receiving a complaint of discrimination.

Mr. WiLLiAMS. Yes, sir. We have——

Mr. WEeiss. Now listen to my question carefully. Did OCR have
the authority to formally investigate, to investigate, Florida Atlan-
tic University, including the issuance of a letter of finding, without
receiving a complaint of discrimination?

Mr. WiLLiams. If you're using “investigate” to define complaints
as opposed to compliance review——

Mr. Wgiss. Right, you got it.

Mr, WiLLiams. The format of a complaint investigation and com-
pliance review is the same.

Mr. Wgiss. But they're two different things, and you can’t inves-
tigate and issue a letter of finding without a complaint; isn't that
correct? That is correct.

Mr. WiLLiams. No. We issue letters of findings with compliance
reviews.

Mr. Weiss. But you can't do that on the basis of an investiga-
tion—you can’t conduct an investigation—unless you received a
complaint. You can undertake a compliance review on your own
initiative; isn't that correct?

Mr. WiLLiams. That's correct.

Mr. Weiss. OK. I've just told you the difference between a project
review and a formal investigation. Now, is that why Mr. Komer
originally asked region 4 to conduct a compliance review? Because
the Department, your office, had not yet received a complaint
about Florida Atlantic University?

Mr. WiLLiams. | have no way of knowing why Mr. Komer direct-
ed a compliance review as opposed to a complaint investigation.

Mr. Weiss. Do you know the date on which the Department re-
ceived the complaint from the legal foundation.

Mr. WiLLiams. It would have preceded my being on the job, and
s0 no, I do not.

Mr. Weiss. It was on May 10, 1990. And do you know the date on
which Mr. Komer referred the Florida Atlantic case to region 47

hMr. WiLLiams. No, I do not, I have no personal knowledge of
that.

Mr. WEeiss. It was May 1, 1990. So, 9 days later, as a result of the
complaint from the Washington Legal Foundation, did OCR central
office, in fact, refer Florida Atlantic University for investigation?

Mr. WiLLiaMs. | have no personal knowledge either way.

Mr. Weiss. But that is the case. Do you know the status of that
investigation?

Mr. WiLLiams. That investigation is continuing, it has not been
completed.

Mr. WEeiss. The complaint from the Washington Legal Founda-
tion also alleges that minority scholarships offered by the Universi-
ty of Florida and the University of Nebraska are also illegal. As a
result of the complaint, did you also ask that these schools be in-
ves?iga‘}ed. either as a part of a formal inquiry or a compliance
review’
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Mr. WiLLiams. | have not directed that an investigation or com-
pliance review take place at either University of Florida or Univer-
SitKlOf Nebraska.

r. Wriss. But do you know whether there, in fact, are investiga-
tions ox‘agbing, of those two schools?

Mr. WiLLiams. At the University of Florida there is, not at the
University of Nebraska.

Mr. Wziss. Well, those are all of the questions that 1 have at this
point, Mr. Williams. I do hope that Mr. Komer decides to honor our
invitation. I should say, in closing, that your testimony is a study
on how not to change Federal policy. First, we have a new Assist-
ant Secretary for Civil Rights, with no experience in civil rights
law, who, in one of his first actions after being confirmed by the
Senate, decides to reverse nearly three decades of law and policy.

Then, we learn that the policy isn't even your idea. It was the
notion of the Deputy Assistant Secretary for policy, who apparent-
ly acts as the driving force for the new interpretation of title VI,
possibly in conjunction with organizations outside the government.

The testimony further shows that in this mad rush to ban minor-
iti scholarships, you violated the Administrative Procedure Act,
which is an act to avoid just such a situation, where laws are
changed in secret, without public notice. And in the process, title
VI itself, one of the most important laws of this century, is so badly
twisted and misinterpreted that its original drafters would not rec-
ognize it.

I sincerely hope that in the new review ordered by Secretary Al-
exander, that none of these acts are repeated, and that the intent
of title VI, to redress the discrimination suffered by mirorities and
to disallow any future discrimination, remains intact. Thank you
very much, Mr. Williams, for appearing.

Mr. WiLLiams. Thank you.

Mr. Wriss. Our second panel will consist of Dr. Ted Shaw, a law
professor at the University of Michigan; Dr. Richard Rosser. presi-
dent of the National Association of Independent Colleges and Uni-
\ézz;s!i‘sies; and Dr. Donald M. Stewart, president of the College

Please step up and stand behind your chairs. As you know, we
swear in all of our witnesses.

[Witnesses sworn.]

Mr. WEiss. Let the record indicate that each of the witnesses has
responded in the affirmative. We have opening statements from
you. They will each be entered into the record, without objection,
in their entirety, as will other documents that we have referred to,
and will be referring to in the course of the hearing. But we ask
you to summarize your statement to no more than 7 minutes, if
you can.

Dr. Shaw, if we can start with you.

STATEMENT OF DR. TED SHAW. PROFESSOR OF LAW.
UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN

Dr. Suaw. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'd like to take the oppor-
tunity to thank you and the other members of the committee and
the staff for inviting me to testify on this very important issue. As
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a matter of background, 1 am a professor of law at the University
of Michigan Law School; and prior to that, worked for 9 years as
assistant counsel for the NAACP legal defense and educational
fund, and also director of the west coast regional office of the legal
defense fund; and, before that, worked in the Justice Department,
Department of Civil Rights, starting in 1979, I left there in 1982,
because of what was clearly a change in policy.

The views I express, however, are mine only. I do adopt the state-
ment of the NAACP Legal Defense and Educational Fund, Inc., op-
posin% the position of the Office for Civil Rights on minority-target-
ed scholarships. Like many other Americans, 1 was shocked and
dismayed by the Office for Civil Rights’ pronouncement in Decem-
ber 1990, that Federal law prohibited universities from administer-
ing minority targeted scholarships and the way that universities
presumed they were able to administer them, under the interpreta-
tion of the Bakke decision.

Not only was this attempted policy shift a radical departure from
the prior interpretation of title VI in its implementing regulations,
it was 11l conceived and ill advised, as a matter of social policy and
also as a matter of educational policy.

While the Department of Education, in the face of a firestorm of
public criticism, disapproval, and outrage, stepped back from that
policy in its December 18 retreat. It still constitutes an unwarrant-
ed, unwise intrusion, and has distorted the applicable legal doc-
trine,

It invites confusion on the part of university officials who are at-
tempting, in good faith, to remedy decades of certuries of exclusion
and underrepresentation of minorities in higher educational insti-
tutions. Efforts to open the gates of historically white institutions
of higher education are relatively recent, that is, approximately 25
to 30 years old, at best.

And as a statement of the NAACP Legal Defense and Education-
al Fund recounts, and as the chairman has recognized and Mr.
Payne recognized, when Congressman Payne was here, they have
had limited albeit important and significant effect; 5.7 percent of
bachelor’s degrees awarded in 198! were earned by black gradu-
ates, down from 6.4 in 1976. And of 1989 master’'s degrees awarded,
4.6 percent went to black students, down from 6.8 in 1976. And for
doctorate’s, it was 2.4 percent, down from 3.3 percent.

Given these and other paltry statistics, it seems odd, if not invidi-
ous, that the Department of Education’s Office for Civil Rights
would choose to wage war on minority targeted scholarships.
Equally troubling is the apparent invitation by a governmental de-
partment to white citizens to oppose minority targeted scholar-
shligs. An invitation which, fortunately, most Americans rejected.

onetheless, the fact is that the Department of Education’s at-
tempt to shift policy took place in a context where is was unwar-
ranted and uninvited. Notwithstanding the ongoing national
debate about the appropriate scope of affirmative action, there was,
in fact, no great demand on the part of the public to eliminate, or
curtail, minority targeted scholarships: A fact that is borne out by
{)}ée widespread rejection of the policy pronouncements in Decem-

r.
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Unfortunately, however, the mere pronouncement of the pro-
posed policy and OCR'’s analysis that would interpret Federal laws
to prohibit most minority targeted scholarships co jures in the
minds of some the image of minority students unjustly benefiting
from substantial sums of scholarship funds, while white students
are being turned away from the gates of higher education because
similar funding is not available.

It reinforces the view promulgated by some that African Ameri-
cans and other minorities are the most privileged in today’s socie-
ty, by reason of special treatment in the form of affirmative action
of one kind or another, while white Americans are now the victims
of racial discrimination.

It harkens back to a post Civil War Supreme Court decision, a
few years after the end of slavery, in which a Supreme Court jus-
tice, impatient with remediation measures being sought by black
supplicants to the Supreme Court, one, that just a few years after
coming out of bondage, that African Americans must stop com-
plaining about discrimination, stand on equal footing with whites.
and cease their attempts to be “‘special favorites of the law.”

It is precisely this same ahistorical impatience which enforms
the efforts, in the name of color blindness, of those who would
deem minority targeted scholarships to be violations of Federal
law. When governmental officials take such positions, not only do
they mislead the public down the path of further divisiveness, they
default on their responsibilities to provide equal educational oppor-
tunities in higher education, and to remedy the sad history of dis-
crimination which exists in this country.

Nothing in the applicable case law, whether it be Bakke, the
Croson decision, or the FCC decision of last term, supports the
Office for Civil Rights’ present policy with respect to minority tar-
geted scholarships. Justice Powell’s opinion in regions of University
of California v. Bakke, sanctioned the use of race as a proper con-
sideration in an admissions decision, as long as it was not the ex-
clusive decision. It did not speak to the issue of financial aid. How-
ever, it would be a hollow promise if black students were told you
can be admitted to institutions of higher education, but the funding
is not available.

_The key to analyzing the policy that the Department of Educa-
tion, through OCR, is now attem ting to implement, as best as we
can make it out, is the factor that minority scholarships are, in
fact, not the only source of money available to students within the
institutions that are under scrutiny. White students, in fact, are
not being turned away from the doors of institutions of higher edu-
cation because they do not qualify for minority targeted scholar-
ships. In fact, the vast majority of scholarship unds are available
to all students and to white students to compete for.

What is troubling, to me, about the policy and about Mr. Wil-
liams’ testimony this morning, is that it is an attempt to rush
headlong into a position which has no basis in either history or
present-day reality. And that attitude is, in fact, evidenced by the
way the Department of Education has failed to adequately investi-
gate and pursue the historical discrimination that exists at the
public institutions of higher education, the 17 States that were
once under scrutiny, the 10 States that have been dismissad.
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Those States, in fact, have been judged by a standard that is woe-
fully inadequate, and some of them have been released from juris-
diction b R. Others are still pending under OCR’s scrutiny, but
the standard that they are applying is not a standard which looks
at the results of efforts to promote educational opportunity for
black students. It is rather a weakened standard which focuses on
some kind of good faith attempt to substantially implement certain
measures that they have committed to implement, regardless of
what the outcome is.

In fact, it is ironic and telling that of the institutions that were
being considered for the Fiesta Bowl, among those institutions were
institutions which had a history of iscrimination which, in
fact, had not been eliminated. The University of Alabama is now
being sued by the Justice Department upon OCR's referral. The
University of Louisville, as Mr. Williams pointed out, is part of a
system w}:ich has not yet been released from jurisdiction by OCR.

In fact, OCR has taken steps and undermined efforts to increase
the number of blacks in colleges and universities by reversing its
historical position on higher education desegregation, by applying
this new, good faith standard instead of the effect on desegregation
standard that the law required in the past.

As a result of this new standard, OCR has released at least six
State systems of higher education from further obligations, to take
steps to dismantle segregated systems. Other States are, as | indi-
cated, currently under review.

Of the States involved in the Fiesta Bowl, as we've indicated, one
is the University of Louisville, and other States involved were for-
mally de jure States. The standards of title VI compliance used by
OCR are minimum, and not maximum, standards. They do not pro-
hibit further measures to dismantle these de jure systems of higher
education. This is especially true in light of OCR’s new good faith
standard for compliance and its failure to focus on the actual suc-
cess rate in eliminating the vestiges of prior discrimination.

As I've indicated, Bakke did not call for the complete elimination
of race as a factor in determining admissions. It did not speak to
the issue of financial aid at all. And it would, indeed, be ironic, as
Mr, Williams testified, if the Federal Government were allowed to
engage in affirmative action in the form of minority scholarship
plans, as it's indicated it wishes to do, through legislative and other
measures.

And yet, States which themselves were the progenitors of inten-
tional de jure discrimination would be prohibited from administer-
in% minority scholarships.

might add that, in another capacity, I served on the board of
trustees of my undergraduate institution, Wesleyan University, in
Connecticut. And that is an institution which has a commitment to
a minority presence on campus that runs about a quarter of a cen-
tury now. One of the concerns has been—and I don't speak for
Wesleyan now, but | speak as a former board member, in my indi-
vidual capacity—one of the concerns has been the low number of
minori% students who are going into graduate and doctoral pro-
grams. Therefore Wesleyan, like other institutions, set up a minori-
ty scholarship fund. That fund is targeted, specifically, for black
and other underrepresented groups.
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That fund would not be as effective if, in fact, the standards that
were applied were to be a standard that focused on economic
status, on underrepresentation, or some other basis. It certainl{
would not be as effective. And here’s the reason why: Although Af-
rican Americans are disproportionately poor, the vast majority of
poor people in this country, as we know, are not African American;
they are whites.

And I would support programs which expand scholarship oppor-
tunities for all students, including poor white students. And I think
Congressman Sanders has put his finger right on the point, that
part of the reason that we're in the bind we're in now, and the
reason this is so divisive, is because we have an administration
which has, for the past several years, or the past decade, or so,
drastically cut back on the amount of fmancia? aid that is avail-
able, flowing from the Federal Government.

And yet, that same Federal Government turns around and an-
nounces, without any invitation, a ﬁlicy which would then pit
those who are fighting over the crumbs, agair.st one another. That
is cynical. And it's something that I think needs to be addressed. I
don't think its good enough for the head of OCR to say, "“That’s not
within my bailiwick. That’s a problem that I recognize, but all I'm
going to do is look at enforcing the law, and do it in this way that's
so divisive.”

The point, though, is that scholarship programs which would be
implemented for disadvantaged students, while they would un-
doubtedly benefit some black students, would overwhelmingly be
white, simply because of the absolute numbers of poor white stu-
dents who would be eligible for those programs, and they would not
address the severe underrepresentation of African Americans and
other minorities in these graduate and professional schools.

Mr. Werss. Could 1you bring your comments to a close?

Mr. Suaw. Yes. | also worked on a case which you're familiar
with, which is Guyer v. Tennessee, and that is a case that involved
former Governor Alexander’s home State. There was a scholarship
program that was established, pursuant to the litigation that
sought to desegregate higher education. That was challenged by
the Justice Department, it was upheld by the Sixth Circuit Court of
Appeals, the Supreme Court did not take that case.

It is clear that these scholarship funds are appropriate in in-
stances where there is past historical discrimination, some of the
very institutions that Mr. Williams sought to single out in the
Fiesta Bowl incident, are institutions that fall under that category.

I hope that the new Secretary of Education backs away from this

licy as far as he can go, which is all the way, and interprets the

kke decision and the applicable case law in the way that it was
interpreted by OCR in its own regulations, in its administrative de-
cisions, prior to the announcement of this ill-conceived policy.

In fact, a government, by press release, suggested that there is
another agenda. It is not true to say that they simply took these
complaints and are trying to address protecting all persons. This is
an effort of those who have a particular agenda to reach a point of
color blindness when we simply aren’t there yet.

Finally, I'd like to say, an Y can't resist this, although it may be
an indiscretion, that I had an uncomfortable feeling sitting here, at
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first, and watching a panel of Members of Congress, most of whom
are white, questioning a black head of OCR, in which he was de-
fending a policy that curtailed and cramped and limited minority
;acholarships. while you were seeking to expand his reading of the
aw.

But upon reflection, I thought to myself that, actually, this might
be something that I should be consoled about. In fact, it reflects
that we're making a great deal of progress if, in fact, you are
taking the lead on this issue and pushing this individual, the De-
partment, and the administration to continue the efforts to expand
minority opportunities. I'll take any questions at any time.

Mr. Weiss. Thank you, Dr. Shaw. We'll hold questions until
we’'ve finished with the testimony of all of the panelist.

Dr. Rosser.

STATEMENT OF RICHARD ROSSER, Ph.DD., PRESIDENT, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION OF INDEPENDENT COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES

Dr. Rossgr. Mr. Chairman, Mr. Sanders, thanks so much for the
opportunity to testify. This is an extremely important issue, and I
want to thank you in particular, Mr. Chairman, for your oversight
of this Office for Civil Rights. I think we have all seen this morn-
ing how necessary and helpful this is.

Mr. Payne commented about the confusion out there as a result
of what we have seen over the last few months. Believe me, it's not
just confusion, it is chaos, in terms of understanding where we are
going and where we will end up. Mr. Hobson talked about the chill-
ing effect of all of this on parents and students. And believe me, it
is a chilling effect. What does this country seem to mean in terms
of its gttitude towards helping us bring minorities into higher edu-
cation?

Now, I'm testifying on behalf, of course, of the National Associa-
tion of Independent Colleges and Universities, 1,600 schools, but
I'm also here on behalf of the American Counsel on Education. So
I'm going to be talking, to some degree, about all higher education,
but more specifically, about private higher education, because pri-
vate higher education has been affected more than any other
sector, 1 would argue, because of what started last December.

We've always had a commitment to access, in our private col-
leges and universities, and to diversity. It isn’'t widely known today
that, in terms of family income, family incomes of students going
to private colleges and universities now are essentially the same as
the family incomes of students going to 4-year State universities.

Another thing—and this gets to the point of what we are talking
about today—we now enroll essentially the same percentage of mi-
norities in private colleges and universities as do State colleges and
universities. And the minority percentage on our campuses is in-
c}rlea;sing faster than it is at State colleges and universities. Why is
this?

It's because we are putting massive amounts of financial aid into
play to enable students to come to our institutions. Unfortunate-
ly—and Mr. Sanders, I'm delighted that you mentioned this—Fed-
eral aid is going down, to our students. State aid was doing fairly
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well in some States, but now that so many States are in economic
difficulty, they're having to cut it.

the contrary, because of this, we have increased our own com-
mitment, from our own private institutions, to something like $4
billion this year. That's undergraduate and graduate. That is more
than all the Federal aid, including the subsidy on the Stafford
loans, that will come to students in private colleges and universi-
ties,

Now, this means, if we put this in terms—and Mr. Shaw referred
to this—65 percent of our students are now receiving financial
aid—and obviously, that is from all ethnic backgrounds. Seventy-
two percent of our Hispanic students are on aid, and 82 percent of
our Afro-American students. Again, I don’t need to explain that.
How have we been able to do this, not just the amount of aid, but
clearly, these special programs we're talking about?

We've had special scholarships for years—you would know these;
you've seen them listed in colf:ée catalogs—for ethnic groups, for
minorities, for men, and incidentally, also for women. And I might
nofe—this has not come up, but one of the things thai Mr. Wil-
liams announced back in Dec>mber that he was going tv investi-
gate, was a question of sexual discrimination as it would relate to
various programs. Why shouldn’t we then raise into question any
scholarship specifically for men or for women?

Now, we thought we were following national policy. Again, we
had the Civil Rights Act of 1964; we had the Bakke decision, as you
said, Mr. Weiss; we then had, I think, within a few months after
that, a clarifying statement from the Department, saying that
Bakke did not limit these scholarships. We had specific departmen-
tal rulings—this famous letter to MIT in 1981, saying that minority
scholarships for engineers were perfectly legal. We had the regula-
tions, which, of course, as we know, have never been rescinded.
And then, Secretary Cavazos for months had as his major theme
increasing minority participation in all of education, but in particu-
lar, in terms of higher education.

But even without all of this, our schools, our private colleges,
thought they were doing the right thing and the necessary thing.
This society is not colorblind; we all know that. We all hope we will
get to that point where 1t is colorblind, but not at this point.

Believe me, before 1 took this job I spent 10 years as president of
DePauw University, in Greencastle, IN. We had to have minority
scholarships to get students to DePauw University. This is true, 1
would guess, of the majority of our private colleges and universi-
ties—which historically, of course, were essentially white institu-
tions. We had to reach out and indicate to minorities that they
really were wanted.

Before last December, frankly, we didn’t know how many pro-
grams we had among our colleges; we never had to ask. The ques-
tion was never even raised. But a few days at.er Mr. Williams re-
vealed what is now apparently no change—we thought it was, at
the time—we sent out a survey to all of our schools—incidentally,
that was on Friday, December 14, and then, on the following Tues-
day, we had the famous press conference with the release of De-
cember 18. I then sent out another letter after that, saying, "By
the way, would you tell us how many of these scholarships are
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funded out of institutional funds?”’ That question had never been
raised before.

These were the results: Nine out of ten independent colleges and
universities now have some kind of scholarship, one or more, spe-
cifically for minorities. One out of two of our graduate institutions
have scholarships specifically for graduate students. Most include,
of course, financial need, or merit, or some other qualification.
We're now talking about 15,000 undergraduate scholarships for mi-
norities, about 1,200 graduate scholarships. The average undergrad-
uate grant is $6,800, $9,000 for graduate students. And 80 percent
of this money comes out of institutional funds—a very critical
point, as you know.

Well, where are we now? We have this December 18 press re-
lease, which I think we need to give some attention to, because to
me, this must reflect some very careful thinking, or at least so they
thought, by the administration. I do not believe that is a Depart-
ment of Education press release. I think that is a carefully
thought-out policy by the administration.

Whether or not it was ever legal—I mean, we all thought that if
it were not legal, it clearly soon would be, or the attempt would be
made to make it legal. We were very encouraged when Secretary
Alexander indicated during his confirmation hearings that he
wanted to pull that back. But yet. I know he was quoted on the
“Today Show,” yesterday morning, as saying he didn't think that
there ought to be distinctions based upon race.

So I must say, 1 have to come back to this December 18 memo
and just indicate to you the problems that we see with it. First of
all, the administration starts out by saying it believes in voluntary
affirmative action, and 1 was very happy to see that. The press re-
lease also—it doesn’t say this, but clearly the implication is that
congressionally directed scholarships are perfectly legal.

State and local government—and I don’t know which local gov-
ernments give scholarships, but anyway, that was in there—State
and local government scholarships would be left to the courts; the
Department had no administrative method of endorsing these.

But then they got to private colleges and universities, and said it
was perfectly OK if we used outside funds which were given to us;
we could not use our own funds. Now what is more voluntary than
the use and designation of our own funds? Frankly, this distinction
is so bizarre that we just cannot understand it, to this day.

Incidentally, we ca']led up the Department the next day, and they
said that word “private” should not have been in there. I haven't
heard this this morning. The word “private” should not be in
there, so therefore all institutionally provided scholarships by State
institutions, are also in question. Incidentally, there are many of
those, as I think you will hear later.

Then, we had this 4-year transition period, but yet. now I hear
that things will be held up for 6 mo:ths—we have those seven com-
plaints—will be held up for 6 months. But then, after that, the De-
partment apparently feels that it will have to take action. So this
4-year transition period—how can you feel safe with that, if the De-
partment had to investigate, if it would be called upon to do $0?

So consequently, we are very uneasy about this whole situation.
We think it needs to be resolved, as quickly as possible. Right now,
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we have students trying to decide whether or not they're going to
come to our schools next year. We’ve got our colleges and universi-
ties wondering what they should do about these programs. They'll
itxika with them, but they are not very sanguine. We simply don’t

OW.

In my view, the only solution is to go back to where we were
with this guidance, this departmental regulation, these interpreta-
tions which served us so well for so many years. Because, if we do
not do that, if we end up somewhere in the middle, this is going to
have a devastating effect, I think, in setting back our attempts to
really make ourselves accessible to minorities from all walks of
life. Thank you very much.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Rosser follows:]
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Thank you, Mr. Chairman and mexmbars of the copmittes. My
names is Richard F. Rosser, and I am presideant of the National
Association of Indspsndant Collagss and Univarsities (NAICU). The
Amarican Council on Education (ACE), an usbrella organization
rapresanting all sectors of American higher sducation, joins NAICU
in this otatapent. I as vary pleassd to testify befors you today
on an issus that is critically important to our members:
financial assistance in tha form of scholarships for members of

minority groups -- and women a&s well.

Background
NAICU's membership includes mora than 840 colleges and

universities. Our membership is as divarse as the nation itself.
NAICU institutions include traditional liberal arts colleges,
major rasearch universities, church~ and faith-related colleges,
historically black colleges and universities, women's collegaes,
junior colleges, and schools of law, medicine, engineering,
business, and othaer professions. This extraordinary diversity
offers students a wide selection from which to chooss the type of
education that will best serve their interests, needs, and
aspirations.

Enrollments at independent colleges range from fewer than 100
to more than 20,000 students? while we enroll 21 percent of all
students, we award 33 percent of all baccalaureate degrees, 40

percaent of all master's degrees, 36 percent of all doctoral
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degrses, and 60 parcent of all first professional degrees in

fields such as law, medicine, engineering, and businsss.

Comnitment to Access
NAICU institutions ars committad to incraasing the enrollment

of minorities in cur institutions. In 1988, the Year for which
the most current statistics ars avallable, the proportion of
minority students anrollad in four-yaar independent collsges and
universities was 18,2 Psrcent, compared with 17.8 percant in
four-year state-supported institutions. ©f the 18.2 percent
minority enrollment in our ceolleges, B.1 percent were African
Americans, 6.2 percent were Hispanics, 3.5 percent were Asian
Americans, and 0.3 percent were native Americans.

In order to increase the minority enrollment in our institu-
tions, we must provide financia)l assistance where nseded, and we
do. According to the latest figures from the Department of
Education, 82 percant of all African American undergraduates
attending independent colleges and universities received financial
assistanca, as did 72 percent of all Hispanic undergraduates, and
59 percent of all Asian American undergraduates. In 1986, 309,000
minority students attending public and independent colleges and
universities received a total of three-quarters of a billion

deollars in aid from the institutions' own resources.

-2-
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In ordar to assess the impact of the U.S. Department of
Education's interpratation of the legal status of scholarships
designated for minorities, the National Institute of Independent
Collages and Universities {NIICU} sent a qussticnnairs to its
membar institutions. The survsy was returned by 315 institutions.
Thesa responsss have besn Statistically weighted to raflect
approximately 1,600 independent colleges and universities
nationally. The results of the survey are attached to this
statement.

NIICU found that nearly nine ocut of ten indapsndent collagas
and universitiss have one or moras scholarship programs designataed
for minority undergraduate students., Half of our ipstitutions
have programs designated for minority graduate and Professional
students. Most programs use factors other than race, including
financial need and academic merit, as criteria for making an
award. Only 13.7 percent of the programs and 2.8 percent of the
funds are earmarked for scholarships awarded solely on the basis
of race.

Nearly 16,300 students receive awards under these programs --
15,100 undergraduate and 1,200 graduate students. ApProximately
$114 miliion in aid is provided for this purposs. The average
undergraduate recipient receives $6,800 from these programs, and
the average graduate student receives $9,000. More than three-

guarters (79.3 percent) of the funding for these programs cowes
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¢rom the inatitutions' own resources. The TYamaindsr comes from
fedaral (7.0 parcent), state (3.8 parcent) and other sourcas (9.9
percant). Nearly ons-guarter of institutions raported that they
vers able to mest the full calculated financial need of all
admitted undergraduate students.

The Nev OCR ®"Policy”

The progress we have mads in increasing the snrellsant of
nminorities was seriously undermined by the announcement from the
Education Dapartment's Office for Civil Rights (OCR) that our
schools run the risk of vioclating the Civil Rights Act of 1964 if
thay award race-specific scholarships. 1In Assistant Secretary
Michasl L. Williams's lettesr of Dacembsr 4, 1890 to John Junkar,
exacutive dirsctor of the Fiesta Bowl, Williams stated that "the
Title VI regulation includes ssveral provisions that prohibit
recipients of ED funding from denying, restricting, or Providing
different or segregated financial aid or othear progranm banefite on
the basie of race, color, or national origin., . . . OCR inter-
prats these provisions as generally prohibiting race-exclusive
scholarships.” Tha letter goes on to say that "the universities
that those students attend {the University of louisville and the
University of Alabama] may not directly, or through contractual or
other arrangements, assist the Fiesta Bowl in the awarding of
those scholarships unless they are subject to a desegregation plan

that mandates such scholarships.”
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On the heels of tha justifiable outrage axprassed by members
of the higher sducation and civil rights corpunities, OCR revarsed
its controversial policy announcement -~ but only partially. We
ars nov told that while "the administration fully sndorses
voluntary affirmativa action in higher aducation, and sncourages
educational opportunities for sinority and disadvantaged students.
. . ED has decided that the Title VI regulations will bs enforced
in such a way as to permit universities receiving federal funds to
administer scholarships established and funded entirely by private
persons or entities where the donor restricts eligibility for such
scholarships to minority students." It goes on to say that "under
Title VI, however, private universities recaiving federal funds
may not fund race-exclusive scholarships with thair own funds.”
{5ge U.S. Department of £ducation News Relsase, Dec. 1B, 1990.]

We are relieved that OCR has begun to modify its pesition
regarding ®inority schelarship programs. It now belisves that
scholarships (such as those awarded by the Fiesta Bowl) that ars
specifically reserved for minority students are consistant with
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. However, OCR has added
to the confusion about what is permissible for colleges and
universities that award scholarships to minority students fros all
other sources. It has drawn a distinction between rastricted
funds and other funds available to private colleges and univer-
sities to award minority scholarships. By doing so, OCR seems to

suggest that private colleges and universities may accept money
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from donors who designate that it da spant on minority scholar-
ships, but they cannot use their own funds for the identical
purposes. This notion is patently absurd, and has no legal
foundation.

The new OCR policy also conflicts with the department’s
appeal to colleges and universitiss to £ind ways to enroll and
retain minerity studsents. Its endorsement of voluntary
affirmative action rings hollow and sffectively ties our hands,
preventing us from practicing what OCR preaches.

The administration's review of ths OCR policy shovs that it
understands the importance of increasing the numbsr of minorities
on our campuses —- henca the rapid revision of Assistant Secretary
Williams's first announcement., But thes revision continues to
reflect a fundamental lack of knowledge about the way collagas and
universities finance their student aid programs, the overwhslming
majority of which use unrestricted funds. In fact, 61.5 psrcent
of all scholarship and fellowship expenditures by both public and
private institutions in 1985-86 wera derived from unrestricted
funds. {Seg U.S. Department of Education, National Centar for
Education Statistics, "Financial Statistics of Institutions of
Higher Education,” 1985-86.] Moreover, the NTICJ BuLIVey corrobo-
rates our view that the overwhelming majority of ra.«-specific
scholarships awarded by independent collegss and universities are

funded from the institutions' own resources.
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Private colleges and universitiss uss monsy from a varisty of
sources, including restrictsd echolarships (which are very few in
number) and contributions from aluani and others, to provide
financial aid. Thims aid is awarded to students bassd on nasd’
talent in particular fislds such as athletics, susic, and sciencs:
and diversitv. Scholarships have enabled us to snroll an
increasing number of minority students who have been historically
underrepresented on our canpuses. Now the OCR tells us that our
efforts to promote diversity violate fedsral law.

This new policy comes after a decade of guidance from the
fedaral government indicating that scholarships targeted for
minorities were legal. For example, in response to a complaint
filed against the Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT)
concarning its Minority Tuition Fellowship Program, the Office for
civil Rights at the Department of Haalth and Human Services
cencluded that MIT did not violate Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964 by excluding the corplainant from its program. [See
letter of the Department of Health and Human Services to unnamed
complainant, Complaint Number 01-30-2046, Sept. 30, 1981.)

In its letter of findings dated September 30, 1981, OCR
wrote: *The Title VI Regulations stats that '. . . 8 recipient in
administering a progras may take affirmative action to overcone

the effects of conditions which resulted in limited participation
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by pearsons of a particular race, coler, or national origin.'® It
also cited the illustrations given in the regulations rsgarding

pernissidble voluntary affirsativae action:

"Even though an npgiicnnt or recipient has never ussd
discrininatory policies, ths ssxvices and bansfits of the
program or activity it administers may not in fact be equally
available to sose racial or nationmality groups. In such
circumstances, an sapplicant or recipient may propsrly give
special consideration to race, color, or national origin to
make the banefits of its Program sore videly availadble to such
groups, not then besing adegquately served. For sxample, whare
a university is not adsquatsely serving

£a it may sstablish spacial recruit-
mant policiss to maks its program better known and mors
readily available to such group,

added).

.* (Emphasis

[Seg also lettar of R. Randolph, Acting Director, OCR, U.S. Dspart-
ssnt of Education, to Dr. Paul F. Gray, President, MIT, Ssptember
30, 1981, in which ED reached the same result.]

The OCR in the Department of Education reached tha same
conclusion in 1982: ®The [Title VI) Regulation explains that
resedying the effects of past discrimination may reaquire more than
the application of a race-neutral policy and . . . that veluntary
affirmative action in ths absence of past discrimination may
include race-conscious bshavior.* [Seaq U.S. Department of Educa-
tion, Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights, latter of
Burton Taylor, Director, to unnamed complainant (March 24, 1982).])

Te my knowledge, the OCR regulations cited in these letters of
findings (34 C.F.R. Section 100.3(b)(6)(ii) and section 100.5(i))

-85~
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have not bsen rescinded or ravissd in any manner. Teo do so would
require notice in the Federal Register and oppertunity for the
public to comment. We have sesn no such notices. Thus, we must
Question the procedural and lsgal bases for the recently announced
policy changs that clearly conflicts with the policy embodiad in
the above-mentioned lettar of findings.

Norsover, nona of the Supreme Court decisions that may be

relevant in this cass suppert the OCR's policy reversal. [fSas

®.g.. Regants of the Univeramitv of California v, Bokke, 438 U.S.
265 (1978); and Citv of Richmond v. J.A. Croson Co., 109 5. Ct. 706

(1989).) 1In fect, OCR found in 1983 that ths Pakke decision, which
was based on a controversial admissions policy at the University of
California at Davis, was not con“rolling as to the award of
financial aid. It want on to state that the use of voluntary
affirmative action efforts was consistent with Bakke. [Sae
Departmant of Education Memorandum to Gilbert D. Roman, Regicnal
Director, Region VIII, from Joan Standles, Deputy Assistant
Secretary for Civil Rights, regarding policy clarification rs Title
vI and minority fellowship pPrograms at the University of Denver
{March 22, 1983).)

In 1989, OCR reportedly dismissed a complaint against the
University of Colorado Medical Scheel, which awarded financial aid
to minority students under tha Patricia Roberts Harris Fellowships

progras. [See Washington Post, December 15, 1930.] This is a

N
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program creatsd by Congress and administered by the Department of
Education. It is ironic that the departmant approves of fadesrally
funded scholarships that Congress establishes for groups tradi-
tionally underrepresented in higher education, but not of privately
funded efforts initiated by ths collegas themselvas to schisve the
same goals. Surely the drafters of the Civil Rights Act of 1984
did not intend this result.

The steps that our colleges have taken and will continuc to
taks to increase the number of underrspresented students on our
campusaes ara entirely consistent with the nation’s policy to
promote sgual educational opportunity for all Americans. The
lagislation that the 101st Congress considersd (and in one case
approved) sxemplifies the goal of providing access to higher
education for all students. For exanple, the Twenty-First Century
Taachers Act {(H.R. 4130) would have awarded financial assistance to
institutions of higher aducation for programs to identify, racruit,
and retain students to enter thae teaching profession. In this
legislation, minorities were specifically earmarked for assis-
tanca. In the Excellence in Mathematics, Science and Engineering
Education Act, Public Law 101-589, signed into law by Presidant
Bush on November 16, Congress stated that “woman and minoritiass are
significantly underrepressntad in the fields of mathematics,
science and engineering,® and that its national objectiva was,

among other things, to "substantially increase the number of women
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and ninorities pursuing careers in mathematics, science and angi-
neering.* Title IV of the legislation is spacifically targsted to
sncourages women and minorities to anter the math, sciencs, and
angineering fields.

You are no doubt aware of the minority and geander-based
scholarships provided undar the Higher Education Act of 1963 as
amanded, including the Patricia Roberts Harris Graduate Fellowships
for financially disadvantaged women and minorities, which wvas
funded at $17.6 million in FY 1891, and the Minority Participation
in Graduate Education Program, funded at §5.9 million in FY 19%1.
What we are doing in higher education with our own resources is no
less important. Our gcal is the same -- £0 recruit and ratain
pinority students and women, who have been historically under-
represented in higher aducation.

I have suggested in my testimony that gender-based scholar-
ships are in jeopardy under the OCR's racent interpretation of the
law. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1872 derivas from and
is analogous to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. [See 20
v.S8.Cc. Section 1681 et sed.,] Thus, pregrams established by many
colleges and universities for the purpose of racruiting and
retaining underrepresented women in various academic and profes-

sional fields may alsc be of questionable legality.

-11=-
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The OQuota Isgue

1 wish to smphasize that scholarships used to recruit and
retain underxepresented minorities ard wvomen ars not guotas.
Quotas deny access to higher sducation, and without a court order,
may bs illegal under both the Constitution and fasderal statutes.
Minority or gender-bassd scholarships do not establish or consti-
tute a barrier. while scholarships uay make it easier for minority
students to attend a given institution, they guarantes neither

sntry to nor graduation from an institution.

The OCR under Alexander’s Leadership

The OCR policy leaves many issues unresolved. For example,
the Decemba: 18, 1590 statement does not make clear whether
programs that consider facters in addition to race {(but for which
race is the primary criterion or is given substantial weight) are
consistent with Titls vI. May "race-plus™ criteria bs used to
benefit subgroups (®.g. African Americans and Hispanics) and not
others {e.g. Asians), where the latter group is not underrepre-
sented in the student population? What if race-sxclusive
scholarships are only part of a larger pocl of student aid funds
and nonminorities are in no way barred from receiving other aid to

attend college?
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During his confirmation hearing on February 6, 1991,
Secretary-designats lamar Alexander tastified that he would restore
the status qQuo prior to the December 4, 1990 announcement and would
initiate a raview of the entire issus. Whils we are pleased that
Governor Alexandsr has rescinded the Decamber 4 and 18 prass
statenmonts, we mus® uarge that any revievw procsed "with all
deliberate speed,” as the Supreme Court urged in Brown v. Board of
Education. colleges and universities should not be left painfully
waiting until the confusion created in December is finally
resolved.

Secondly, the OCR reviaw should not resslt in a restoration of
the December policies. Thare is nothing in the spirit or the
letter of the civil rights law that justifies the conclusion that
private collegss and universities may not use their own resources
to fund minority schols siips. Nor, would we argue, is there
anything to support O.%'s absclute bar of scholarship programs that
take race into account.

Thirdly, ne institution whose financial aid policies are
scrutinized during this review and who fully cooperates with OCR's
investigation should be exposed to undue liability or prosecution.
Finally, we must urge that all future policies enunciated by OCR be
issued using the notice and comment process set forth in the
Administrative Procedurs Act. At the very least, OCR should not

engage in policymaking by press release. Such actions undermine
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the democratic principles that ars the foundation of the admini-
strative rulemaking process.

We hope that Secratary Alexander will work with NAICU and
other mapbers of the highar sducation community to achisve a policy
consistant with the purposss for which the Civil Rights Act was
sstablishsd.

Conclusion

The National Association of Independent Collegas and
Universities calls upon the administration to rescind parmanently
and unequivocally the policy directive embodied in the Educatien
Department’s Dacember 1B, 1990, news releases. If the administra-
tion does not exercise leadership in this issue, it will call into
question virtually every financial aid program of every private
college and university in the country, Freate ¢haos on our
campuses, instigate a barrage of unwarranted litigation, further
discourage minerity students from applying to cellege, and
exacerbate the severe shortage of sducated workers that this nation
will face in the next cantury.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for your leadsrship and vigorous
oversight of OCR throughout the years. Wa value Yeur commitment to

equal opportunity in educatien.
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FINAL RESULTS
NIICU SURVEY ON NINORITY SCHOLARSHIPS AT
INDEPENDENT COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES

In order to assess the impact of the U.S. Departmant of

Sducation's interpratation of ths legality of scholarships designated
for minority students, NIICU sent a quastionnaire to its B26 mexber
institutions. The following summary is bassd on 315 Xesponsas that
bave besn statistically weighted to raflect approximately 1,600
independent colleges and universities nationslly. All data refsr to
the 1990-91 Aacadenic ysar.

L 4

Nsarly nine out of tan {89.3 percent) independent collegas and
universitiss have one or mora scholarship prograss designated for
minority undergraduate students, Half (49.3 percent) of independent
institutions have scholarship prograns designated for sinority
graduate and professional students.

In addition to race, most programe (86.3 percent) and most of the
funds (97.2 percant) include financial need, acadesic merit, or
other factors ameng the criteria for making an avard. Just 13.7
percent of the programs and 2.8 percent of the funds are for
scholarshipe in which race is the sole criterion for making an
avard.

Approximately 16,300 students receive awards under these programs ~-
15,100 undergraduates and 1,200 graduate and professional students.

Independent collegas and unive-sities award approximately $114
rillion in aid under these progrsms. Most (90.8 percent) is for aid
to undergraduate students.

The averags award is $6,800 per undergraduate student and $9,000 per
graduate student.

The institutions themselves are the Principal sourcs of funds for
these programs. Mors than threa-quarters {79.3 parcent) of the
scholarships are from institutional resources. The remaining
portion copes from faderal (7.0 percant), state (3.8 percent) and
other {9.9°percent) sources.

Approximately one-quartsr (24.5 percant) of independent colleges and
universities raported that they are able to meet the full calculated
financial need of all admitted undargraduate students.

/9N
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Mr. Wrss. Thank you, Dr. Rosser.
Dr. Stewart.

STATEMENT OF LAWRENCE GLADIEUX, WASHINGTON DIRECTOR,
THE COLLEGE BOARD, ON BEHALF OF DONALD M. STEWART,
PRESIDFNT

Mr. Gi..pieux. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My name is Larry
Gladieux, I'm Washington director of the College Board. Don Stew-
art, president of the College Board, sends regrets, he feels very
deeply about this issue.

Mr. Wgiss. My apologies to you.

Mr. GrapieUX. That's all right. He feels very deeply about this
issue, wanted to deliver his statement himself, today, but last
minute circumstances made that impossible.

Mr. Weiss. Well, you know we have his prepared statement;
that’s in the record, in it's entirety, and I hope that you would
simply summarize his, or your, thoughts.

r. GLameux. I will do so, very briefly. Last December, when
this issue first came in to the national spotlight, the College Board,
which represents 2,700 member schools and colleges, expressed op-
position to the apparent change in policy by OCR. We were con-
cerned about the legal implications, but more immediately, we
were concerned about the chilling effect, which has been men-
tioned several times this morning, the negative signal that is sends
to young people.

Don Stewart submitted testimony to the Education and Labor
Committee at that time, and Don Stewart, who is an African-Amer-
ican himself, delivered a personal and direct message to minority
students, and I think that bears repetition now.

He said to students, “Do not be discouraged. The recent contro-
versy over minority scholarships may be confusing, but the oppor-
tunity and the funds are still there. Don’t let an ill-timed and ill-
considered press release by one Federal official in the Department
of Education deter or shatter your dream of higher education.”

At the College Board, we operate the college scholarship service,
and we have learned, over tﬁz years, that even the discussion of
possible cuts in financial aid for college-bound students creates the
impression that aid has, in fact, been reduced or eliminated. And
as a result, many may not apply for the aid that is there for them,
and that they need. That happened in the early 1980's, with the
headlines about major cuts, or elimination, of Federal student aid.
The announcement on race-based scholarships, in December, Lo
doubt has had something of the same, again, chilling effect.

Minority scholarships are only one strategy, but an important
strategy in democratizing access to higher education and fostering
diversity on our campuses. Like the National Association of Inde-
pendent Colleges and Universities, we have conducted a survey of
our College Board members on the awarding of such scholarships.
And the preliminary results might help to put this issue in per-
spective and will supplement the NAICU survei.

In our survey, we found that about 1,000 public and private col-
leges award some type of minority schol ips. But only 10 per-
cent of those colleges awarding minority scholarships award any of
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that aid exclusively on the basis of minority status. The other 80
percent considered financial need or other criteria, such as academ-
ic standing or leadership, in addition to minority status.

And overall, relatively small percentages of financial aid are in-
volved. At the schools offering minority scholarships, only 4 per-
cent of all grants and scholarships are awarded on the basis of mi-
nority status plus financial need. Three percent are awarded on the
basis of minority status plus some other criteria, besides financial
need. Only 0.3 percent of grant scholarship awards are made on
the basis of minority status exclusively.

Any policy or action by the Office for Civil Rights that would end
these programs, or put a cloud over these efforts, sends the wrong
signal and points us in the wrong direction. We urge the new Sec-
retary of Education to clear away the fog and unequivocally re-
scind the December policy statements by Mr. Williams and by
Office for Civil Rights.

If these policies, or apparent policy changes, are allowed to
stand, the clear message it will send to young minority men and
women is that their options are limited. Coming after so many
years of trying to encourage broader and fairer access to a higher
education, as a matter of social justice and for our economic well-
being as a country, that would be a tragic outcome.

Our testimony boils down to two messages: To minority students:
Do not be discouraged; the aid is still there; it's still possible to go
to college. And to the new Secretary of Education: Please clear
away the fog. Thank you, Mr, Chairman.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Stewart follows:}
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The Coltege Roard

WRITTEN STATEMING
by
DONRLD M, STEWART
PRESIDENT, THE {OLLELE BOARD
to the
HOLSE GOVERNMENT DFERATIONS SUBLOMMITIEE ON HUMAN Ri SOURES

.8, CONGRESS
MARCH 20, 194}

1 mant to commend the Chair of this subcommittee, Representalive Ted Weoss,
for consening foday's hearing and for providing a torum to discuss further the
awarding of vace-specific schatarships.  On behalt pf the (ollege Board's J800
member schools, colleges and universities, | am pleased to offer testimony on
an issue of suth importance not only to mynority students, their educat rome!
access and apportunity, but also to the vitality of &meritan eduratyon.

a5t December, when this issue first ¢aae 1nto the national spotiight asv «
result of Assistant Serretary for (1v1] Raghts Mithael Wittiams abrupt
annopnvement 1imiting the sst vf rare-spec i schetarships, the Uollege Boand
expressed ity opposition to the polity. T owas concerped not only with the
legal implications of the announcement. but also with the damaging and
negative effect 1t might have on the educational hopes of minority stoudents,
As a Washington Post editorial stated, "the s3gnal sent might discourage not
anly applicants, but also nstitutrons that might tear legal or othe:
goveramental mpediments an perfectly constitutional efforts to channel
certain grants to poor minority youths,

This message to students at that time bears repetition now: Do not be
drscouraged.  Ihe recent vontroversy over minur ity scholarships may be
confusing, . But the opportunity and the funds are stil] there. Den’t et
an 111-timed and 11l-consadered press release by one Assistant Seqretary 1n
the Department of fdutation deter or shatter your dream of higher educatypn

1y the intervening months, 1 have heen encouraged by the statements of
Secretary of fducation tamar Alesander during frs nomingt ion hearings when he
noted that the policy anmounied by Mr, Williams treated "a massive amount of
unnecessary confusion”; further, he sard colleges nepded to tell mipority
stugdents that “me want you in" and no caliege should *slon down' ja s etfort
while waiting for the Department to ¢larafy the dssue, Thr Seqretary n

announced plan to fully revies the policy neomonentt, b Tarrhgr e
consuitatyon aith cellege and et treoud TP T IP R PR PR BT
memhess of tongrens s TSI BETRICE PIS TR S P e
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Ay the Fresident of the (ollege Board, an educathonal association serving
students, schools and colleges through programs designed 1o espand educational
oppor tunity, 1 haxe learned oves the years that even the discussion of
possibie cuts o tinancial aid fer 1o} lege-bound students creates the
wmpression that ard has in 1act bren redured or ehminated, And ay a result
many may not apply for the aid that they need--and is there for them. | do
not want that to happen in this most rerent and unfortunate tontroversy.

Ac an educator, and an African Ameriran, § take pride in the progress thet has
heen made sime ! was & college student in the number of minorities guing to
college, It should be noted tor the record that the aumber of Blah men and
women atiending college has incieased over the padt decade, as has the numbier
ot Hispanic men and women. The seores of Alivcan American students on oar SAl
exgmy have increased signifycantly over the past 10 yvars, fven as thase of
white students have remained the same,  And the number of minority students
taking and doiny well in our Advanced Flacement (ourses has increased by 1584
since JURS.

And yet, oven though significanl progress hay been made, much remains 1o he
dont.  Owvet the past decade the number of black and Hispanic men and women
graduating fiom high school has grown mote swiftly then the pumber gowng on fo
tollegr, As a (onsequence, for esample, the proportion of black high school
graduates aged 18 to 24 going to college has leveled off. O & percentage
basis, it has remaiped at P8 percent in the decade of the 1980y, More
emineusly, the American €ouncil on Bducation reports that degrep attainment
for these groups has decbined o recent vears, Thus, Mr. Williams (hose the
worst time, »hen minprity roliege enralliment vates are stagnant, to assue the
reversal in policy,

Minor ity sthulac tips hae been recoguized as an evsential strategy on
rrcouraging disr 1ty on the tollege and untversity student population. 1
sgree with Donna halala, (hancellor of the University of Wisconsin at
Madison, That pa tallege or sniversity can amy longer call 1teelf great unless
its adminisirators, fatwlly, programs and students fully reflect the rich,
pulticultural diversity of conlemporary America. Op o legal basis, Jitle ¥1
of the Tyl Rights Acl of 1988 has long been interpreted and 1mplemented to
permet minority scholarship programs, either as part of court-ordered or
department- apps oved desegregation plans proas Jegitimate efforts to increase
the number of pmgderrepresented minufities on campus and 1o premote diversit,y .

Last Devomber, when first confronted with this dosue, there was 4 dearth of
\nfnrmat 1o about the numbers and amounts of thewe <cholarships at various
higher edutation institutyons. From our College Buard Annual Survey of
{olleges, we knew that approvimstely 1,000 ipsfatutions awarded atvd that was
based at teast 1n part on minority status, We seat a follomup survey to the.e
thnusand schanls, ssehang mare antronaton on their awards. The fimdengs are
cummdr teed 10 the attached tubles:; 1 owidl juct highlight a few of the surves '
prelimipary {indings here,
@ pply dooperoent oot the o Thooe e e e gt e by
. Tunt sl v (R Lo cbmae sy Bty The  the -
$oman 1at nead o1 ocweme other Cralerrd an boas ayddems. standing pr
teadership,

.
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® At the schools with minority scholarships, & perient of
grants/scholarships are awarded on the basis of minority status plus
financial need. 3 percent are awarded on the basis of minority status
plus some other «riteria besides financial need. Only 8.3 prereent of
grant/schelarship awards are made on the basis of minority status
alane,

o Overall, institutional funds ase the major source of beth minority
grants/scholarships based on need and minority grants/schoairships
whete factors such as academirs are considered. Restricted funds are
the second Jargest source of such awards, and public funds third. The
proportions of funds provided for minority grants and schelarships
trom different sources saries signaificantly among institufional
sectors, however,

At the thousand colleges awarding minority qrants and scholarships, 76 pertent
of the awards where financial need is a consideration come from imtitutional
and restricted sources. 83 peri€nt of the amards for minority students who
also eacell at such things as academics and Jeadership, but who do not have
financial need, come from institutional and restrivted funds. Clearly, these
tolleges dripye that such amards are a priority.

The needs of ouwr minarily youth are dpparent and we should learn from the
response of our Nigher education institutions and their donors.

Any polity or attion by the Office of (ivil Rights that would end these
programs woald not only unde the progress we have made in infreasing the
giversity of students on campuses, but it would also have a secondary
comvequence of discouraging potential donors from giving to higher eduiation
n geperal,

Despite the attempls by the Office of Civil Rights to tlarify the initsal
statements, there are stil) many unanswered Questions, 1 wrge the new
Secsptary nf Education to put the uncertainties created by Mr. Williams'
annnoun 8meat Jast year aside.  As the new Secretary assumes his position in
the Cabinet 1 urge him to place high on his agenda the thorough review of the
minor ity scholarship issue that he promised and to unequivoca?ly rescing the
cfatements made by Mr. Williame. 1f this poliucy is allowed to stand, the
rlear message it will <end to young mingrity men and women is that their
pptions are limited and thers higher education goals are a matter of
infifferenie to this pation, (oming atter so many years of trying to
encourage hroader and farrer access to a (ollege edecation in America, a5 a
matter of social justite and for our national economic well being, that would
ber a trangic putiome indepd,

In tlosing tet me share with yop remarks made hy jou Harris, to the (ollege
Board’s National Forum two yrars ago: "By the end of the nest derade, our
country will have pither succended or failsd on the prental snope of his (o
oprn the doors of opportumity tie i oy wennng peop ben 3 A a e
{nmhnu],..thvm treattae thind oty avedbr thetr e, ar omb il o haer create b
strongly competataive Amersia that ardl Do fre vney of the ma Bl But 3w
£ail.,. that will condemn us to second tier economic status as a natron.  Marik
11 well,”

attachment
1KS/pbk

?317g/701 33
03/18/91
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TUFATY Tne College Board

.y
- _._1‘1 45 Loaumbus Avenue Nea o Rea Yo 1Wuld §38!]

misr

"
,_-:_):’*: ¢ {98713 8000

r

Dear Collcague:

The recent U S. Department of Education staieanent about T2 legality of scholarships awarded o
students on the basis of minonty status has caused a preat dea of discussion spezularion, and coness
in the higher eduration community and the public medix D23 from the College Board s Anauad
Survey of Colleges show 3 growing number of institutions ofizring such scholantups. Howeser, their
are few "hard” facts on numbers of these aw ards, doliar amounts, and sowrces of funds Mat can inforz
the cument discussion. The College Board. 11 its role as information provider fo hoth e educational
community and the public, is underiaknyg the colleztion of these additional data.

On the 1590 Annual Survey of Colleges your inshituzon indiz2ed that you aw ard somie scholarship
money on the basis of minority starus, rither excluzively or i conjunction with other factors such 2y
need The enclosed bricf questionnaire i¢ designed 1o gathe mone denailed informanon about fhese
scholanhips. Althoush you probably jus: reendy complziz? this year's Arnual Sunvey of Colleges
and may have reseived O0e or more surveys on s speaifiz tonic, we hope that you will spend the
additional time to supply this imponan: suppizmeniany daz As furas we know this servey is the onls
one which covers all segments of accmdied hgher ducauvs, and thus 1y able o provide 3 eotwrral
national picture on this issue

The data eotlerse? on this surves will be reroried i agerenits form onls Nopresus nes b
idennfied with 133 3pecinic Lans,

Enclosed s 2 s=if-addressed envelope for yoor convermonas i miumng the quesiionnure, 7 4l
can send youz suney usiag our fax numier (1101 TIR 81 Poedve reurn phe Sure o b Fehraan 2
If you have any questions of would Dihe 1o oo Juns thiy maue? tefire complenng Lig sSney, [Lrdat
contactme at (1D TITRI1E

Sipeeeely,

N '/
/ )Jr.m Marzur e
v mewor £ LArmaten Senvides

February 1094
Enclosune
cc Office of the President

onproft eduCalond 35550 4 T et 3t
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COLLEGE BOARD SURVEY ON GRANTS/SCHOLARSHIPS BASED ON
MINORITY STATUS

On the Annual Survey of Colleges, your institution indicated that you have less: one undergraduate
grant or scholarship, funded or sdministered by your institution, for which minority status is used 85 8
sriterion in making the award demsion. The following questions are designed to collees further
information nbout these scholarships which are currently the focus of major public interest We il
rof use any of these data in sperific connection with your iostitution.

For the purpose of this survey, “minority” includes American Indian Alaskan native, Asan Amerncan
Pacific Islander, black, and Hispanic. "Grants and schelarships™ includes nuuen

remissions or waivers and gift aid funded from tuition revenues, other revenues, unressmsted

angd restricted ifts, endowment ingome, and federal, state, and locul apprepriguon - Tt does

not include awards for which your institution does not select recipients.

i nLEQ.0/ ve:

The data thar vou and vour eoilecpues previde on this survey will be usec 1n aggregaze form only

Yourinstztution will not be Wentified with its specstic 2z

For granzs scholarships based on minenty states plus need:

a- How many minonsy studenis received such awands® L . ——
P What war the ot dullar amonnt ¢ these awaray” EPEEE -

¢ Whut percent of this money came from:
» Federal, state, or focal povernment appropriations” R L
s Insututional funds {suition and cther revenues,
endowment ingome, unrestaeied giftst that werr

designated for mmoniues by yeur instsutien? ¥ —— .5
e Restricted gifts that were designated for munorties
by the eriginal denor™ L

For granis scholarships hased on minority status wathous remird 1o ned

L

&' How many minority siudents recewved surh awards? .
b What was the total della- »mount of there awards? T8 -

¢; What percent of this money come from
e Federal, state, or Jocal povernment apprapriations” () —— 0
¢ Institutiona} funds (tuition and other revenues,
endowment income. unrestricted gifts" that were
designated for minorities by your institution? TR L LS
e Restricted gifts that were designated for minorities
by the original donor?
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3 1f any of the nun-need minority-status scholarships (question 2 above) are based exclusitely on
Dinerity status (withsut regard to any other ¢eriteria such as academires, Jeadership, stc.):

#) How many stinority students received such swards? {7\
b} What wns th:¢ lata) dollar amount of thase awarda? (7N} $
€) What pereart of this money came from:

o Fedeml, state, or local governmint appropriations? (%

o Instilvzions! funds {tuition and other revenues,
endowment income, anrestriciad gifts) that were

designated for minorities by your institution? N ——%
» Resteicted pifts that were desigriated for miorides
by the original donor? (7R} . %
3 In onder to put the infarmation from the previous three questions in context, whst was

the tota] nummber of awards and dollsr amuunt of institutionally funded or adminiatered
grants and scholsrshizs provided by your institution to undergradastes in the

1989-90 academic year?
a) Total numbsr of grants/scholarship awsrds: (8 -
B Totaa! dollar amount of these awards: aT $— ..

Name and title of purson completing survay:

e —

——— e —

Please return by Vebruary 20, 1991 to:
Jean Marzone
Director, Information Services
The Coilege Beard
45 Coluosbus Avenue

New York, NY 10023-6952
Fax: (212) 713-8143
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PRILIMINARY ANALYSIS (B COULIGE BPARD SIRVEY ON GRANTS/SCHOLARSHIPA
RASED ON MINORITY STATUS
AN OF /18741

e titutons Repastang Grants "Sholarships Baced on
Migr ity Status

Novo peping tinyy N, repoetang
grantaischot, Non neerd No. veporting
baned on min. grants/schol, grants/schot,
status plus based on mn, based on min,
[IREtH other (it status £ag luuvﬂ)
{acad., Tead.
{ete .}
Twiyear
Pubin RUN IR Ah{RS ) 8 {113
Prasaty Gl ) {13 o b
Tetatl [ R RTO{R0 Y O
inm-w.u
Pubit i U T [T A 17 {(10.)
Private 131 (76 ) a8 (A0 Y 1% 1 R
Toutatl S50 (U] BALEE C ) 249
1G1AL Lt {60 ) B LU i (10

Notes percentages based on total cecpondentss JO7 tap-year pubilio, 7 two-yea
rtagate, 171 tour-year public, TR Soyear private,
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PRELIMINARY ANALYSIS OF COLLEGE BOARD SURYEY ON GRANTS/SCMOLARSHIPS
RAMED ON MINORITY STATUS
AS OF 3/15/9)
Numbers and Amount of Awards: Grants/Scholarships based on
Minority Status glus Need
Number of Awards Amount of Awards
fotal Minority Totel Minority
Two-year
Public 75,332 1,001 (8%} $ 19,366,570 % 613,262 { 3%}
Private 310 18 {4} $ 109,119 § 16,008 {15}
jotal 25,740 1,019 {484 $ 19,475,880 % B4, 266 { 3%)
four -year
Public 755,43 9,393 (M) $452,645 832 § 14,970,828 { 4%}
Frivate 134,863 4,947 {44) $387,041, 418 § 17.RI5, 880 { 5.)
Total 390,749 14 430 (4%) $739 680,750 § 32,736,668 { 3%)
T0TAL 416,041 15,049 (34) £759,166,139 § 33,365,938 ( 9%)
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’ﬁ:?a_] The College Roard
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PRI IMINANY ANALYNEN QF (OUEERD BOARD SURVEY ON GRANTSISUHDUARSHIFS
RASEDY ON MINORITY NTATUS
AS 0F 3715791

Nombers and Amount ef Amards:  Non Need Grants/Scholarships hased on
Minority Status and Qther (riterts (academins, Jeadership, els .}

Number of Awards Amount ol Awards
fotal Minotity Total Minos ity
Tao-yei
Fuhlig 33,481 Rie {3 § 23,385,655 % 1,189,732 { 5.
Private 0 0 (v} 3 0% ¢ {0
Total 34,48} R4 (1) § 74,385,655 § 1,100,733 ( &)
four-year
Putt i 274,511 8,01 {3 $376,793,104 § 17,005,668 { 6 )
Pravate OH, 8NL 1,400 (1)) $300,733,775 § K038, 400 { )
Total 373,399 10,704 (3) 677,027 879 § 27,700,366 ( 37}
HORY 407,880 11,578 (3} $701,413,483 % 03,900,110 { 3
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PROLIMINAR T ANALTSIS OF TOLLEGE BOARD SURVEY ON GRANTS/SCHOLARSHIPS
BASED ON MIRORITY STATHS
AS OF 3/15/91

Iwo-year
Public
Private
Total

four-year
Publtc
Trivate
Total

T0TAL

Number s and Amount of Awards:
Minprity Status Exclusyvely

Numhes of Awards

Tutal

34,481
4
34,481
S8, 514
QR BRS
374,449

407,880

Minprity

38s (10
o (0
i’s (1

743 (0.4}
57 {0.1)
Bl (D)

1,186 (0.3)

Grants/Schelarships based on

Amount of Awards

Total

i)

§ 74,385,65
¢
$ 73,385,865

w4
L R

§176,793,103 §
$300,734,77% §
$677.027 879 §

$701,413.484 %
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PREL IMINARY ANALYSIS OF COLLEGE BOARD SURVEY ON GRANTS/SCHDLARSHIPS
BASED ON MINORITY STATUS
AS OF 3/15/91

Sources of Awards: Grants/Scholarships based on
Minority Status plus Need

_ Average percent of awards ¢owming from®

Public tunds inst. tungds Restricted gitts

Two-year

Public s 5% 415

Private 504 13% 36°

A1l two-yr 37 73 31%
Four-year

Public Fn 37 7.

Private 10, Ja. a0

Al four-yr 70 7. 35"
TOTAL 24 R 367

‘Percents may not add fo J00% because of rounding.
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PRILIMINCRY ANALYSIS OF COLLEGE BOARD SURYEY ON GRANTS/SCHOLARSHIPS
RASED ON MINORITY STATUS
AN OF 3715791
Spuries pf Awards: Non-Need Grants/Scholarships based on
Minprity Satus and Other (riteria {atademics, leadership, ety 3
Average percent of amards coming from*
Pablic tumds Inst. fonds Restrirted gitts
Twor-year
Public 21 427 29
Private o, 0 HLIAN
ATl twosyr 27 1 30,
four-year
Public o3 a8 15
Private 3 78 L
AtY four-yr 147 f,7 18
T101AL 17. tl 19

Percents may not add to 100% because of rounting.
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PRECIMINARY ANSIYSTS OF COULLEGE BOARD SURVE Y ON GRANTS/SCHOL ARNH]
BANED UN MINURTTY STATEN
AS O 3/1679)
Sources uf Awarder Grants/Scholarships based on
Minority Status without Regard to Need
Average percent of awards coming from*
Public funds Inst. funds Restricted gifts
Two-year
Public 2. aw 9
Private o 0 100
A1) twn-yr PATEN 1 30
four-year
Fublic 4 58 i
Private 1 8 }
A1} toutays 14 67 it
TOTAL 17 b 19

"Percents may not add to 100, bersuse ot tounding.
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PRECIMINAEY ANA ASTS OF TULEGE BOARD SURVEY DN GRANTIN NUHULARNHTES
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AN OF 3016w

Soarces of Aaardes Grapts Scholavships pased en
Mirarity Satus £ dusnely

Average peroeat o aaards coming {4 om*
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Mr. Weiss. Thank you, Mr. Gladieux.

Mr. Sanders.

Mr. SanpERs. No questions.

Mr. Weiss. I think that this is really outstanding testimony, and
I very ~.uch appreciate your coming before us to give your insights
as to where we actually are. There is a suggestion, over the course
of these past few days, that if, in fact, we held this hearing, we
would be sending the wrong signals. And I think that your testimo-
ny has indicated the proper signal to send.

And hopefully, as I said earlier, the Secretary, upon reviewing
your testimony and upon reviewing the testimony of Mr. Williams,
and, hopefully, having some conversations with some other people
in the Department, will conclude that before he came on as Secre-
tary, things took place in the Department that should have not
have. And as I say, if there is no problem, the problem is when you
try to fix it. Thank you very much for your participation.

Let me, for the record, Mr. Hobson has indicated that he wanted
td®vote no, by proxy.

The subcommittee will stand in recess until 3 p.m. on Thursday,
March 21, or until such other time as the Chair shall announce.
The subcommittee now stands in recess.

[Whereupon, at 12:40 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned, to recon-
vene at 3 p.m. Thursday, March 21, 1991.]

75



DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION’S RACE-SPECIFIC
SCHOLARSHIP POLICY

THURSDAY, MARCH 21. 1991

Housg OF REPRESENTATIVES,
HumanN RESOURCES AND
INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE
oF THE COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, DC.

The subcommitiee met, pursuant to notice, at 3 p.m., in room
2203, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Ted Weiss (chairman of
the subcommittee) presiding.

Present: Representatives Ted Weiss, Donald M. Payne, Craig
Thomas, William H. Zeliff, Jr., and David L. Hobson.

Also present: James Gottlieb, stafl director; Marc Smolonsky,
professional staff member; Mitchell Zeller, associate counsel; Ann
Marie Atkins, staff assistant; and Stephen D. McMillan, minority
professional staff, Committee on Government Operations.

Mr. Wass. Today the subcommittee continues its hearing that
began yesterday, on race-based scholarships. Because one of the
witnesses requested by the subcommittee refused to appear, the
subcommittee authorized a subpoena to compel his testimony. Last
night 1 was informed that the Department had decided to allow
Richard Komer, the Deputy Assistant Secretary for Policy, to
appear today.

Before we begin, I want it to be clear that there would have been
no need for yesterday's subpotna vote or today's session had the
Department cooperated with the subcommittee. Every step in our
review has been met with intransigence. When [ originally request-
ed documents related to minority scholarship program, the Depart-
ment withheld most of the key information, and then, only provid-
ed it under the Federal subpoena.

When subcommittee staff asked to interview OCR employees in-
volved with minority scholarships, those requests were refused.
And when we requested the appearance of Richard Komer, Deputy
Assistant Secretary for Policy, he refused to appear. 1 am pleased
that we can now proceed. Mr, Komer, welcome.

Before we start, Mr. Williams, you're still under oath. Mr.
Komer, will you stand?

[Witness sworn.]

Mr. Weiss. Thank you. Mr. Williams, did you make any attempts
to clear the minority scholarship policy through the White House,
prior to sending the letter to the Fiesta Bowl?
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STATEMENT OF MICHAEL L. WILLIAMS, ASSISTANT SECRETARY
FOR CIVIL RIGHTS. U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, ACCOM-
PANIED BY RICHARD KONER, DEPUTY ASSISTANT SECRETARY
FOR POLICY—Continued

Mr. WiLuiams. No, I did not.

Mr. Wgiss. Will you pull the micrnphone just a little bit closer to
ou? It's not very sensitive. Mr. Williams, sometime after the
iesta Bowl decision became a matter of public record, did you ad-

dress the OCR staff, in the auditorium of Federal Office Building
No. 6, about the issue of minority scholarships and the controversy
surrounding the Fiesta Bowl decision?

Mr. WiLuiams. Mr. Chairman, 1 think I addressed the OCR staff
on the day of the announcement of the National Enforcement
Strategy, which was December 11, and mentioned the issue with
regard to the Fiesta Bowl, but I do not recall holding a meeting
specifically with OCR staff regarding the Fiesta Bowl.

Mr. Werss. Did you announce, during that meeting, in sum or
substance, that you had received a telephone call from the most
important person in the country, and that you had that person’s
suRfort for the Fiesta Bow! decision?

r. WiLuiams. That was a telephone call that, I think, a number
of people are now aware of. The President called me after Decem-
ber 12 to express, in a very, very short conversation, basically say,
“Just hang in there, everything will be all right.” And I called a
meeting with my staff to advise the staff of that telephone call.

The conversation between the President and myself was not
about the Fiesta Bowl letter; it was not a way of expressing his po-
sition, one way or another, on the letter. He was calling, basically,
to say, "I know there's probably a lot of heat; everything will be all
right. Just hang in there.”

Mr. Weiss. During yesterday's hearing, you stated that it was
your position that the Bakke decision was not limited to admis-
sions, but was also extended to financial aid. Following the Bakke
decision, OCR issued an number of opinions that the ruling did not
apply to financial aid cases. Let me quote two of these.

We do not consider it proper to extend the Bakke decision from admissions poli-
cies to all raceconscious actions by universities, Admissions guotas. the licy at
issue. and Bakke, unlike mang other policies. may result in the exclusion of an indi-

Vidu_al from a university on the base of race or nationat origin. The availability of a
particular financial aid program does not have such a far-reaching affect.

And in another case:

_We do not believe that Bakke is controlling as to the award of student financial
uid. as u decision that addresses relating only to admissions.

Now, Mr. Williams, at what point in time did the Department
change this policy?

Mr. WiLLiams. Mr. Cha.rman, you have read from two docu-
ments, one, if I could, just for the record, is a 1982 document re-
garding MIT, and the second reading that you made was from 1983,
the University of Denver.

To answer your question, if I could call your attention to a docu-
ment that we have provided for you, which as I mentioned yester-
day, was in 1986. It is a document that is—the signature on it is
Alicia Corro, who was the Acting Assistant Secretary for Civil
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Rights. The document is dated May 2, 1986. On the second page, in
the next to last paragraph on that page, it says:
Any determination with respect to the legality of the scholarship program men-

tioned in your letter would take into consideration the title VI law regulation. the
Bakke case, and other relevant case law.

That is one matter that is——

Mr. Wesss. That's it?

Mr. WiLLiaMs. That is subsequent——

Mr. Wkiss. Where does that, in any way at all, indicate that fi-
nancial assistance programs were now going to be subject to the
Bakke decision?

Mr. WiLLiams. That is the determination and the expression that
Bakke applies to addressing the question of a scholarship that was
being designed for Dutch Americans.

Mr. Wgiss. Well, you're stretching. But did you publish the
change of policy in the Federal Register, as required by law?

Mr. WiLLiaMs. As | mentioned yesterday, to you, Congressman
Weiss, this was not a change of—are you talking about—which
change are you suggesting occurred, this one in 19867

Mr. Weiss. We have a very clear statement that says, in March
22, 1983, “We do not believe that Bakke is controlling,” this is a
memorandum within the U.S., Department of Education. It says,
“We do not believe that Bakke is controlling as to the award of stu-
dent financial aid as the decision addresses issues relating only to
admissions.”

Now, you say that, sometime in 1986, you had a different posi-
tion than that, and that's a change in policy. And the question that
I have is: Did you, in fact, publish that change of policy in the Fed-
eral Register, as required by law?

Mr. WiLLiams. First of all, let me remind you, if I could, Con-
gressman, I was not at OCR in 1986.

Mr. Weiss. Did the Department publish that, as required by law?

Mr. WiLLiaMs. I am not aware if the Department did or not. Con-
gressman, but let me——

Mr. WEiss. You haven't inguired, you haven't checked?

Mr. WiLiiams. Let me suggest to you that that is an interpreta-
tion of the law, and it's my understanding that policy interpreta-
tions need not——

Mr. WEss. Your understanding happens to be wrong. Mr.
Komer, are you the Deputy Assistant Secretary for Policy in the
Office for Civil Rights at the Department of Education”

Mr. KomeR. Yes, I am.

Mr. Weiss. Are you aware that Congress has the constitutional
authority and responsibility to oversee the executive branch of gov-
ernment?

Mr. KoMER. Yes, | am.

Mr. WEeiss. Do you believe that you are, somehow, personally
ahove the law that authorizes Congress to review the policies and
procedures of the Department of Education?

Mr. KoMer. No, I don't.

Mr. Wgiss. Were you instructed not to appear at yesterday's
hearing.
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Mr. Komer. The decision in the Department was that Michael
Williams would appear.

Mr. WEIss. Were you instructed not to appear?

Mr. KoMER. Yes.

Mr. WEiss. By whom?

Mr. KoMer. The decision that I not appear was communicated to
me by Assistant Secretary Williams.

Mr. Weiss. Mr. Williams, why did you instruct Mr. Komer not to

aplelear?

r. WiLLiamS. The Department had made a decision that in the
Department’s reading, the inquiry dealt with the Fiesta Bowl letter
of December 4; that I am the Assistant Secretary, I am ultimately
responsible for the activity of that office, and that I would repre-
sent the office in these proceedings.

Mr. Wgsss. Did you discuss your decision, to instruct Mr. Komer
not to appear, with anyone else in the Department?

Mr. WiLLiams. The Department made a decision about——

Mr. Wkiss. Who in the Department made the decision?

Mr. WiLwuiams. Officials in the Department made that decision.

Mr. Weiss. Who? Who conveyed it to you?

Mr. WiLLiams, There were a number of people involved in it.

Mr, Weiss. Who?

Mr. WiLLiams. The people involved in the decision were myself, if
I can recall, myself, the Deputy Secretary, and a few others.

Mr. Weiss. Who is the Deputy Secretary?

Mr. WiLtiaMs. Ted Sanders.

Mr. WEeiss. And who else? Who were the few others?

Mr. WiLLiams. There would have been other staff people, and,
quite frankly, I do not recall the other staff people that were there.

Mr. Weiss. So then, it was Mr. Sanders——

Mr. WiLLiams. It was a meeting that we were having, that a
number of people walked in and out of the meeting.

Mr. WEss. It was a casual kind of a 3cussion that you would
instruct Mr. Komer not to appear before e subcommittee?

Mr. WiLLiaMs. There was no instruction to me to instruct. There
was not a casual meeting, there were a number of people that were
there to discuss various parts of the hearing, and the issue of me
appearing was one of those issues, during that meeting.

Mr. Weiss. For a long time, we had a difficult time getting you to
appear be fore congressional committees. Who made that decision to
withhold you, or try to withhold you from appearing before this
and other congressional committees?

Mr. WiLLiams. 1 do not recall anyone ever attempting to with-
hold me from appearing at this committee. With regards to my ap-
pearance on December 19, if 1 could, the Department received an
invitation for me to appear at a hearing on December 19 to discuss
‘t:he position that was taken in the Fiesta Bowl letter of December

As you are aware, on December 18, there was an announcement
with regards to a position. The Department took the position that
wn had addressed the December 4 issue, and there had not been an
acceptance. The Department said it had not accepted to discuss De-
cember 18, and that's why I was not there.
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Mr. Weiss, You are not aware of the fact that the Department of
Education, from the very top, has attem‘?ted to have this commit-
tee not have your presence st its hearing?

Mr. WiLLiaMs. | am aware that the Department has communicat-
ed to you and has requested an explanation as to why, since the
Secretary is now going about the process of trying to do a review of
this issue, Whi it was continually necessary to have this hearing; I
am aware of that, yes.

Mr. Weiss, And that, in fact, there was an indication that you
would not appear?

Mr. WiLLiaMs. I am not aware that that has ever been communi-
cated to you or anyone else. | am here. I am ready and willing and
able to continue with answering——

Mr. Wgiss. In any event, it was Mr. Sanders—what’s Mr. Sand-
ers’ position’

Mr. WiLLiams. | said, during the course of that meeting, there
was a discussion as to whether I should come. in the sense of ex-
plaining that I am the person that’s responsible for that office; that
was the position of the Department.

Mr. Wgiss. It was Mr. Sanders who told vou that Mr. Komer
should not come; is that right?

Mr. WiLLiaMs. What T am saying to you is that the Department
made the decision that I am the person that’s responsible——

Mr. Weiss. The Department is not a body with a voice; people in
the Department have voices.

Mr. WiLLiams. There was no one person that said, “He's not
going.” I'm sorry, that's the best 1 can do for you, Congressman.

Mr. Weise. For these last 2 days we've been struggling over
whether, in fact, Mr. Komer wouf,d be here under subpoena or
whether he v,ould be here by invitation. You're telling me that
nobody had in fact, said that Mr. Komer is not coming and then,
finally decided that Mr. Komer is coming?

Mr. WiLLiams. What I am saying, Congressman, is that the deci-
sion in the review, in the position of the Department, is that I am
the person that's responsible for that office, and that 1 am tle
person who signed the December 4 letter, and that I am the person
who is aware of the legal interpretation, who participated in the
lel%al. interpretation on December 4, and that I can speak for that
offic2. That's what——

Mr. Wess. Unfortunately, the Constitution of the United States
confers upon Congres:. the prerogative of determining which Feder-
al employees it will hear from. You agree with that, do you not?

Mr. WiLLiams. You're teliing me that, Congressman.

Mr. Weiss. You've never heard that principle?

Mr. WiLLiams. I have no reason to disagree.

Mr. Weiss. Thank you. Mr. Komer, what are your responsibilities
as Deputy Assistant retary?

Mr. KoMeR. Actually, at the present time, I am both Deputy As-
sistant Secretary for Policy, and Acting Deputy Assistant Secretary
for Operations. So I oversee the day-to-day operations of, basically,
all the headquarters and fiela components of OCR, at the instruc-
tior: of Assistant Secretary Villiams.

Mr. Weiss. And how long have you worked for the Office for
C.vil Rights?
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Mr. KomEer. This most recent t: 1 have been employed at the
Office for Civil Rights since Apri] v, i490.

Mr. Wgiss. Had you been employed at a previous time?

Mr. KoMmzer. Yes, I have.

Mr. WEiss. When was that?

Mr. Komeg. From the formation of the Department of Education
out of the Department of HEW, where I was in the Office of Gener-
al Counsel, Civil Rights Division. I went with the Department of
ll'lglstf,cation when it was formed in 1980, and stayed there until late

Mr. WEiss. How long had you been with HEW, prior to that?

Mr. KomeRr. Since Septemger 1978.

Mr. WEiss. And, also in the field of civil rights?

Mr. KomEer. 1 was in the Civil Rights Division of the Office of
General Counsel. In HEW, OCR did not have its own legal staff.
There was a division of the Office of General Counsel that provided
legal support to OCR.

Mr. Wgiss. What did you do before that?

Mr. Komer. That’s when | duated from law school and took
the bar exam and came to work.

Mr. Wriss. So then, your service has been, throughout, with the
Department of Education or its predecessors.

Mr. Komer. No, it hasn't. I left the Department of Education and
its predecessor in November 1982, to go to the Civil Rights Division
at the U.S. Department of Justice, where I stayed until January
1985, when 1 left to go to the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission, where | stayed until April 9, 1990, at which point, I
took a political SES position at the Department of Education,
giving up my career SES position.

Mr. Weiss. You have a continuing civil rights employment
record, from the very beginning of your career in government serv-
ice.

Mr. Komer. Yes,

Mr. WEeiss. On May 1, 1990, you sent a memorandum to the civil
rights director in region 4, suggesting that Florida Atlantic Univer-
sity be investigated as part of compliance review. Do you recall
that memorandum, Mr. Komer?

Mr. KoMeR. Yes, I do, but that's not an accurate description of
what the memo said. I sent a memo to him requesting him to con-
sider opening a compliance review there, or. the basis of the article
that had been in the Washington Post, on March 9, 1990. However,
that package had been started several weeks before I even reached
the Office tor Civil Rights from EEOC.

It was something that was in the works, that showed up on my
desk in late April. I did not initiate that memo, as in reading the
article and telling the staff to do it.

The staff had a policy under development at the time that they
saw this article in the Washington Post. And they, as is not unusu-
al, sent up a memo, through channels, for the Deputy Assistant
Secretary to alert the region to a potential civil rights violation in
their region, and to add it to their list of possible topics for compli-
ance reviews. Thac's the memo I signed on May 1.

Mr. Weiss. What policy was under development, and who was de-
veloping it?
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Mr. Komer. Policies in the Office for Civil Rights are developed
by a component called the "Policy and Enforcement Service,”
which reports to me, in my capacity as Deputy Assistant Secretary
for Policy.

There is a policy division within that Service. That policy divi-
sion had created a policy agenda before 1 had arrived, considerably
before 1 had arrived. In fact, the issue of race-specific scholarships
was on that policy agenda long before I arrived, and was, in fact, as
far as we can tell, first suggested by our region 7, Kansas City
office, in December 1988.

Mr. Weiss. The memo that we have, the May 1, 1990, memo from
you to the region 4 civil rights director, focuses, not on any policy
being developed in the office, but on the Washington Post article. It
starts off, a very brief memo. *'Attached, for your information, is a
Washington Post article that describes a scholarship plan institut-
ed by Florida Atlantic University.” And then it closes saying they
wish to consider the Florida University plan when planning future
compliance reviews.

If, in fact, what you were doing was conveying, or the policy
planning unit was conveying a policy plan concern that has long
been in development, why focus on the Washington Post article?

Mr. Komer. Why focus on the Washington Post article when it
described a scholarship of the precise type that we were developing
a policy to address? I think the answer is obvious. The region knew
that we were developing policy on this topic in Washington. It was
discussed during a conference call with them, July 19, 1989, some 9
months before I even came back to OCR.

The topic of the conference call was the Supreme Court’s recent
decision in City of Richmond v. Croson. In the course of that con-
ference call. which was held with all of the regional directors of
our 10 regions, and the 10 chief regional civil rights attorneys,
questions were raised about the effect of Croson on race-specific
scholarships. And it was discussed, at that time, that there was
policy in process.

In September 1989, a policy agenda was distributed, including fi-
nancial aid as a priority issue, It was then discussed with the RD's,
the regional directors, in Washington in October 1989, during the
yearly round table. So, the entire agency knew that this was an
issue, well before Michael arrived or I arrived, on which policy was
being developed.

Mr. Wesss. If policy was being developed—and I assume that it
was annunciated when Mr. Williams, on December 4, wrote his
letter, and certainly, on his following clarifications on the 11th and
on December 18. Was there, at any time, any setting forth in the
Federal Register of this proposed policy change?

Mr. Komer. We have never been required or announced any
golicy change involving this in the Federal Register. We do not

ave an existing policy that has been published in the Federal Reg-
ister. We have not proposed any change to our existing regulations,
nor do we consider anything that Mr. Williams said on December 4
or December 18 as being inconsistent with the existing regulations
and the interpretation published in the Federal Register, after the
Bakke decision, in 1979.
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~ Mr. Weiss. Let me quote to you from a notice in the Federal Reg-
ister, dated Monday, May 1, 1978, "The Office for Civil Rights,
this is under Department of Health, Education, and Welfare, Office
of the Secretary, nondiscrimination and federally assisted pro-
grams policy determinations, introduction:

The Office for Civil Rights will hereafter publish all major policy determinations
in the Federa! Register and systematically provide copies to organizations represent.
ing beneficiaries and recipients of Federal financial assistance. Policy determina-

tions will fall into one of three catagories: One, policy interpretations will clarify
and explain regulatory provisions: two. procedural announcements will outline the

specific procedures recipients must follow to comply with regulatory provisions, or
the procedures this office will follow to obtain compliance; three. decision announce-
ment will illustrate how this office has applied regulatory provisions to specific fact
patterns developed through investigations.

And it goes on to cite five policy determinations issued in accord-
ance with this procedure.

So how can you say that you've not been required to, in fact, set
forth any policy determinations, changes, in the Federal Register?

Mr. Komer. Policy decisions by the Secretary of HEW, to publish
HEW policy in the Federal Register are not, in my view, binding
on the Secretary of Education. After the Department of Education
was formed in 1950, to the best of my knowledge, no Secretary of
Education has published such a notice saying that the Office for
Civil Rights would only issue policy through publication in the Fed-
eral Register.

Mr. WEiss. So if, in fact. the Department of Education had re-
mained in HEW, then you would have been bound, but now you're
not.

Mr. Komer. There may well be something else in the Depart-
ment that binds us to publish something in the Federal Regis-
ter——

Mr. Weiss. How about the Administrative Procedures Act, which
sets forth what you have to do?

Mr. Komer. I disagree with your reading of the Administrative
Procedures Act. I do not believe that policy interpretations that do
not amend existing regulations, and certainly, in this case, do not
amend an existing policy interpre ation, have to be published in
the Federal Register.

Mr. Wriss. Well, 1 guess if you conclude that the laws don't
apply to you, well, the rules don't apply to you, then you can do
whatever you like.

Mr. Komer. That is not what 1 have concluded.

Mr. Weiss. Was Florida Atlantic University a subject of inquir,
by that policy development group that had been working on devel-
oping policy before your arrival?

Mr. KoMeR. Only to the extent that the same group that was as-
signed the task of developing the policy was the one that generated
the memo that I signed when I arrived, that requested them to con-
sider a compliance review there.

Mr. Wess. I'm not sure that I get that. Specifically, was Florida
Atlantic brought to your attention only by that Washington Post
article?

Mr. KoMER. Yes.

Mr. Wesss. But prior to that, the general issue was being consid-
ered by this policy development group; is that——
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Mr. KomeR. I believe that’s correct.

Mr. Weiss. I cite you the Administrative Procedures Act's defini-
tion of a rule. Under section 2C, a rule is defined as, “The whole,
or a part, of an agency statement of general or particular applica-
bility and future effect designed to implement, interpret, or pre-
scribe law or policy, or describing the organization, procedure, or
practice requirements of an agency.”

Would you deny that, in fact, the Department of Education
comes under the ambit of the Administrative Procedures Act?

Mr. Komer. We certainly come under the ambit of the Adminis-
trative Procedures Act.

Mr. Wesss. Then how do you get out from under the provision
that I just quoted?

Mr. Komer. We publish our rules and regulation under notice
aAnd comment procedures, under the Administrative Procedures

ct.

Mr. WEiss. How about interpretation?

Mr. KomeR. We interpret our regulations, however, we do not
have to publish those in the Federal Register.

Mr. Wgrss. Again, let me cite you, the word designed to “imple-
ment, interpret’; it says “interpret,” now how do you get out of
that? How do you deny that word being in that particular section?

Mr. KoMer. Regulations can interpret laws; policies can inter-
pret regulations.

Mr. Weiss. Hello?

Mr. Komer. We publish our rules and regulations which, under
title VI, have the force and effect of a law, and which are signed by
the Secretary and by the Attorney General, pursuant to title VL
Those must be published in the Federal Register, and, in fact, all of
the rules and regulations that we use have been so published.

However, we do have policies which interpret parts of the rules
that we have published under the APA. And we are not required to
publish every policy interpretation in the Federal Register, under
the APA.

Mr. Weiss. Well, I must tell you that's a novel interpretation of
the Administrative Procedures Act. It seems to me to be clear on
it's face; it uses the word "interpret.” Did your December 4 policy
statement on minority scholarships change the way that the De-
partment interpreted and enforced its title VI rule?

Mr. Komer. December 4 was a letter to the Fiesta Bowl sent by
Assistant Secretary Williams. It was not intended to be an an-
nouncement of policy.

Mr. WEiss. Well, whatever it was intended to be, that's the way
that it was, in fact, taken. right?

Mr. KoMer. It may have been taken that way, but I'm afraid
that this situation proves that how you want something to be taken
is not how it will be taken.

Mr. Weiss. On December 18, the Department issued a release,
and it says in its headline, “Department Issues Policy Statement
on Race-exclusive Scholarship.” And it goes on to say in its very
first sentence, “The U.S. Department of Education, today, an-
nounced a six-point administrative policy regarding race-exclusive
scholarships, to prevent disruptions to the efforts of colleges and
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universities,” then it goes on further. Was that published in the
Federal Register for comment?

Mr. Komegr. No, it was not.

Mr. Wgiss. Should it have been?

Mr. Komer. No, I don’t think so.

Mr. Wesss. Tell me why not.

Mr. Komer. Because it was an interpretation of the regulations.

Mr. WEeiss. But now, this was not somebody else who could mis-
understand a letter to the Fiesta Bowl promoters; this was the De-
partment of Education saying—headline on a—news release, “Here
it comes folks: policy statement,” and then says, “there's a six-
point policy change that we're coming at you with.” How can you
de&y that this was, in fact, a policy determination?

r. KomEeR. 1 don't believe that I would deny that it is a policy
interpretation.

Mr. Weiss. Then, in fact, it should have been printed for com-
ment, according to the procedures of the Administrative Proce-
dures Act.

Mr. KoMeR. Sir, that just takes us back to where we were before,
which is——

Mr. Weiss. No, it doesn’t. It takes us to the point that, in fact,
the Department of Education, through your efforts and Mr. Wil-
liams’ efforts, has decided that it can, in fact, rewrite the rules and
regulations under which all Federal agencies are required to oper-
ate, and decided that the Department of Education can operate dif-
ferently. That's not for you to do, that’s perhaps for Congress to do,
if it wants to elevate the “‘epartment to that level, but we haven’t
done that yet.

Was Florida Atlantic University the first school in this country
to offer minority scholarships?

Mr. Komer. | have no way of knowing.

Mr. Weiss. Why did you choose that particular time to investi-
gate that ffparticular umiversity when, probably, thousands of insti-
tutions offer race-specific scholarships, and had been for decades?

Mr. Komer. Mr. Chairman, I repeat, if you would read the May 1
memo that I signed and which was in the works before I arrived at
the Department of Education, it tells region 4 to consider starting a
compliance review at Florida Atlantic. If I had wanted to start an
investigation at Florida Atlantic, I would have told them to start a
compliance review; that's not what I told them.

Mr. Weiss. You told them to consider it.

Mr. Komer. Right. We do not have the resources to investigate
on our own initiative, which is a compliance review, every possible
violation of title VI. But we do, in fact, try and collect any informa-
tion that we receive from various sources, including people who
may testify before Congress, any information indicating possible
title V1, title IX, section 504, or Age Discrimination Act noncompli-
ance, and we alert our regional offices to that fact.

And, particularly, when we have information relating to topics
which are on our policy agenda, I think it's a wise decision to let
them know what's out there. In point of fact, we did not initiate a
compliance review with respect to Florida Atlantic University. We
were overtaken by the receipt of complaints against Florida Atlan-
tic.
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Mr. WEeiss. You've told us about your background, and you are
wise in the ways of bureaucracy. When a regional office receives a
communication from headquarters, such as this one of May 1, 1990,
which sets forth what the problem is, and then closes with the sug-
gestion that “you may wish to consider Florida Atlantic University
when planning future compliance reviews,” what is the normal and
accepted reaction from the people at the regional office?

Mr. Komer. That they would put it in the folder with the other
information they have and consider it. And they would know that
if they didn't select it, they might, in fact, be questioned by me or
by the Policy and Enforcement Service, who had generated the
memo.

However, you're perhaps unaware that at the time I sent that
memo, the entire Office for Civil Rights was under a travel freeze
for any purposes other than complaint investigations. So 1 was well
aware, in sending that memo, that unless the regional director in
Atlanta came back to me and said, “Dick, do you really mean that
I'm sup to go down there and do a compliance review from
Atlanta? You're going to make an exception to the travel freeze?”
He did not ask that, and I wouldn't have expected him to.

Mr. WEiss. Prior to May 1, the date of your memorandum, had
OCR received a complaint of discrimination regarding Florida At-
lantic University?

Mr. KoMEeRr. No.

Mr. WEiss. Why did you request that region 4 conduct a compli-
ance review rather than an investigation?

Mr. KoMER. A compliance review is an investigation, and I did
not request them to conduct an investigation. I requested them to
consider them, Florida Atlantic University, as a potential compli-
ance review investigation site.

Mr. Weiss. Wait, let me acknowledge that you said *‘consider.”
You say that there's no difference between a compliance review
and an investigation?

Mr. KoMER. A compliance review is an investigation. A com-
plaint investigation is an investigation. We do two kinds of investi-
gations,

Mr. Weiss. Yes. And why did you request a compliance review
investigation, or ask them to consider a compliance review investi-
gation rather than a complaint investigation?

Mr. Komer. Complaint investigations, for us, are mandatory. If
we get a complaint, we must investigate, under our regulations.
Compliance reviews, several hundred of which we do in a gend
year, are a use of our discretionary resources to go after situations
where we think there is a potential for a violation of one of our
statutes, but we do not have a complaint.

Mr. Wass. So then, as of May 1, you had no complaint.

Mr. KoMmer. As of May 1, we had no complaint.

Mr. Weiss. OK. Did you have any discussions with anyone at the
Washington Legal Foundation, abous using title VI to ban race-spe-
cific scholarships.

Mr. Komer. None whatsoever.

Mr. WEiss. Now, the Department received a formal complaint
about Florida Atlantic University from the Washington Legal
Foundation. The complaint alleged that Florida Atlantic Universi-
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t{, was violating civil rights law by providing race-specific scholar-
ships. Did you or, to your knowledge, anyone else at the Depart-
ment of Education, discuss this complaint with anyone at the legal
foundation, before it was received?

Mr. Komzer. No, I did not.

Mr. WEiss. Do you know if anyone else at your Department had
anl{dsuch conversation?

r. KoMgr. No, I do not.

Mr. Wesss. Have you, in fact, inquired in discussions with mem-
bers of that policy development group if they had discussions with
the Washington Legal Foundation?

Mr. KoMER. No, I haven't. I had no reason to.

Mr. Weiss. So then, you cannot, of your own knowledge, state
whether, in fact, they did or did not have any discussions with the
Washington Legal Foundation?

Mr. KoMER. It's certainly possible.

Mr. Weiss. Did you discuss the complaint with anyone connected
to the Washington Legal Foundation, after receiving it?

Mr. KoMmeRr. No. I have never talked to anybody at the Washing-
ton Legal Foundation.

Mr. Weiss. Did anyone from the Department of Education dis-
cuss the complaint, after you received it, with the Washington
Legal Foundation?

Mr. Komer. I don't know.

Mr. WEiss. They could have; is that possible?

Mr. Komer. There are 800 employees in the Office for Civil
Rights. I would not be surprised if the Atlanta office personnel con-
tacted the Washington Legal Foundation, as we normally would
when we receive a complaint and forward it to the appropriate re-
gional office for investigation. It is our standard operating proce-
du.e to contact the complainant.

Mr. WEiss. Let me stop at this point, because I've taken a great
deal of time, and yield to Mr. Thomas.

Mr. THomas. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am not quite certain
where we're going, frankly, with this hearing, so let me review just
a little bit. I didn’t, yesterday, take much time, but 1 had thought,
in the beginning that we were talking about the policy that was
annunciated in the December 4 letter. It's my understanding, from
l\gr. Williams, yesterday, that there was no policy annunciated
there.

And then, | thought we were moving as to why a policy had been
made, and, of course, if there was not a policy, that became a little
difficult to pursue. So we turned, then, to process. as to whether
the process was followed. Again, a little difficult if, indeed. there
hasn’t been a policy change.

And then it seemed that we moved, and the press picked up on
the notion that somebody else was calling the shots in the office, so
that we must have someone else here today, because Mr. Williams
;rya? apparently not in charge. So, we need to talk about that a

ittle.

And then, of course, on top of all that, regardless of all these
things that had happened. the Secretary announced, yesterday,
that this issue will be revisited and visited over a period of time to
establish a policy. So where I am makes it a little hard. Was there
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a change, Mr. Komer, in the policy, as a result of the letter of De-
cember 4?

Mr. Komer. We were in the process of developing a policy, be-
cause, I think, it was recognized by all of us, including the Assist-
ant Secretary, that we had never articulated a policy on minority
scholarships. As a result, we had inconsistent outcomes in the let-
ters that we had issued over the years; pre-Bakke, post-Bakke. We
have made regulatory changes over the years that affect this issue,
yet we have never addressed this precise issue in any clear policy
document.

The nearest we've come is in a policy document issued in 1979,
after Bakke, where we said, and I quote, if I can find it——

Mr. THoMas. You can paraphrase it, if you like.

Mr. Weiss. Very hard.

Mr. Komer. I apologize for this. I'm looking at the vocational
education guidelines, which we published in the Federal Register,
and which are appendix——

Mr. Weiss. Are you looking for the one on October 10, 1979?

Mr. KomeRr. I believe so.

Mr. Weiss. Would you like our copy?

Mr. Komeg. I think I have it in my book. In any case, we pretty
clearly said that, except in the situation where one is remedying
past discrimination, one may not designate scholarships by race.
That is a rough paraphrase of what I think this said.

Mr. THomAs. On that basis, were you satisfied that the process,
whatever process was done, was appropriate?” In retrospect, were
you to go through this process again——

Mr. KoMeR. I believe what we have done has been clearly legal,
within the law, in terms of the Administrative Procedures Act. 1
don’t believe it was the optimal process that we could have fol-
lowed. I was not in favor of the Department, or the Office for Civil
Rights issuing a press release and a letter to the Fiesta Bowl. But,
I am not the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights, Mr. Williams is.

Mr. THomas. Who made that decision to release the letter to the
Fiesta Bowi”

Mr. KOMER Mr. Williams.

Mr. Tiomas. So Mr. Williams is apparently in charge of the
office.

Mr. KoMer. Yes, he is, unquestionably so.

Mr. THoMAs. You have been involved, for some time, in various
offices. Do you think there are circumstances under which race-ex-
clusive scholarships are appropriate?

Mr. KoMeR. If you're asking my opinion, yes, I certainly do.

Mr. THoMmAs. Under the law?

Mr. KoMer. Under the law.

Mr. THoMas. So you would not be opposed to that notion, under
the legal circumstances, as you view them; is that right?

Mr. KomEeR. There are certain areas where I don't think there is
any dispute between us and anyone else, particularly those in-
stances that fall under our regulations 34 CFR section 100.3tBx6 ki),
where an institution has discriminated in the past, the regulations,
appropriately under the law, clearly require remedial affirmative
action to overcome the effects of discrimination. And we have ac-
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cepted remedies, in the past, that involve race-specific scholarships
as a remedy for discrimination that we have found.

Mr. Tuomas. Mr. Williams, how long have you been there? Since
the summer?

Mr. WiLLiams. July 6, 1990,

Mr. THomas. And Mr. Komer?

Mr. KoMeR. Since April 9, 19%0.

Mr. THomas. Were you surprised that the tone of the reports yes-
terday, that really maybe somebody else was behind the letter?

Mr. WiLLiams. | am surprised, but I probably am more offended,
to be honest with you. But yes, I am surprise” by the tone. I am
surprised by the reporting, but I can understand the reporting, be-
cause that was the implication at which we left this hearing, yes-
terday. But I am more offended by it, than anything else.

Mr. THomas. Why are you offended?

Mr. WiLLiams. I'm offended by it because, No. 1, I come to this
agency with having had a civil rights enforcement background. I
come to this a?enc , I guess, at some disadvantage; [ have not writ-
ten about civil rights, nor have I given a lot of speeches, I guess,
about civil rights, even though, I have given some. 1 have not done
a lot of studying in the area, but I have done one thing in the area
that, maybe, one of our former justices had mentioned, he said
that, “‘one of the greatest civil rights is the right to be left alone,”
and I've been involved in that.

1 was a prosecutor for 4 years at the Department of Justice in
the Criminal Section of Civi{Rights Division. I was in Alabama be-
cause I had successfully prosecuted a Valley Station police officer
for beating six of his arrestees. I was also in Arizona, because, in
Arizong, 1 successfully prosecuted a deputy sheriff that had taken a
juvenile, who was handcuffed behind his back, and asked him a
question, didn't get the answer he wanted, and took a 23 inch
metal flashlight and hit him upside his head.

I left there and I went to Indiana. And in Indiana, I successfully
prosecuted a “good ol’ hoy” that ran a black Federal agricultural
worker out of a local tavern at gunpoint. I left there, and I went to
Idaho. And in Idaho, there was a neo-Nazi that had taken upon
himself to say that he was going to run black and interracial fami-
liesnout of a local community, and I successfully prosecuted him, as
well.

I went down to Kentucky. And in Kentucky, 1 prosecuted a
Klansman that took the home of a black fer..ile and her two kids
and burned that house to the ground the second day that they were
there. And then I left there, and went to North Carolina, where
there was a black prison guard who wanted to take a sergeant's
exam, and a white prison guard didn’'t want him to do it and
threatened him from taking the sergeant’s exam at gunpoint.
Those people were successfully prosecuted, as well.

And I went to North Carolina, and stayed in North Carolina over
the course of 2 years, and in North Carolina, prosecuted members
of the Carolina Knights, of the Ku Klux Klan. And when we were
through, those individvals that had attempted to obtain stolen mili-
tary weapons, seven of them were successfully prosecuted.

And so, in the course of 4 years, there were 17 folks that had
committed racial crimes, and 12 of them had spent some period of
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time in a Federal institution. And the reason that they were in
that Federal institution, I know a little bit about it because I put
them there.

To suggest, in some kind of way, when I came to DOJ, that the
kind of commitment that had been expressed at DOJ was not ex-
pressed here, at the Department of Education, offends me, because
the principle is the same. It is that it is fundamentally incorrect,
improper, to have race, outside of the confines that the law has
provided, to be the determining factor in whether people benefit, or
not, in this society.

That is the same principle that I used in the performance of my
responsibilities at DOJ. It is the same principle that guides my be-
havior at the Department of Education. And, in this matter, that is
the principle that guided the issuance of the letter on December 4.

And so to suggest that someone else runs that office—well, let's
just break it down, let's just suggest that the white boy runs the
office and the brother just sits there and lets him run it—is offen-
sive to me. I think it is racist, at best.

Mr. THomas. I have no further questions, thank you.

Mr. Weiss. Mr. Payne.

Mr. PayNeE. Thank you very much. I was just looking over some
material, a little background on the fact that there has been a de-
cline in the question of higher education of minorities. It says that
the crisis in minority education continues, although the high school
graduation rates of blacks, 76.1, now approaches that of whites,
82.1, disparage persists in every objective measure of African
American college participation.

While 38.8 percent of whites, 18 to 24 year old are high school
graduates who were enrolled in college, only 30.8 percent of the Af-
rican American group were. While 55.8 percent of white college
students received a baccalaureate degree after 5% years, only 30.3
percent of black students did.

The proportion of bachelor’s degrees received by blacks fell from
6.4, in 1976, to 5.7, in 1989. Master's degrees, from 6.8 to 4.6, and
doctoral degrees, from 3.3 to 2.4. The absolute numbers fell as well
The percentage of professional degrees received by African Ameri-
cans were virtually unchanged in the period, 4.3 to 4.4.

Then it goes on to say financial aid is a key element in black en-
rollment and graduation at institutions Fully 82 percent of black
undergraduate students in private colleges received some financial
assistance, grants, loans, work studies, as do 72 percent of Hispanic
undergraduates and 59 percent of Asians.

It goes on to talk about the dramatic rise in college tuition at pri-
vate and public institutions, and the decline in the dollar value of
Federal assistance, financial assistance. especially grant assistance.
Scholarships are critical to the increase in participation rates of
minority students who, because of persistent segregation and dis-
crimination, disproportionately comprise those in low- and poor-
income families.

The only reason 1 read that is because I'm trying to figure this
out, too. I listen to the fact that you say you were not surprised,
but more offended, because you did some very good work with DOJ
and Texas. Then you went on to Alabama, you said, then on to Ari-
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zona, went to Idaho on to Kentucky, and then on to North Caroli-
na, and did a great job.

You know, I am as offended, I guess, as you are. Not because it's
inferred that white boy runs the place, but I checked with the Na-
tional Organization of Black Law Enforcement officials and—I was
curious about your background, even before you read all of this—-
and rt‘he black law enforcement officials commended your former
record.

That's why I'm totally surprised at almost the pride, it seems,
that you take; almost the glee of this announcement. And believe it
or not, the day that it was done, the next day, a tremendous
number of calls went throughout the United States of America, be-
cause people were totally, I'm talking about black law enforcement
people from the South, were shocked at this undertaking.

And that’s why I said, yesterday, I knew it had to %e someone
else that wrote it, because I looked at your record. I am confused
because there are less and less dollars from the Federal Govern-
ment. And I think everyone believes we should encourage educa-
tion. As 1 indicated yesterday—Mrs. Bush sits on the board at Mor-
ehouse College, andy that’s gow Dr. Sullivan was discovered with
his tremendous abilities, and asked to leave that prestigious insti-
tution to become the head of HHS.

I know of no one, white, black, conservative, liberal, who says
that we need to really scrutinize this question of attempting to
have a better reflection of American society in higher education. So
I just don't understand this December 4 investigation. Why is so
fnug)h energy and effort going i'ito this narrow interpretation of the
aw?

The way Jrou talk about correcting past discrimination, it's like a
magic wand. Evidently, it's some wand that you put down and say
that past discriminations have all been corrected because someone
adjusts something, and I still don't know what it is.

ou mentioned the Louisville institution, yesterday, as one of
those that the Fiesta Bowl might have sent some dollars to assist
minority students—Louisville, KY. There was a question whether
discrimination had been totally eliminated, and, therefore, it would
not be necessary to have any kind of correction through the affirm-
ative action as a remedy of past discrimination.

I think you are more offended than surprised, I'm both, because I
don’t know what the intent is, I don’t know what the thrust is, and
as, | guess, as a brother to brother, since you inferred that there is
some kind of racial thing—and I was the one that said it. So I'm
Jjust amazed.

I'm a former educator, and I think that the only way that we're
Boing to get out of the dilemma that African Americans {ind them-
selves in is to have Headstart programs, where we can give people
an opportunity to start on the same lcvel. and to encourage them
to stay in school, encourage them to go on to college.

I don't understand what is the thrust of the so-called civil rights
arm of the Department of Education in seemingly thwarting, slow-
ing down, and confusing something that is as American as apple
pie. Maybe because I'm not a lawyer, and you are.

So perhaps you need to explain to me why this is so critical, and
all of these otKer people that are guing to be hurt because a Fiesta
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Bowl wants to +ive some money to some black students who would,
otherwise, not go to school; how this is violating the civil rights of
some people out there?

Mr. WiLLiams. Mr. Payne, if 1 could, 1 think, as we discussed yes-
terday, 1 share—and I will not attempt to speak for Dick, but 1
would imagine he does as well—1 think we all would share the con-
cern about the low number of all minority students, as well as
Americans, that appear to be entering higher education at what-
ever level, whether it's undergraduate, graduate, or professional
school, and share the desire that we increase the number of people
who have an opportunity to participate in higher education.

And it's because of that, that it becomes very important that we
insure that each person has an opportunity to go to college and
have the financial resources to do so0. You've mentioned a number
of things, but you've also mentioned, in the course of your state-
ment and question, as to all of the resources.

We would disagree that there are an enormous amount of re-
sources that are going into this issue. This is one issue on policy

agenda; it is one issue, in terms of National Enforcement Strategy.
It has received more attention than most things that we are doing.
but it is, indeed, not the biggest thing that we're spending our time
with and our resources with.

But, I think, when we say, ‘Why?''—we have received more com-
plaints in the last year, on this issue, than we have in the last 10.
And so the reason for the December 4 letter was particularly as it
relates to Louisville, but it was also because of a concern that
maybe something is igoing on out there in the community that may
deprive a number of students of the opportunity for financial as-
sistance.

We have, as | outlined yesterday, and 1 will not attempt to do so
again today, a number of instances, as I said, of complaints that
individuals feel as if they have been deprived the opportunity for
financial assistance that they would need in order to matriculate to
a college campus, because of their race. And that is something that
is extremely important for us, in a civil rights capacity, to be con-
cerned about.

I can recall, from my own reading, Langston Hughes once told us
that, “There's a dream with its back against the wall, and denied
to one, denies it to us all.” And if that Asian student or that Arab
American student or that Hispanic student or that black student
or even that white student is denied an opportunity to matriculate
to a college because of the denial of financial assistance, that is
something that, as civil rights enforcement officials, that we are
cl;rged by this Congress and charged by the law to be concerned
about.

Mr. Payne. OK. On that point of the Fiesta Bowl money, which
didn’t occur before, and regardless of the reason for it being cre-
ated at this time, ufp until 1990, there were zero dollars out of Ari-
zona's Fiesta Bow! for minority students.

Mr. WiLLiams. Correct.

Mr. PayneE. December 1990, or whenever the bowl committee
gets together, they say, "We have a new idea. We're going to not
only send all this money to the schools for whatever, but we're
going to put aside a couple of hundred thousand dollars just for
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some poor, black kids who can’t go to school. We know there’s been
cutbacks in the last education budget.”

As you know, State incentive grants were reduced; State loans
were reduced throughout the Nation, because the President sent up
a budget that had less for scholarship aid than the previous year.
So a group of people on a committee decide, “We're going to zet
some dollars, here, to help some student that may, then, be able to
go to college, rather than to the army; or go to college rather than
to work for a $3.50 minimum wage jog.”

And you interpret it as, therefore, because there was zero dollars
before, and they create $50,000 or $100,000 or $200,000 that was
never there before, to go to a minority student, that's discriminat-
ing against, this Asian, or this—

r. WiLriams. No. I went through it yesterday and——

Mr. Payne. Well, that’s the way I understand it and that’s why [
stopped you right at that point. 1 don't tend to interrupt people.
But I just wanted to see how the Fiesta Bowl violated someone's
rights. I wonder how did this new money discriminate against
someone e!se, because it seems to be the genesis of your project—
and that's what I don’t understand.

Mr. WiLLiams. As we discussed yvesterday, the reason for it is
Louisville, it's not the Fiesta Bowl. The letter went to the Fiesta
Bowl. They are not institutions of higher edvcation and would not
be presumed to know anything about title V1 but the participating
universities, University of Louisville and University of Alabama,
are, indeed, recipients of Federal education funds. and therefore,
have to comply with title VL.

Their use of the money, by the University of Louisville, does.
indeed, raise title VI questions. And, as I mentioned yesterday. the
University of——

Mr. PAYNE. And as for the use of that private money to help
some student that couldn't get in there——

Mr. WiLLiams. The legal interpretation of the Office, at that
time, and as we had used in other instances. was that a universi-
ty's use of privately designated funds did, in fact, raise a title VI

uestic... As a matter of fact, there have been a number of people
that have suggested to us, after Deceinber 18, when we said you
can use that privately designated funds, that that would be a viola-
tion of Civil Rights Restoration Act.

And so, yes, our interpretation on December 4 was that if a uni-
versity used private funds, new money. that the way that they used
it raised title VI concerns.

Mr PAYNE. And vou feel that that's real'v the intent of the law?

Mr. WiLLiams. That's the way that I read and interpreted it on
December 4, ves.

Mr. PaynE. § could stay all afternoon, but 1 better yield back to
the chairman.

Mr. Weiss. We'll be calling on the other members when we
return. There's a vote on the floor. and we should be back in a
matter of 10 minutes, or so. The subcommittee stands in recess.

[Recess taken.]

Mr. Weiss. The subcommittee is back in session. On May 22,
1990, William Smith, who was acting Director of OCR at the time.
prepared a draft memorandum to OCR senior staff on race-specific
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scholarships. The memorandum states that it will supersede all
srev'i’ous OCR policy. Do you know what prompted that memoran-
um?

Mr. Komer. 1 don't believe William Smith had anything to do
with that memo. I think that’s one of the drafts of the policy docu-
ment that was being prepared. Everything that's significant like
that is prepared for the Assistant Secretw's signature. In that
case it was the Acting Assistant Secretary, William Smith.

1 believe, it was certainly my practice at EEOC, when 1 was legal
counsel and our office was responsible for, among other things, de-
veloping policy documents, we always started out a new policy doc-
ument that we intended to be broad based, that it superseded any
existing policy, to make sure if there was policy out there, or some-
body thought there was policy out there, that was contrary to the
new document, that we would supersede it.

In this particular case, I don't think that there's any document
that one could point to and say, “This is OCR's policy on race-spe-
cific scholarship.” I think that that line is, essentially, surplus to
the extent that anyone might take one of those earlier LOF's, or
;i‘ocuments, and think that this is a policy document; you certainly

ave.

Mr. Weiss. What was your role in the drafting of the Smith
memorandum?

Mr. KoMeR. None, as far as I know. This document was in proc-
ess, as | explained earlier, months before 1 arrived. And it was not
initiated at my request, nor did 1 pass that document on to Acting
Assistant Secretary Smith or to Michael Williams, subsequent to
his arrival, in July.

Mr. WEss. Would you say that there was a direct line between
the work that the policy development group was doing, even before
your arrival, through the draft memorandum from Mr. Smith to
the December 4 statement, letter, whatever, from Mr. Williams?

Mr. Komer. | don't understand what you mean, “a direct line.”

Mr. Wriss. You've said that long before you got to the agency. in
April 1990, there was this group in OC% that was working on
policy development regarding minority scholarships. Then, on May
29 Mr. Smith, the Acting Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights,
issues a detailed memorandum on recipient provision of race or

ender-specific financial aid. And then, along comes Mr. Williams
in July 1990, and come December, he issues the statement in De-
cember.

And the question is: Is there a continuity there? Mr. Williams, do
you just make your decision off the top of your head, or do you. in
fact, look at the statement from William Smith, the draft memo, do
ﬁop l‘?Ok at the work that that policy development group was

oing?

Mr. WiLLtams. Mr. Chairman, I look at a full range of documents
and materials that are prepared to assist the Assistant Secretary to
know what may be the parameters of the law. Of course, one of the
things that 1 looked at were the cases that relate to this matter,
the policy documents that relate to this matter.

But I think it's important for us to remember that after the May
22. 1990, policy document, there were two other drafts, one on June
18. 1990, and one on July 23, 1990, that the committee Las been
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provided. And ne policy document has been released to the public,
or to our staff, as of this date.

Mr. Wriss. Except as of December 4. In fact, there was a policy
%tstriment issued, or communicated, to the promoters of the Fiesta

wl.

Mr. WiLLiams. We can recast that ground again. As I said, that
was a letter that contained within it my interpretation of the law,
as it relates to this subject. It was not the initiation or the an-
nouncement of policy.

Mr. Weiss. Thank you. Let me now call on Mr. Hobson.

Mr. HossoN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just have a couple of
questions. Mr. Komer, on the one memo that you wrote, it looked
to me, maybe contrary to the way it looked to some other people,
what looked like a typical bureaucrat response. That you saw the
thing, down there, and you said, "'Boy, the quickest way to get rid
of this and to let it die is to get it out of here, and write this memo,
and it will go awa )’ the one where you said, “you might want to
look at this.” That's what those look like, to me, when I see them.

Mr. KoMmer. It was not an effort to just let it die, on my part.
Although, I have to admit, when I issued that memo—I got it on
April 27, 1 started on April 9—1I viewed it as fairly routine, in the
sense that it said “‘consider” this issue for a compliance review.

We've done other sorts of things like that. I mean, we did one
involving Selma, AL, in August, about ability grouping, which is
another issue that’s on our National Enforcement Strategy and
was on our policy agenda. I think it was a fairly routine thing to
send it down.

And I had no expectation, as I said before, since they were under
a travel freeze, which I fully expected to run through the end of
that fiscal year, until September 30, I didn't think anybody was
going to be doing any compliance reviews, when I was writing that
memo in April, until the next year. at the best.

Mr. Hosson. Do you want to make any comment about the Fed-
eral Register, I'm not quite sure——

Mr. Komer. We took advantage of the break to look at the Ad-
ministrative Procedures Act, because I was curivus as to why your
reading of the act and my understanding of the act seemed to be so
divergent.

And I believe, the problem is that, yes, the definition of “rule”
includes things like interpretations, but that definition is in 5 USC
section 551, In USC section 553, it states which rules must be pub-
lished in the Federal Register. It says, "except where required by
statute,” and our statute, title VI, does not require publication of
anything other than regulations.

t states that, *Except when notice or hearing is required by stat-
ute, this subsection does not apply to interpretative rules, general
statements of policy, or rules of sgency organization procedure or
practice.” In other words, yes, what we issued could be considered a
rule, but, no, I don’t think it's subject to publication in the Federal
Register.

Mr. Weiss. Do you think that the statement that we referred to
earlier, that “the Office for Civil Rights will, hereafter, publish all
major policy determinations,” that that doesn’t apply any longer
because that was an HEW-—when the Department of Education
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was located—You don’t think that that requires a direct rescission,
if it's not to be applicable any longer?

Mr. KoMer. No, I don’t think so. After the Department of Educa-
tion was established, we reissued all of our rules and regulations.

Mr. WEiss. Say that again.

Mr. KoMmer. After the Department was established in 1980, we
went through a process of reissuing all of our rules and regulations
in our own title of the Code of Fegeral Regulations, and I don't be-
lieve we've reissued that notice. It is possible that I'm wrong, but if
so, we have certainly honored that policy in the breach. And, in
fact, I am sure——
eer. Wsziss. My understanding is that, in fact, it has to be rescind-

Mr. Komgr. I think it dies a natural death when the Office of
Education is sg}it off from the Department.

Mr. Weiss. Clear disagreement, a misunderstanding of one of us,
as to what the law is.

Mr. Hosson. Maybe that's something that ought to be cleared
up. But, I would just like to say one otEer thing. Yesterday, some-
how 1 was characterized as castigating Mr. Williams, and 1 didn't
mean to do that. What I meant to point out was that 1 thought
that there was, at least, a lack of sensitivity or thought, of stepping
back from what you were doing and looking at the overall effect
that some people may construe, as to what you were doing, in the
wrong light.

1 think I iterated that I happen to believe that there needs to be
some help for people who find themselves in circumstances, such as
the people that I try to work with at the university that I'm on the
board of. And if anything comes out of this, the positive along that
line is that we all have to look at things, sometimes we get in-
volved—and 1 know you have a strong background. and I knew
that before— but sometimes I think we have to look beyond the im-
mediacy of what we're doing.

And 1 wanted to give you a chance to comment on that. I know
we've got another vote apparently, which they told me we weren't
going to have for a while. But if you want to make any comment
about that, Mr. Williams.

Mr. WiLLiams. Congressman, first of all, thank you for the oppor-
tunity of addressing it, but in addition to that, I share, as I men-
tioned to you yesterday, the need for us to be sensitive as we ap-
proach the area of applying the law.

One of the reasons, quite frankly, while 1 think the Department
and OCR and myself are excited about how the Secretary’s han-
dling this issue. is because in the course of the process of develop-
ing what will be the policy, as it relates to it.

I think 1 feel quite comfortable that that is indeed the leadership
that we'll receive from the Secretary; that he is, indeed, very con-
cerned about No. 1, that we provide opportunities for all students,
and No. 2, that we do it in a way that involves a wide number of
people in the process; and that, finally, that we send a message to
students and their parents that is the kind of message that says
that we want a wide variety of people included in the opportunities
of advancement for society. And so that is a position tﬁat I share,
and I think that the balance of OCR shares as well.
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To the extent that our actions, or my actions, on December 4 con-
flict with that, we can say, quite frankly, that it was not our inten-
tion, but, as they say, “gf all great plans of mice and men, some-
times, indeed, they do go astray,” and that may be one that did.
And 1 appreciate the opportunity to address that, for myself and
for the balance of OCR.

Mr. HossoN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Weiss. Thank you, Mr. Hobson. We have just a little bit
more to go, but we do have to take a break for a vote, at this point,
we’ll come back in about 10 minutes.

[Recess taken.]

Mr. Wriss. The subcommittee is now back in session. I think that
that was the last vote for the day, hopefully. And 1 have just a few
more questions.

Mr. Komer, did you inform Mr. Williams, at any time, that you
thought the Fiesta Bowl case was being mishandled, that it should
be done in another way?

Mr. KoMeR. It wasn't a case, but, yes, in the memo that 1 trans-
mitted. When I transmitted, to him, a draft letter to the Fiesta
Bowl, I indicated that he might want to call the Fiesta Bowl, as
opposed to send the letter. I also told him that I thought we should
avoid intervening with res to the Fiesta Bowl.

I told him that I thought the legal position stated in the letter
was appropriate, but that I thought we were going to get a signifi-
cant amount of public interest in what we would have to say, and
that I didn't think we were really ready to deal with that.

I also advised inst, if we wanted to send a letter including a
press release, publicizing the letter. I even told him that I thought
if we did it that way, we would be in hearings in January. I'm
afraid 1 underestimated Chairman Hawkins. 1 hadn’t realized he
was retiring on January 2, and so he set a hearing for December.
But that was what 1 advised the Assistant Secretary.

Mr. Weiss. Did you inform Mr, Williams, at the time, that ad-
vanced notice should be given to the colleges affected, that perhaps
more public notice should have been involved.

Mr. KoMmeR. No. I did allude to the fact that we were developing
a policy and that I felt we should do it as a policy, as opposed to
sort of start going out and talking to the Fiesta Bowl. However, I'm
much more cautious than the Assistant Secretary, in some ways.
And he comes from a part of the Civil Rights Division at Justice,
which does, in fact, undertake investigations and such, on the basis
of things like this, as matter of course, without having a complaint.
It's just a temperament difference between us, I suppose.

r. Wess. It’s the difference between trial lawyers and corpo-
rate lawyers, I guess.

Mr. KoMmer. I guess you could say that. I'm certainly not a litiga-
tor, as you can see.

Mr. Wgsss. Did you inform him in writing?

Mr. KoMmer. | sent him, attached to the written memo that you
have, a handwritten, little white sheet of paper with what I had to
say on it. And as is his normal course of business, he threw it
away. I do this a couple of times a day, and he throws them away a
ﬁou le times a day. And sometimes he follows them, and sometimes

e doesn't.
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Mr. Wriss. Well, that gives me a good response to my next ques-
tion, which is why the subcommittee didn't receive it. In fact, isn’t
it true that the first public announcement that minority scholar-
shi;q)s were illegal came in the Fiesta Bowl case?

r. KoMer. Well, the first public announcement in 1990—as I
think is ap nt, I happen to believe that the regulations can be
read in such a way that they make many illegal. I think the voc-ed
guidelines make many sorts of them illegal. Both of those are
public documents.

I think the implication of our policy interpretation on Baokke—if
I were a university attorney, and I read the policy interpretation
on Bakke, I would not advise my client, the university, to set up
race-restrictive scholarships in situations where 1 was not prepared
to acknowledge discrimination by my own university, but I'm a
cautious sort of gu*.

Mr. Wriss, Mr. Komer, since you alluded to the Bakke interpre-
tation, and you couldn’t find it when we were questioning, have
you located it yet?

Mr. KoMER. Actually, when I had said that, ] was looking for the
voc-ed guidelines, which were published after Bakke, and that pro-
vision 1 have found, I believe you had found it yourself.

But it reads, under student financial assistance—and these
guidelines do apply to vocational education programs in higher
education institutions—it says, “Recipients may not award finan-
cial assistance in the form of loans, grants, scholarships, special
funds, subsidies, compensation for work, or prizes to vocational
education students on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex,
or handicap, except to overcome the effects of past discrimination.”

Mr. Wgsss. in, that's according to vocational education.

Mr. Komegr. These are the voc-ed guidelines, which were pub-
lished in the Federal Register on March 29, 1979.

Mr. WEiss. 1279,

Mr. KoMEr. 1979, the year after Bakke. And they form, I believe,
appendix B, to the title VI regulations. And so they are published
in the Code of Federal Regulations and readily available to anyone
who cares to find out——

Mr. Weiss. Now, how do you square that with Federal Register,
October 10, 1979, which is the policy interpretation from the Office
for Civil Rights. And this is on the Bakke case; it’s a summary of
policy interpretation.

I'm going to quote part of it:

The Department has reviewed the Supreme Court's decision in Bakke and has de-
termined that voluntary affirmative action may include, but is not limited to, the
following: consideration of race, color, or national origin among the factors evaluat-
ed in selecting students; increased recruitment in the minority institutions and com-
manities; use of alternative admissions criteria when traditional criteria are found
to be inadequately predictive of minority students’ success; provision of preadmis-
sion_compensatory and tutorial programs; and the establishment and g:mm of nu-

merical goals to achieve the racial and ethnic composition of the student body the
institution seeks.

Mr. Komer. How 42 I square that? Well, I guess I read the other
part, too, that talks about things like “offering special services, in-
cluding summer institutes and special tutoring services to assist
educationally and socially disadvantaged students in meeting ad-
missions requirements.”
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And then it says, “Students may not be excluded from these pro-
grams on the basis of race, but race may be considered as a factor
in selecting participants.”

Mr. WESS. And it says, “voluntary affirmative actions,’ and
that's the part that I read. In any event, I think that, quite clearly,
without wanting to preclude whatever the Secretary may decide to
do—his indication is that he is going to determine what the policy
ought to be. In the mean time, everything is on hold. Quite clearly,
h}e‘e thinks that the announcements, in December, indicated a policy
change.

You would agree, Mr. Komer, would you not, that the universi-
ties and colleges, the institutions of higher learning, having had
nothing really public, by way of pronouncement, other than since
the Bakke interpretation that I just read from, would have had
reason to be surprised and shocked at the December announce-
ments:

Mr. Komer. | think that they certainly were shocked, to the
extent that they simply had been going along a path that 1 think
was—I think the data that you've been given showed a increasing
use of these sorts of devices. without any interruption by the Office
for Civil Rights.

1 think that that is, unfortunately, what has gotten us where we
are today, which is this Office for Civil Rights failed in its duty to
issue a policy on this topic long ago. And as a result, there have
been varying interpretations before Bakke, before the regs were
amended, to add voluntary affirmative action to them.

You know that provision was not there from 1965, when the regs
were written, until it was added in 1973. I think many of the col-
lege presidents who have discussed what we said in December, with
amazement, have also indicated that it was only recently that they
started to think these things were legal. And they've only started
to do them fairly recently.

I think that's because of a failure of OCR to have issued policy. 1,
personally, am a big believer in issuing policy that is, through the
National Enforcement Strategy that Mr. Williams issued in Decem-
ber, and was totally overtaken by this Fiesta Bowl fiasco. It's in-
tended to address a lot of issues that have been left unaddressed
for years, and that have allowed noncompliance, in a number of
areas, like ability grouping, services for limited English-speaking
students, a lot of areas like that, to go unremedied.

I, personally, believe that, to the extent a Federal enforcement
agency, such as OCR, clearly annunciates what it thinks the law
requires & very large proportion of recipients of Federal funds from
our Department will voluntarily comply with the law. We will not
have to utilize administrative enforcement, or referral to the De-
partment of Justice. ] am a believer, here and in my previous in-
carnations at EEOC, in issuing policy, developing policy.

Mr. Wriss. Getting public comment on policy changes?

Mr. Komer, Where feasible and where necessary. I think that
one thing you should know is that in the confirmation process, Mr.
Williams committed to consulting with civil rights groups and
other interested parties affected by what the Department does. 1
have sat in on some of those meeii?fé But he has met with many
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civil rights groups and a number of other groups 1o try and discuss
their concerns and what they would like to see OCR do.

This is not conspxracy, it’s not conspiratorial; people know about
it. People know that he's met with people from the Heritage Foun-
dation. They may not be aware that he's met with people from the
NAACP Legal Defense Fund repeatedly. But these meetings go on,
and OCR is far more open to the public groups affected by our ac-
tivities than has been true for a decade.

1 hate to see the fact that we got into the Fiesta Bowl thing over-
shadow the greater openness at OCR these days, the greater will-
mgness to confront difficult issues. These are not simple issues, and
they’re not issues where we don’t have resistance from within the
Department as to what the law is. I believe this sincerely, and 1
know that the Assistant Secretary does.

Mr. Wmss Well, 1 thank you, Mr. Komer. The provisions of law
that we've been operating under—civil rights’ thrust has been to
try to encourage voluntary affirmative action programs, and in
some cases, o mandate affirmative action programs. And T just
find it mightily strange that at a tlme when we're all concerned
about how much slippage there is in the minority communities as
far as levels of higher education are concerned. that a major thrust
of the Office for Civil Rights is to, in fact, make it more difficult for
voluntary affirmative action programs to occur.

And I must say, Mr. Williams, that your having annunciated
your concern that, in essence, there are people who are affected ad-
versely, of the nonminority groups, when, in fact, minority groups
are given a benefit, I think is probably in conflict with the position
of the Secretary. That's sometll:ing that I think you all are going to
have to work out.

And finally, 1 should say that I think that your record as a civil
rights prosecutor is admirable, and I have nothing but the highest
regard for it. But it seems to me that having demonstrated excel-
lence in one area of civil rights doesn’t necessarily mean that,
philosophically, you are on the right side, and that you really are
moving in the right direction in the area that you’ re now engaged.

Again, I appreciate your participation and your's. Mr. Komer.
There may be other members who have questions, and they may
submit questions, in writing, to you. Whatever documents we've re-
ferred to will be entered into the record, without cbjection.

And the subcommittee now stands adjourned, subject to the call
of the Chair.

[Whereupon, at 5:20 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned, to recon-
vene subject to the call of the Chair.}
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OPENING STATEMENT OF CONGRESSNAN CRAIG TEONAS
RANKING REFUBLICAN MENBER, SUBCOMMITTERE ON HUNAN RESOURCES and
INTERGOVERNNENTAL RELATIONS
March 20, 1992

MR. CHAIRMANZ I WANT TO TRANK YOU FOR HOLDING THIES HEARING TODAY.
THERE ARE FEW ISSURS IM THIS COUNTRY RS INPORTANT AS GUARANTREING
QUALITY EDUCATIOMAL OFPPORTUNITIES FOR ALL AMERICANS. TRE NEARING
THIS RORKING, CONBINED WITH THE ANNOUNCENENT FRON TEE DEPARTMENT
OF BDUCATION, WILL GIVE US A 000D OPPORTUNITY TO LOOK INTO THIS
KATTER.

CIVIL RIGHTS 1S AS CONPLICATED AN IGSUR AS WE WILL TACE
DURING TBIS CONGRESS. IT HAS BEEN PLACED AT THE TOP OF HANY
AGENDAS, ALRBEIT FOR DIPFERING REASONS. BUT AN INPORTANT POINT
NEEDS TO BE MADE CLEAR,...BOTH PRESIDENT BUSH AND CONGRESS ARE
COMMITTED TO EQUAL OFPORTUNITIES IN ENPLOYNENT, EDUCATION AND
HOUSING. DIFPERENCES ON HOW TO ACHIEVE THESE GOALS CAN NOT, AND
S8HOULD NOT, BE CONSTRUED AS DISAGREENENT OVER THE GOALS
THEMSELVES.

THS DECTISION BY MR. WILLIANS IN THE OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS,
AND THE BUBSEQUENT STATEMENTS TWO WEEKS LATER, DID CREATE SONE
CONFUSION. 1 AN FLEASED THAT NR. WILLIAMS IS HERE IO DISCUSE KIS
DECISION.

I AN ALSO PLERSED WITH EDOCATION SECRETARY ALBXANDER'S
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DECISION TO BECONE ACTIVE IN THIS ISSUE TO ENSURE THAT THE NEEDS
OF ALL AMERICANS...REGARDLESS OF COLOR, SEX OR NATIONAL ORIGIN...
ARE NET AND THEIR RIQHTS PROTECTED, NIS STATEMENT THIB NORNING
DETAILING TEE PROCESS THE EDDCATION DEPARTMENT INTENDS TO FOLLOW
I REVIEWING THIS ISSOR APPEARS TO PROVIDE A SOLID FOUNDATION
UPON WEICH TO BUILD A CONSENSUS ON TRIS ISSUE. IT WILL PROVIDE X
WUCH NEEDED OVERVIEW OF THE CURRENT PROURANS, ENCOURAGE TBE
PARTICIPATION OF OUTSIDE GRODPS AND CONORESS IN DECIDING HOW TO
INPROYVE OUR EFPORTS, AND PROVIDE PROTECTION TO BOTR INBTITOTIONS
AND RECIPIENT WEO ARE ALREADY DENEPITTING FRON CURRENT FROGRANS.

THE SECRETARY NAB A WELL-DESERVED REPUTATION AS BEING A
LEADER IN THS FIELD OF SDICATION, DOTH FROM HIS DAYS AS GOVERNOR
OF TENNEBSEE AND MORS RECENTLY AS PRESIDENT OF THAT BTATE'S
LARGEST UNIVERSITY SYSTEM, EE BRINGS WITR NIN A FRESH
FPERSFECTIVE TO A DIFFICOLT JOB AND A DIFFICULT ISSUR.
{ AN CONFIDENT THAT IS FORTHRIGHT NANNER WILL PRODUCE RESULTS
ALL OF US CAN AGREE UPON. ALTHOUGH HE WAS JUST SWORN 1N ON
MONDAY, HE HAS EXPRESSED A HOPE OF CONPLETING THIS PROJECT WITHIN
SIX MONTHS. ¥E SEOULD GIVE HIN TINS TO CONFLETE HIE TASK. 1
KNOW CONGRESS AND THIS COMNITTEE ARE WILLING TO COOPERATE IN
THESE EFFORTS, AND LOOK FORVARD TO N RERORT ON HIS FINDINGS IN
THE NONTHS AHEAD.

ONCE AGAIN, NR., THAIRMAN, THIRK YOD FOR BROLDING THIS
HEARING. I LOOK FORWARD TO NEARING THE TESTINONY FROM EACH
PANEL, AND AN PARTICULARLY INTERESTED IN HEARING THEIR COMMENTS

ON THE ADNINISTRATION'S PLAN RELEASED THIS MORNING.
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STATEMENT BY REPRESENTATIVE PATSY T. MINK
MUMAN RESQURCES AND
INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS SUBCCMMITTEE
COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS
HEARING ON RACE-SPECIFIC SCHOLARSHIPS POLICY
MARCH 21, 1991

Mr. chairman I am pleased that you have called this hearing
on the important issue of the Department of Education’s policy
on mirority scholarships. 1 apologize for net being able to be
here yesterday, however, a markup in the Education and Lavcor

Committees kept me away.

Mr. Chairman, this is a very important issue to me and the
people of my district. With many of the students in Hawaii
eligible for minority-based financial aid, any new standards or
regulation restricting the use of Rinority scholarships would

severely affect the students in my district.

However, this is not an issue that concerns me only because
of the effect it would have on Hawaii. It is the fundamental
principle that a college education should be available to every
student in our country, no matter what their race, national
origin or gender. There is no doubt that race-specific

scholarships are important in helping minority students overcome
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many cultural and economic barriers to getting a college
education. Many times these scholarships are the only means
that allow minority students to attend college. It perplexes me
that the Department of Education would maka such & drastic
changa in policy that will effect thousands of studemts ascross
the nation, without consideration of the devastating

congeguences it will have on those students.

I think we ali agree that the way this sensitive issue was
handled by the Department has created irreparsble damage, in the
civil rights community, on college campuses and in the minds of

students across our nation.

I look forward to hearing the testimony today and hope that
it will help our efforts to understand the reasoning behind this
sudden change in Department of Education policy and the Process

used to make this change.
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OPENING STATEMENT
CONGRESSMAN DONALD M. PAYNE
TENTH DISTRICT, NEW JERSEY

RACE-BASED SCHOLARSHIPS

Mr. CHAIRMAN, I WANT TO COMMEND YOU FOR
CALLING THIS HEARING TODAY ON AN ISSUE OF
VITAL IMPORTANCE TO MINORITY STUDENTS AND

EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTIONS ACROSS AMERICA.

SINCE THE FIRST PRESS RELEASE QUESTIONING
THE CONSTITUTIONALITY OF MINORITY
SCHOLARSHIPS WAS ISSUED LAST DECEMBER,
UNIVERSITIES, COLLEGES, AND THOUSANDS OF
STUDENTS HAVE HESITATED UNDER THE CLOUDED

EDUCATIONAL POLICY.
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AT THIS HEARING, I HOPE TO DETERMINE THE
INTENT BEHIND THE DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION’S ACTIONS, BECAUSE I THINK WE
NEED TO BE VERY CAREFUL IN THE KINDS OF
MESSAGES WE SEND OUR MINORITY STUDENTS WHO

ARE CONSIDERING ATTENDING COLLEGE.

AT A TIME WHEN AFRICAN-AMERICANS ARE
RETURNING FROM THE PERSIAN GULF IN NUMBERS
FAR BEYOND THEIR PROPORTIONATE
REPRESENTATION IN SOCIETY, WE MUST ASK WHY
THEY ARE OVERREPRESENTED IN THE

BATTLEFIELD BUT UNDERREPRESENTED IN THE

CLASSROOM.
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As A MEMBER OF THE ComMITTEE ON EpucatIOon
AND LABOR, I AM FAMILIAR WITH THE PROBLEMS
UNIVERSITIES AND COLLEGES HAVE ATTRACTING
AND RETAINING STUDENTS OF COLOR. THIS,
COMPOUNDED WITH A HISTORY OF
DISCRIMINATION, NECESSITATES A CLEAR AND
IMMEDIATE RESPONSE FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION REGARDING RACE-BASED

SCHOLARSHIPS.

I AM TROUBLED BY THE STATISTICS WHICH
DEMONSTRATE THAT MINORITY EDUCATION IS IN

A STATE OF CRISIS.
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THE PROPORTION OF BACHELOR’S DEGREES
RECEIVED BY BLACKS FELL FRoM 6.4% 1N 1976
10 5.7% IN 1989. THE NUMBERS OF BLACKS
RECEIVING MASTER’S DEGREES AND DOCTORATES
ALSO DECLINED SIGNIFICANTLY, ALTHOUGH THE
GENERAL BLACK POPULATION CONTINUED TO

INCREASE.

THEREFORE, MrR. CHAIRMAN, I HOPE OUR
WITNESSES WILL BE ABLE TO CLARIFY THE
PROBLEM AT HAND AND SUGGEST SOLUTIONS TO
THIS NATIONAL CRISIS. I WELCOME OUR
WITNESSES AND LOOK FORWARD TO HEARING

THEIR TESTIMONY THIS MORNING.
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STATENENT OF THE HONORASLE ROSA L. DELAURO
SUBCOMMITTEE ON HUMAN REBOURCES AND
INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS
NMARCH 20, 1991

Nr. Chairman, I commend you for holding this hearing on
the Department of Education's policy regarding minority
scholarships.

Since the Department of Education announced their new
policy regarding race-aspecific scholarships, thers has been
much ¢riticiss dy sducators, students, profeasscors, Nembers of

congress -« the 1ist goss on and on.

Nany of the complaints are concerned that this change
will reverse more than tusnty years of government policy to

enhance minority enrollment in higher education.

T am disturbed that this policy, whether used now or four
yaars down the road, will discourage minority students from

oven thinking about a college education.

Several colleges and universities in my state of
Connecticut have sxpressed sipilar concerns about the

Department of Bducation's changes to #xisting policy. They
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fesl trat minority students may get the wiong idea about what
kind of financial aid is availabla to them. TIn their

confusion, they may avoid & higher education.

This concerns me grmatly in light of the fact that the
State of Connecticut’'s Board of GOvernors for EBigher Education
just announced that minority student enrollment rose 5 percent

to a record 19,572 from the fall of 1989 to fall 1990.

What message is being sent to these students? I only
hope that the Department of Education will rethink this i{ssue
to ensure that our country's education pollicy moves ahead and

not two steps bshind,

45-745 (118)

113







